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RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U70100MH1988PTC046631
Regd. Office: Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5% Floor, Off Eastern Express Highway,
Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai - 400 022
Tel: +91-22-6113 3000, Fax: +91-22-2409 3749, Corporate@runwal.com, www.runwal.com

NOTICE TO MEMBERS

Notice is hereby given that the 35™ Annual General Meeting of the Sharcholders of
RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED to be held at a shorter notice on
Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 11:00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company situated
at Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5% Floor, Off. Eastern Express Highway, Opp. Sion
Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai- 400 022 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
(1) To receive, consider and adopt:
(a) the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 together with
the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and
(b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31 , 2023

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

(2) Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditor

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modifications or amendments made thereof), the remuneration of Rs. 52,500/-
(Rupees Fifty Two Thousand Five ITundred only), payable to M/s V J Talati & Co., Cost
Accountants, bearing Firm Registration number R00213, who was appointed by the
Board of Directors of the Company as the Cost Auditor to conduct the audit of the cost
accounting records maintained by the Company relating to “Construction Business” for
Financial Year 2023-24 be and is hereby ratified and approved.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
FOR RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

‘wa‘%
SWEENA NAIR
COMPANY SECRETARY

Place : Mumbai
Date : September 29, 2023



Route Map to the Venue of Annual General Meeting
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e Members / Authorized Representatives are requested to {ill in the Attendance Slip and submit
it at the venue of the AGM.

o The Explanatory Statement made pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is
annexed herewith.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO_ SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 2

The Board has approved the appointment of the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost
records of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 at a remuneration of Rs. 52,500/-
(Rupees Fifty Two Thousand Five Hundred only).

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
applicable Rules, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor needs to be ratified by the
Shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, approval of the members is sought for passing
an Ordinary Resolution as set out in the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditor to conduct audit of the cost accounting records maintained by the Company
relating to “Construction Business” for the Financial Year 2023-24. Relevant documents in
respect of the said item are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of
the Company on all working days during the office hours up to the date of the Meeting,

None of the Directors or their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested in the
resolution set out in the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for approval by the shareholders.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
FOR RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

PAEs

3

SWEENA NAIR
COMPANY SECRETARY

Place : Mumbai
Date : September 29, 2023



RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U70100MH1988PTC046631
Regd. Office: Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5™ Floor, Off Eastern Express Highway,
Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai — 400 (022
Tel: +491-22-6113 3000, Fax: +91-22-2409 3749, Corporate@runwal.com, www.runwal.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
35"H ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Register Folio No. / DP ID No.* / Client ID
No.*

Number of Shares held

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

I certify that I am a registered Member for the registered Member of the Company. I hereby
record my presence at the 35" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the
Registered Office of the Company at Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5™ Floor, Off. Eastern
Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Mumbai — 400022, on Saturday, September 30,
2023, at 11:00 a.m. (IST).

Name of the Member Signature of Member

NOTE: Members holders are requested to bring this Attendance Slip to the Meeting and
hand over the same at the entrance duly signed.



Runwal Developers Private Limited

To,
The Members,

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Runwal Developers Private Limited

Mumbai

Director’s Report FY 2022-23

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting the 35™ Annual Report of the Company together
with the andited Statement of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Your Company is one of Mumbai's premier real estate developers, operating in the
residential, commercial and organized retails verticals. We operate in the Luxury, Premium
and Large-Format Townships categories in residential development.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(INR in Takhs)

Particulars

Standalone

Consolidated

2022-23

2021-22

2022-23

2021-22

Total Income

21,161.91

46,667.91

36,482.73

82,567.98

Total Expenditure

17,082.68

42,590.36

27,661.01

65,476.06

Profit / (L.oss) Before
Taxation

4079.23

4,077.55

8,821.72

17,091.92

Less: Income Tax

(1,128.03)

(2,054.43)

(2,901.27)

(3,690.64)

Less: MAT
reversal

Credit

Less: Tax related to

previous year

0.23

(53.86)

0.23

Less: Deferred Tax

319.54

(407.92)

2,796

(19,660.82)

Profit / (Loss) After
Taxation

3,270.74

1,615.43

8662.59

(6,259.31)

Share of Profit / Loss of
Joint Venture / Associate

(4,428 81)

(712.24)

Other Comprehensive
Income

(i) Items that will not be
reclassified to profit or
loss

Remesurement of
actuarial gains and losses

3.84

13.02

13.41

10.55

Net (loss)/gain on
FVTOCI equity Securities
/  Share of  other
comprehensive income in
associate and joint venture

8.29

5.18

(ii) Income tax relating
to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or
loss

0.97)

(3.28)

(4.10)

(2.96)

Total  Comprehensive
Income for the period

3,273.61

1,625.17

4,251.38

(6,958.78)




Runwal Developers Private Limited Director’s Report FY 2022-23

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Standalone

During the year under review, the Standalone Profit After Tax stands at Rs. 3,273.61 Lakhs as
against Rs. 1,625.17 Lakhs in the previous year.

Consolidated

During the year under review, the Consolidated Profit After Tax stands at Rs. 4,251.38/-
Lakhs as against Loss of Rs. 6,958.78/- Lakhs in the previous year.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s Equity Share Capital position as on March 31, 2023 is as follows:-

Authorised Share Capital Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Share
Capital
Share No. of Face Amount No. of Face Amount
Capital Shares Value (Rs.) Shares Value (Rs.)
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Equity 29,55,50,000 1 29,55,50,000| 22,28,90,150 1 22,28,90,150
Total 29,55,50,000 Total 22,28,90,150
TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2023.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not recommend dividend on Equity shares for the financial year ended 31%
March, 2023.

Pursuant to the Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Runwal Realty Private Limited, Runwal
Projects Private Limited and Runwal Township Private Limited with Runwal Developers
Private Limited sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal of Mumbai
Bench vide its order dated on 4% July 2019, 6,49,000 7% Redeemable Preference shares
(RPS) of Rs. 10 cach were allotted by the Company to the shareholders of the Transferor
Companies on 30™ November 2019. During the period under review till the date of
redemption of RPS i.e. September 26, 2022, your Directors have paid the dividend of Rs.
2,22,794/- to the Preference Shareholders.

Pursuant to the Scheme of merger of Runwal Builders Private Limited, Veear Property
Developers Private Limited, Runwal Properties Private Limited and Odeon Exhibitors Private
Limited with RDPL sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal of Mumbai
Bench vide its order dated on 17 June, 2020, 17,383,200 0.01% Redeemable Preference
Shares (RPS) of Rs. 10/- each of the Company were allotted to the Equity shareholders of
Runwal Builders Private Limited, Veear Property Developers Private Limited and Runwal
Properties Private Limited on 4™ November 2020. During the period under review till the
date of redemption of RPS i.e. September 26, 2022, your Directors have paid the dividend of
Rs. 8,525/- to the Preference Shareholders.



Runwal Developers Frivate Limited

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

Director’s Report FY 2022-23

(i) During the year under review, the following sequence of transactions / events occurred:

Sr.
No.

Type of Mecting

Date of Meeting

Transactions Qccurred

1

Board Meeting

September 21, 2022

1.

. Alteration to

Redemption of  6,49,000 7%
Redeemable Preference Sharcs on
September 26, 2022

. Redemption of 1,73,83,200 0.01%

Redeemable Preference Shares on
September 26, 2022

. Reclassification of 7% and 0.01%

Authorised Preference Share Capital
to Authorised Equity Share Capital

. Sub division of 55,000 Equity Shares

of Rs. 100/- each to 5,50,000 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Memorandum of

Association giving effect to point
nos. (3) and (4)

Extra Ordinary
General Meeting

September 26, 2022

. Alteration

. Reclassification of 7% and 0.01%

Authorised Preference Share Capital
to Authorised Equity Share Capital

. Sub division of 55,000 Equity Share

Capital of Rs. 100/- each to 5,50,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
to  Memorandum of

Association giving effect to point
nos. (1) and (2}

Board Meeting

September 27, 2022

. Alteration to

. Split of 1 Equity Share having Face

Value of T10/- to 10 Equity Shares
having Face Value of X1/- each
Memorandum
Association giving the above effect

of

Extra Ordinary
General Meeting

September 27, 2022

2,

. Split of 1 Equity Share having Face

Value of 210/~ to 10 Equity Shares
having Face Value of 31/- each
Alteration to Memorandum
Association giving the above effect

of

3

Board Meeting

September 28, 2022

Issue of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 34:1

6

Extra Ordinary
General Meeting

September 28, 2022

Issue of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 34:1

7

Circular Resolution

September 29, 2022

Allotment of Bonus Shares

(i) The Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited
{(“Transferor Company”) with the Company (“Transferee Company”) {collectively
referred to as “Applicant Companies”) was approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company on May 8, 2023. Pursuant to the scheme, the Transferor Company will get
merged with the Company with effect from April 1, 2023. The Order is awaited.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

i.  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy- Not applicable

ii. The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy — The
Company is evaluating installation of Solar Panels at its various project sites.

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment — Not Applicable.

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

i.  The efforts made towards technology absorption — Not Applicable

il. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution — Not applicable

iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned
from the beginning of the financial year
a) The details of technology imported- Not applicable
b) The year of import- Not applicable
¢) Whether the technology been fully absorbed- Not applicable
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof- Not applicable

iv.  The expenditure incurred on Research and Development — Not applicable

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under review.
BOARD, COMMITTEE AND GENERAL MEETINGS

Number of Meeting of Board of Directors

During the financial year under review, 21 (Twenty One) meetings of the Board of Directors
of the Company were held, which were duly convened with the requisite quorum. The
Mecting of the Board of Directors were held on (i) April 4, 2022; (ii) April 21, 2022; (iii)
May 16, 2022; (iv) June 10, 2022; (v) June 29, 2022; (vi) July 13, 2022; (vii) August 16,
2022; (viii) August 24, 2022; (ix) September 2, 2022; (x) September 21, 2022; (xi)
September 27, 2022; (xii) September 28, 2022; (xiii) September 30, 2022; (xiv) November 7,
2022; (xv) November 24, 2022; (xvi) December 17, 2022; (xvii) January 4, 2023; (xviii)
February 13, 2023; (xix) March 23, 2023; (xx) March 27, 2023 and (xxi)y March 31, 2023.

Number of Meeting of the Members of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR

Committee”)

As at March 31, 2023, the CSR Committee of the Company consists of two Members Ms.
Pallavi Matkari and Ms. Sujata Rao. During the year under review, 2 (two) meeting of the
members of CSR Committee were held on (i) September 30, 2022 and (ii) March 30, 2023,

Number of General Meetings

The 34* Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on September 30, 2022. During
the Financial Year 2022-23, 5 (five) Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the members of the
Company were held with the requisite quorum on (i) September 17, 2022; (ii) September 26,
2022; (iii) September 27, 2022; (iv) September 28, 2022 and (v) March 27, 2023. Two 2)
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Meetings of 7% and 0.01% preference shareholders were duly convened on September 17,
2022 respectively.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors of the Company comprised of the following Directors as on March
31, 2023:

NAME DESIGNATION l
Ms. Pallavi Matkari Director ﬂ

| Ms. Sujata Rao Director

During the year under review, following changes took place in the composition of the Board
of Directors of the Company:

(a) Mr, Mahesh Iyer (DIN: 01337787) vide resignation letter dated May 6, 2022 (which was
received by the Company on May 16, 2022) ceased to be a Director on the Board of the
Company;

(b) Mr. Ravi Sharma (DIN: 09516462) vide resignation letter dated March 31, 2023 (which
was received by the Company on the same day) ceased to be a Director on the Board of
the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel:

During the year under review, the following change took place in the Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company:

Ms. Sweena Nair (ACS: 17636) was appointed as a Company Secretary of the Company
w.e.f. the opening of business hours of December 1, 2022,

Apart from the above, there were no other changes in the Board of Directors or Key
Managerial Personnel during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

None of the employees of the Company is drawing remuneration in excess of the limits
prescribed under rule (5) sub rule (2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required, pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 extract of annual return in Form
MGT 9, forms part of this Board Report as Annexure I.
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE & ASSOCIATE COMPANY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing
salient features of the Financial Statements, highlights of performance of subsidiaries / Joint Ventures
/ Associates is attached as Annexure I1 to the Directors’ Report of the Company in Form AOC-1.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

During the Financial Year 2022-23, there were no significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or Courts or Tribunals which can adversely impact the going concern status of the
Company and its operations in future.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

During the year under review, the relevant provisions relating to the performance evaluation under the
Comnpanies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board is of the opinion that there ate no major risks affecting business of the Company.
PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or its employees during the year under
review within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Full particulars of investments, loans, guarantees and securities covered under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 provided during the financial year under review has been furnished in the Notes
to Accounts which forms part of the financials of the Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

In accordance with section 139, 141, 142 and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, M/s. Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants having registration number
302049E, were appointed as Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years to hold office from the
conclusion of 34" Annual General Meeting for a term of consecutive five years till the conclusion of
the 39™ Annual General Meeting of the Company at the remuneration determined by the Board in
consultation with the Auditors of the Company.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not
call for any further comments. The report of the Statutory Auditor for F.Y.2022-23 does not contain
any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers.

INTERNAL AUDITORS
In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, M/s
N.A. Shah & Associates are appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company. The Internal Auditor

monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of the internal control system of the Company, its
compliances with operating systems and accounting procedures and policies of the Company.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL.S

During the financial year 2022-23, as required under Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, the Statutory Auditors have evaluated and expressed an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on an audit. In their opinion, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
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financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s Pramod S Shah & Associates, a firm of Company
Secretaries in Practice, have been appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The
Report in the Form MR 3 of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as Annexure IT1. There has
been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Secretarial
Auditors in their Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Annual Report on CSR activities, in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended
from time to time, is annexed herewith as Annexure 1V.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Board of Directors of your Company has established a vigil mechanism headed by
Ms. Sujata Rao, Director of the Company to hear the grievances of the employees/ any
person in the company and take steps to resolve the issues amicably and report the same to
the Board of Directors of the Company.

DISCLLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company is committed towards creating and maintaining a healthy work environment
free from any type of harassment. The Company always endeavors to create and provide an
environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.
The Company has in place a robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace.
There is an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) which is responsible for redressal of
complaints related to sexual harassment.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY

The details of transactions/contracts/arrangements referred to in Section 188(1) of Companies
Act, 2013 entered by the Company with related party (ies) as defined under the provisions of
Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year under review, are
furnished in Form AOC 2 and is attached as Annexure V and forms part of this Report.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016

During the year under review, there were no applications made or pro'ceedings pending in the
name of the Company under the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of Loans taken from
Banks and Financial Institutions.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors
confirm that:

i.  in the preparation of the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2023, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures
in adoption of these standards;

ii. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at March 31, 2023 and profit and loss of
the Company for the year ended on that date;

ili. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

iv. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for period ended March 31, 2023 on a
‘going concern’ basis.

v. the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditors
have not reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its officers or
employees to the Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Secretarial Standards as applicable to the Company were
duly complied.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors take this opportunity to thank the Banks, Central and State
Government authorities, Employees etc. and all stakeholders for their continued cooperation
and support to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Runwal Developer
Pallavi Matkari

Sujata Rao\
Director Director

DIN: 03478837 DIN: 08054518

Place : Mumbai
Date : September 29, 2023



ANNEXURE1

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended March 31, 2023
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN:- U70100MH1988PTC046631
ii) Registration Date — March 22, 1988
iii) Name of the Company - RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the | Private Limited Company
Company -
V) Address of the Registered Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5™ floor, Opp. Sion
office and contact details Chunabhatti Signal, Off. Eastern Express Highway, Sion

(East), Mumbai — 400 022
Tel. : 91 22 — 61133000

vi) Whether listed company Unlisted
vii) Name, Address and Contact -

details of Registrar and

Transfer Agent, if any

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated:-

Sl Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
No. main products / services Product/ service the Company
1 Construction of buldings 410 94.09

IIl. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S. Name and Holding/ % Applicabl
No | Address of the CIN/GLN Subsidiary/ | of Shares | /‘PP!able

. Section
Company Associate Held

Avalor
Developers
Private Limited
Add:  Office
No. 2, 6" Floor, 2(87) of
1 | Runwal & | U70109MH2019PT(C324563 Subsidiary 100 Companies

Omkar Act, 2013
Esquare,

Opposite Sion
Chunabhatti
Signal,




Sion East
Mumbai -
400022

Wheelabrator
Alloy Castings
Ltd.

Add: Lal
Bahadur Shastri
Marg

Bhandup
(West)

Mumbai -
400078
Maharashtra

U9999SMH1959PLC0O11472

Associate

34.26

Sec 2(6) of
Companies
Act, 2013

R Mall
Developers Pvt.
Ltd.

Add: R City
Mall, 3rd Floor,
Mall
Management
Office, 146,
LBS Marg,
Ghatkopar
West, Mumbai
— 400 086.

U45201MH2006PTC163273

Joint Venture

49.75

Sec 2 (6) of
Companies
Act, 2013

R Retail
Ventures
Private Limited
Add: Office
No. 2, 6" Floor,
Runwal &
Omkar
Esquare,
Opposite Sion
Chunabhatti
Signal,  Sion
East, Mumbai -
400022

U70200MH2018PTC313615

Joint Venture

50

Sec 2 (6)
of
Companies
Act, 2013

Dhruva
Woollen Mills
Private Limited
Add: Runwal
& Omkar
Esquare, 5"
floor, Sion
Chunabhatti
Signal, Off.
Eastern
Express
Highway, Sion
(East), Mumbai
—400 022

U17110MH1952PTC008960

Subsidiary

51

2(87) of
Companies
Act, 2013




IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total

Equity)

i) Category-wise ShareHolding :

EQUITY SHARES

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end

of the year

Yo
Change
during
the year

% of
total
share
Total 8

De | Physica
mat |1

De
mat

% of
total

share
Total S

Physi
cal

A.Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

- 15,86,829 |5,86,829 | 92.15

20,53,
90,15 120,53,90,
0 150 | 92.15

b) Central
Govt

c) State Govt
(s)

d) Bodies
Corp.

e) Banks / FI

9] Any
Other....

Sub-total (A)
(1):-

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -
Individuals

b) Other—
Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / FI

¢) Any Other....

Sub-total (A)
(2):-

Total
shareholding of
Promoter (A) =

(AYDHA)2)

- | 5,86,829 5,86,829 | 92.15

20,53,
90,15 20,53,90,

0 150 | 92.15

B. Public Sharcholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds




b) Banks / T

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

€) Venture
Capital Funds

B Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

1) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders

holding nominal
share capital upto

Rs. 1 lakh

if) Individual 11,279 | 11,279 | 1.77 39476 | 394765 1.77
shareholders 50 0

holding nominal

share capital in

excess of Rs 1

lakh

c) Others - - - - - -
(specify)

1)Others:HUF - - - - - -
i1)Others: held by 38,721 | 38,721 | 6.08 13552 | 135523 6.08
Partnership firms 350 50
Sub-total 50000 | 50000 | 7.85 17500 | 175000 7.85
(B)(2):- 000 00

Total Public 50000 | 50000 | 7.85 17500 | 175000 7.85
Shareholding 000 00
B)=B)(1)+

B)2)




C. Shares held by
Custodian for

GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 22289 | 2228901
(A+B+C) 636829 | 636829 100 0150 50 100




(i1) Shareholding of promoters

Sr. | Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning Share holding at the end of the
No. | Name of the year year
%of Yo
o/'l’)(l’deh?;fs % of | Shares | change
% of total € g; total | Pledged / in
No of g chcuInpere shares | encumbe | share
shares of d No of Shares .
Shares ———— s of red holding
pany 'L ota comp to total during
snares any shares the
year
j, | Mr Sandecp | g gceng | 915 = 20,53,90,150 | 92.15 . :
Runwal
Total 5,86,829 92.15 - 20,53,90,150 | 92.15

(ii1) Change in Promoters’ Shareholdin

g ( please specify, if there is no change)

Sr.
No.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of
the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

Mr. Sandeep Runwal

At the
the year

beginning of

5,86,829

92.15

the
specifying
forincrease

Date wise Increase Decrease in
Promoters Share holdingduring

the

year
reasons

/decrease 58,68.,290

(e.g.allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):
Split of shares having Face
Value of T 10/- each to T 1/-

92.15

58,68,290

92.15

Date wise Increase Decrease in
Promoters Share holdingduring
the year
specifying reasons
forincrease /decrease
(e.g.allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):
Issue of Bonus Shares

the

19,95,21,860

92.15

20,53,90,150

92.15

At the End of the year

20,53,90,150

92.15




(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Sharcholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders
of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr.
No.

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Name

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

Mrs. Priyanka Runwal

At the  Dbeginning of
the year

11279

1.77

Date wise Increase
Decrease in
Promoters Share
holdingduring the year
specifying the reasons
forincrease /decrease
(e.g.allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
Split of shares having Face
Value of T 10/- each to ¥ 1/-

1,12,790

1.77

1,12,790

1.77

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in  Promoters
Share holdingduring the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc): Issue of
Bonus Shares

38,34.860

1.77

39.47,650

1.77

At the End of the year (or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

39,47,650

1.77

Jointly held by Runwal Developers Private Limited, Ms. Nirmala Murali, Mr. Sunil Satvilkar on
behalf of Runwal Constructions

At the Dbeginning of 10,722 168 i )

the year

Date wise Increase

Decrease in

Promoters Share

holdingduring the year

specifying - the  reasons 1,07,220 1.68 1,07,220 1.68
forincrease /decrease

(e.g.allotment / transfer /

bonus/ sweat equity etc):

Split of shares having Face

Value of T 10/- each to T 1/-

Date wise Increase /

Decrease in  Promoters

Share holding during the

YEAE SRecityifg the easons 36,45,480 1.68 37,52,700 1.68

for increase /decrease (c.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc): Issue of
Bonus Shares




At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

37,52,700

1.68

Jointly held by Mr. Subhash Runwal, Mrs. Chanda Runwal, Mrs. Sangeeta Lalwani, Mr. Sandeep

Runwal and Mr. Subodh Runwal on behalf of Runwal & Associates

At the beginning of
the year

9069

1.42

Date wise Increase
Decrease in
Promoters Share
holdingduring the year
specifying the reasons
forincrease /decrease
(e.g.allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
Split of shares having Face
Value of ¥ 10/-eachto T 1/-

90,690

1.42

90,690

1.42

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in  Promoters
Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc): Issue of
Bonus Shares

30,83,460

1.42

31,74,150

1.42

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

31,74,150

1.42

Jointly held by Mrs. Chanda Runwal, Mr. Sandeep Runwal and Mr. Subodh Runwal on behalf of

Anand Developers

At the Tbeginning of
the year

9,465

1.49

Date wise Increase
Decrease in
Promoters Share
holdingduring the year
specifying the reasons
forincrease /decrease
(e.g.allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
Split of shares having Face
Value of ¥ 10/- eachto T 1/-

94,650

1.49

94,650

1.49

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in  Promoters
Share holdingduring the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc): Issue of
Bonus Shares

32,18,100

1.49

33,12,750

1.49

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

33,12,750

1.49




Jointly held by Mr. Subhash Suganlal Runwal (HUF), Mrs. Chanda Runwal and Mrs. Sangeeta
Lalwani on behalf of Sandeep Constructions

At the
the year

beginning  of

9,465

1.49

Date wise Increase
Decrease in
Promoters Share
holdingduring the year
specifying the reasons
forincrease /decrease
{e.g.allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
Split of shares having Face
Value of T 10/-eachto T 1/-

94,650

1.49

94,650

1.49

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in  Promoters
Share holding during the
year

specifying the reasons for
increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc): Issue of
Bonus Shares

32,18,100

1.49

33,12,750

1.49

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

33,12,750

1.49

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. beginning of the year year
% of total % of total
Name No. of shares | shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
company company
1 Ms. Pallavi
© | Matkari

At the beginning
of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise Increase
/Decrease in
Promoters Share
holding
during the year
specifying the Nyifhangs
reasons for
increase /
decrease (Transfer
of shares):
At the End of 0 0 0 0

the year




(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. beginning of the year year
No. of % of total % of total
Name shares shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
company company
2. Ms. Sujata Rao
At the beginning
of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise
Increase
/Decrease in
Promoters Share
holding
during the year
specifying  the No Change
reasons for
increase /
decrease
(e.g.allotment /
transfer / bonus/
swedl equity ete):
Atthe End of 0 0 0 0
the year

V. INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(INR in Lakhs)
Particular Se;}l;ﬁg;;zgns nsecures Deposits Tosl
. Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount 35,780.28 1,803.22 - 37,583.50
ii) Interest due but not paid - = - =
iii) Interest accrued but not due 170.57 - - 170.57
Total (i)+(ii)+(iii) 35,950.85 - - 37,754.07
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial yvear
Addition 207,668.41 - - 207,668.41
Reduction 211,259.00 1,803.22 - 213,062.22
Net Change -3,590.59 -1,803.22 - -5,393.81
Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount 32,097.95 - - 32,097.95
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 262.31 - - 262.31
Total (i)+(ii)+(iii) 32,360.26 - - 32,360.26




VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/
Manager

Total
Amount

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

1 (b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option - - - -
3 | Sweat Equity - = = =
Commission - = £ =
4 | -as % of profit : - - =
- others, specify... = = - =
5 | Others, please specify = = = =
Total (A) . - 5 -

Ceiling as per the Act




Sr.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount
(Rs.)

Mr. Ravi Sharma

Independent Directors

* Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

» Commission

* Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

» Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

« Commission
* Others, please specify
(Remuneration — Gross)

35,77,725

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD
Key Managerial Personnel
Ms. Sweena
= Nair
o e
CEO Secretary CFO
effective
December 1,
2022)

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions - 7,31,584 - -

contained in section 17(1) of

the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
L: 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary

under section 17(3) Income-

Tax Act, 1961
5 Stock Option - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -

Commission :
4. |-as % of profit - - - ; ke

- others, specify }

5 Others, please specify - - - -

Total

7,31,584 -




VII. PENALTIES /PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Apc;i)ea_l
Description | Penalty/Punishment/Compo 1\ERD / made, if
Compani unding fees imposed CLT/ any (gllve
COURT) Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty ) ] ] )
Punishment . ) ] )
Compounding |~ ) ) )

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OF¥

ICERS INDEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board

Runwal Developers Priva

te Limpite
A N
AVL% :

M __,...—-"""‘

Pallavi Matkati
Director
DIN: 08054518

Place : Mumbai

Date : September 29, 2023

Sujata Rao
Director
DIN: §3478837




Annexure 11

FORM NO. AOC.1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part "A'": Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs in lakhs.)

Sl No. 1 2
Name of the subsidiary Avalor Developers Dhruva Woollen Mills
Private Limited Private Limited

Reporting period for the subsidiary | N.A. N.A.
concerned, if different from the holding
company'sreporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as | N.A. N.A.
on the last date of the relevant financial

ear inthe case of foreign subsidiaries
Share capital 100 31.46
Reserves & surplus -14.69 51,636.80
Total assets 116.69 94,161.96
Total Liabilities 116.69 94,161.96
Investments 0 12,819.71
Turnover 0 8,695.3
Profit/(Loss) before taxation -3.93 6,609.61
Provision for taxation 0 1,720.73
Profit/(Loss) after taxation -3.93 4,948.88
Proposed Dividend 0 0
% of shareholding 100 51.00%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations — N.A.
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. — Sanabh

Ventures Private Limited




=veTter

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures R Mall Developers | R Retail Ventures Wheelabrator
Private Limited Private Limited Alloy Castings
: Limited
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures
heldby the company on the year end
No. 20,37,142 20,31,10,000 8.00,400
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint 463.00 20,313.00 1,720.86
Venture
Extend of Holding % 49.75 50.00 34.26
3. Description of how there is significant Joint Venture Joint Venture Associate
influence
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture
isnot consolidated
5. Net worth atéributable to Shareholding 15,924.26 18,440.35 5,239.60
asper latest audited Balance Sheet
6. Profit / Loss for the year 10787.22 -27,149.20 5939.29
i. Considered in Consolidation 5366.64 -11,828.91 2034.80
i.  Not Considered in Consolidation 5420.58 -15,320.29 3904 .49

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. — N.A.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

—~N.A.
Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be
certified.
For and on hehalf of the Board
Runwal s Private Limited

Sujata Rao
Director
DIN: 03478837

Place : Mumbai
Date : September 29, 2023

-

Qoo 2

Pallavi Matkari
Director
DIN: 08054518




ANNEXURE 1V

CSR ANNEXURE: Part of Directors Report

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company is committed to improving the
quality of life of the underprivileged and
disadvantaged sections of the local community
as well as society at large. This policy has been
developed with an aim to lay down guidelines
for the Company to undertake, implement and
monitor various projects and programs that
ensures sustainable development of the
community within which it exists.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr. Name of Designation/Nature Number of Number of Meetings of
No. Director of Directorship Meetings of CSR committee attended
CSR during the year
Committee
held during the
year
1 | Ms. Pallavi Member i 2
Matkari
2 | Ms. Sujata Rao Member 2 2
3 | Mr. Ravi Sharma* Member 2 2
*Mr. Ravi Sharma ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f. March 31, 2023.
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of | Not Applicable
CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the
website of the company.
. Provide the executive summary along with | Not Applicable

web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8, if applicable.

. a) | Average net profit of the company as per
sub-section (5) of section 135.

%95,75,58,356/-

b) | Two percent of average net profit of the
company as per sub-section (5) of section
135.

%1,91,51,167/-

c¢) | Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or
programmes or activities of the previous
financial years.

d) | Amount required to be set-off for the
financial year, if any,

382,095.58/-

e) | Total CSR obligation for the financial
year [(b)+H(c)-(d)].

%1,91,51,167/-

6.a) | Amount spent on CSR Projects (both
Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing

Project).

31,91,17,904/-




b) | Amount spent in  Administrative | -
Overheads.
¢) | Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if | -
applicable.
d) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year | 1,91,17,904/-
[(@)+(b)+(e)].
¢) | CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount iransferred to any fund specified
Spent  for the CSR Account as per sub-section (6) of under Schedule VII as per second provise to

Financial Year.,

section 135.

sub-section (5) of section 135.

(in Rs.) Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of
transfer
T1,91,17,904/- - - - - -
D) | Excess amount for set-off, if any:
Sl Particular Amount
No. (in Rs.)
(1 2) 3
(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub- | 1,91,51,167/-
section (5) of section 135
(ii) ! Total amount spent for the Financial Year Z1,91,17,904/-
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(i1)-(i)] -
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities
of the previous Financial Years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(ii1)- -
(iv)]
7. | Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
SL Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount Defici
No. Financial transferred to Amount Spent in transferre | remaining o be | ency,

Year(s) Unspent CSR in the dtoa spent in if any
Account under Unspent Financial Fund as succeeding
sub- section (6) CSR Year specified | Financial Years

of Account (in Rs.) under (in Rs.)
section 135 (in under sub- Schedule
Rs.) section (6) VII as per
of second
section 135 (in provise to
Rs.) sub-

section (5}

of section

135, if any
Amo | Dat
unt | eof
(in | Tra

Rs) | nsf

er




1 |2021-22 - - - - - - -
2 202021 - - - - - - -
3 |2019-20 - - - - - - -
8. | Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
O Yes No
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired I I
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
SL Short particulars Pincode | Date of creation | Amount of CSR Details of entity/
No. of the property or of the amount spent Authority/ beneficiary of
asset(s) property the registered owner
or
[inciuding complete asset(s) CSR Name | Reg
address and location Registr iste
of the property] ation red
number Ad
, if dre
applica €88
ble
(1) (2) (3) “ () (6)
N.A.
9. | Specity the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

profit as per sub- section (5) of section 135.

-p

: M2

e
(Chief Executive Officert or Managing
Director or Director)

(Chairman
Committee)

380]

(Wherever applicable)

[Person specified under clause
(d) of sub- section (1) of section







Annexure V

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arran
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of sectio

certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

gements entered into by the company with

n 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

Sr. Particulars Details
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship -
2. | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction -
3. | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction -
4. | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or -
transaction including the value, if any
5. | Justification for entering into such contracts or -
arrangements or transactions’
6. | Date of approval by the Board -
7. | Amount paid as advances, if any -
8. | Date on which the special resolution was passed in -
General meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Sr.
No.

Particulars

RPT-1

RPT-2

RPT-3

1.

Name (s) of the related
party &  nature of
relationship

R Retail Ventures
Private Limited

R Retail Ventures
Private Limited

R Retail Ventures
Private Limited

Nature of
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

availing or
rendering of any
services;

Body  corporate
whose Board of
Directors,

managing

director or
manager 18
accustomed to act
in accordance with
the advice,
directions or
instructions of a

sale, purchase

materials;

Body corporate whose
Board of Directors,
managing director
manager is accustome
to act in accordance
with the advice,
directions o
instructions  of

director or manager

o1
supply of any goods orjsupply of any goods

sale, purchase on

or materials;

Body
whose

corporate
Board of

oﬁirectors, managing

£

irector or manager
is accustomed to act
in accordance with
the advice,
directions or
instructions of a
director or manager




director or
manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4. | Salient terms of the | Business Support [Sale of Materials Purchase of
contracts or arrangements | Services T88,160/- Materials
or transaction including the | ¥3,00,00,000/- 34,18,578/-
value, if any

5. | Date of approval by the 04/04/2022 04/04/2022 04/04/2022
Board

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -
if any

Sr. Particulars RPT-4 RPT-5 RPT-6

No.

1. | Name (s) of the related | Ariane Orgachem Dhruva Woollen Mills [Dhruva Woollen
party &  nature of | Private Limited  [Private Limited Mills Private
relationship Limited

2. | Nature of | availing or sale, purchase otsale, purchase or
contracts/arrangements/tra | rendering of any supply of any goods orsupply of any goods
nsaction services; materials; or materials;

Body corporate Body corporate whoseBody corporate]
whose Board of Board of Directors;whose Board of
Directors, managing director orDirectors, managing
managing director manager is accustomeddirector or manager,
or manager is o act in accordancelis accustomed to act
accustomed to act with  the advice,in accordance with
in accordance with directions orthe advice,
the advice, [instructions  of directions of]
directions or director or manager a’ins‘cructions of &
instructions of a director or manager
director or

manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4. | Salient terms of the | Repairs and [Sale of Materials Purchase of Fixed
contracts or arrangements | Maintenance ¥1,40,415/- Assets
or transaction including the | ¥52,50,926/- 760,540/-
value, if any

5. !Date of approval by the 04/04/2022 04/04/2022 04/04/2022
Board

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -

if any




Sr. Particulars RPT-7 RPT-8 RPT-9
No.

1. | Name (s) of the related | Dhruva Woollen |R Mall Developers  |R Mall Developers
party &  nature  of | Mills Private Private Limited Private Limited
relationship Limited

2. | Nature of | sale, purchase or sale, purchase oravailing of]
contracts/arrangements/tra | supply of any supply of any goods orrendering  of  any
nsaction goods O Imaterials; services;

materials;

Body corporate whoseBody corporate;
Body  corporate Board of Directors/Whose Board of
whose Board of managing Directors, managing
Directors, director or manager  (director or manager,
managing director fis accustomed to act IS accustomed to act
or manager is |in accordance with in accordance with
accustomed to act the advice, directionsgthe advice,
in accordance with |yr instructions of adirections orl
the advice, |director or manager  [instructions of a
directions or director or manager
instructions of a
director or
manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4. | Salient terms of the | Purchase of [Sale of Materials Sale of Solar Power
contracts or arrangements | Materials %26,880/- %5,07,17,036/-
or transaction including the | ¥53,462/-
value, if any

5. | Date of approval by the 04/04/2022 04/04/2022 04/04/2022
Board

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -
if any

Sr. Particulars RPT-10 RPT-11 RPT-12

No.

1. |Name (s) of the related | R Mall R Mall Developers ~ [Wheelabrator Alloy
party &  nature  of | Developers Private Limited Castings Private
relationship Private Limited Limited

2. | Nature of | availing or agvailing or rendering oflavailing o]

contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

rendering of any
services;

Body  corporate
whose Board of
Directors,

managing director
of manager is
accustomed to act
in accordance with
the advice,

any services;

Body corporate whose
Board of Directors,
managing director or
manager is accustomed
to act in accordance
with

the advice, directions
or instructions of a

rendering  of any

Body

whose
Directors, managing]
director or managen

the
directions

director or manager

services;

corporate
Board of

is accustomed to act
in accordance with
advice,

on




directions or
instructions of a

instructions of 4
director or manager

director or
manager
3. | Duration of the FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction
4, | Salient terms of the | Business Support Marketing andAMC
contracts or arrangements | Services Advertisement 22,42,56,824/-
or transaction including the | ¥60,00,000/- Z19,00,00,000/-
value, if any
5. | Date of approval by the 04/04/2022 04/04/2022 04/04/2022
Board
6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -
if any
Sr. Particulars RPT-13 RPT-14 RPT-15
Ne.
1. |Name (s) of the related | Runwal Runwal Constructions [Runwal
party &  nature  of | Constructions Constructions
relationship
2. | Nature of | sale, purchase or jsale, purchase orsale, purchase or
contracts/arrangements/tra | supply of any supply of any goods orsupply of any goods
nsaction goods or materials; or materials;
materials;
Body corporate whoseBody corporate
Body corporate Board of Directors;whose Board of
whose Board of |managing director orDirectors, managing]
Directors, manager is accustomed(director or manager,
managing director to act in accordanceiis accustomed to act
or manager is with the  adviceljin accordance with
accustomed to act directions orthe advice,
in accordance with finstructions  of  adirections of]
the advice, |director or manager  [instructions of a
directions or director or manager
instructions of a :
director or
manager
3. | Duration of the FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction
4. | Salient terms of the | Purchase of Fixed Purchase of Materials [Sale of TDR
contracts or arrangements | Assets 35,49,293/- 77,18,38,278/-
or transaction including the | Z3,61,080/-
value, if any
5. | Date of approval by the 04/04/2022 04/04/2022 04/04/2022
Board
6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -

if any




Sr. Particulars RPT-16
No.

1. |Name (s) of the related | Runwal
party &  nature  of | Constructions

relationship

2. | Nature of | sale, purchase or
contracts/arrangements/tra | supply of any
nsaction goods or

materials;

Body corporate
whose Board of
Direciors,

managing director
or manager is
accustomed to act

in accordance with
the advice,
directions or
instructions of a
director or
manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2022-23
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4. | Salient terms of the | Sale of Materials
contracts or arrangements | ¥12,89,206/-

or transaction including the
value, if any

5. |Date of approval by the 04/04/2022
Board

6. | Amount paid as advances, -
if any

Ao

Pallavi Matkari

Director Director
DIN: 03478837 DIN: 08054518
Mumbai

September 29, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Runwal Developers Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Runwal Developers Private
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31 2023, the
standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the standalone
Statement of Cash Flows and the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its standalone
profit including other comprehensive income, its standalone cash flows and the standalone changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone
financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we
_; he other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
/@/_ith geyernance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board
of Directors. The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the standalone financial position, standalone financial
performance, standalone cash flows and standalone changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management and Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
,\\\GHIf@ expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system

o,
*
o
>
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®

*
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iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We draw attention to note 54 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, regarding share of profit
(net) from investment in partnership firm for the year ended March 31, 2023, included in the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the accounts of such partnership firm except for complying
with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions (revised 2012) are based on the
IGAAP audited financial statement of such entities. These financial statements have been furnished
to us by the Management and our opinion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of this entity, is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
i. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
‘Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

iL-As-required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
GHI ¢
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b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference to these standalone financial statements as on March 31, 2023 and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;

g. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act,
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 on ‘Overall maximum managerial remuneration and
managerial remuneration in case of absence or inadequacy of profits’ is not applicable as this being
a private Company.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements — refer note 43 to the standalone financial statements;

i. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company in accordance to the provision of the Act, and rules made there under.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 60 to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries’) with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, either
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief , as disclosed in
the Note 60 to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, either directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
rty (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
' 3 Beneficiaries.
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Vi.

(c) Based on audit procedures, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
performed by us, we report that nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that

the representations as above contain any material mis-statement.

The Board of Directors have not declared or paid dividend for the year, accordingly, compliance to
section 123 of the Act to the extent, it applies to the declaration of dividend is not required.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable to the Company with

effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Membership Number: 123314
UDIN: 23123314BGWIKQ2574

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2023
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Annexure — A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report

(Referred to in paragraph (i) with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date of Runwal Developers Private Limited)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

i. Inrespect of its Property, Plant & Equipment:

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
operations of the Company and no material discrepancies were noticed during the verification.

c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the
Company.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
Assets) or intangible assets during the year.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii. a)The inventory, comprise of construction raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods. Finished
goods inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable, and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No material discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records.

b) As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. Five crores in aggregate from Banks / financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets. Quarterly returns / statements filed with such Banks / financial
institutions during the year are in agreement with the books of account.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not
given any security and guarantee, however, it has made investments in or granted unsecured loans
and advances in the nature of loans to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and other
parties, in respect of which, our comments are as under:

a) the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, to Companies, Firms, Limited
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Rs. In Lakhs
Advance in
Particulars Guarantees Security Loans nature of
loans
Aggregate amount during the year
-Subsidiaries - - 30.50 -
-Joint ventures - - - -
-Associates - - - -
-Others - - 1,000.60
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
-Subsidiaries - - 31.00 -

-Joint ventures - - - -
(net of counter
guarantee
received)
-Associates - - -
-Others - - 810.60

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made, and the terms and conditions of the grant of
loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Interest
free loans of Rs. 220.50 lakhs (Rs. 31 lakhs as on 31 March 2023) have been given to related parties.

c¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in the case of loans and advances given in the nature of loan, the
principal is repayable on demand and payment of interest is payable at the time of repayment of
principal. As informed to us, the Company has demanded and received repayment of the loan during
the year. Thus, there has been no default on the part of the party to whom the money has been lent.
Further, the Company has given advance in the nature of loan to employees of the company during
the year and these will be adjusted against future salaries of employees.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of
loans given. Further, the Company has given advance in the nature of loan to employees of the
company during the year and these will be adjusted against future salaries of employees.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due
during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues
of existing loans given to same parties.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
to the Promoters and related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act,
") except for the following loans or advances:
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Rs. in lakhs
Particulars All Promoter | Related Other
Parties | Parties Parties Parties
Sec 2 (76)
of the Act

Aggregate of loans / advances of loan
- Repayable on demand (A) 220.50 - 220.50 -
-Agreement does not specify any terms or - - - -
period of Repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 220.50 - 220.50 -
Percentage of loans / advances in nature of | 21.25% 21.25% -
loan to the total loans

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, the company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 (1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect of investments made and loans given by the
Company. Further, as the Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities,
the provisions of section 186 [except for sub-section (1)] are not applicable to it.

v. As per the information and explanation given and verification carried out by us, during the year, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or amount which are deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) rules
2014 (as amended).

vi. The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of
account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however made a detailed examination of
the same.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us:

a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing amounts deducted/accrued in the books of
accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues, including Goods & Service Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Income tax, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other material
statutory dues, as applicable.

b) No undisputed amount payable in respect of above referred act is outstanding as at 31st March
2023, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

c) There are no dues of acts referred above which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute, except as mentioned below:
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Name of the | Nature of dues Period to | Forum where | Amount
Statue which the | dispute is | in
amount pending dispute
relates (In
Lakhs)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2010-11 | Hon'ble High Court | 4,674.58
tax Act, 1961 of Bombay
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2015-16 | Hon'ble High Court 780.61
tax Act, 1961 of Bombay
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2012-13 | Commissioner of 144 .44
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax
(Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2016-17 | Commissioner of 162.65
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax
(Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2017-18 | Commissioner of 13.83
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax
(Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2017-18 | Commissioner of 33.34
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax
(Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2018-19 | Commissioner  of 168.02
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax
(Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2018-19 | Commissioner of 222 .51
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax
(Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2020-21 | Commissioner of | 3,746.44
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax
(Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2021-22 | Commissioner  of 76.20
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax
Chapter V of | Service Tax 2014-15 Joint 12.71
the Finance Commissioner,
Act, 1994 CGST & CX
Chapter V of | Service Tax 2014-15 Joint 96.86
the Finance Commissioner,
Act, 1994 CGST & CX
Chapter V of | Service Tax October Directorate General 192.50
the Finance 2015 to| of Goods and
Act, 1994 September | Service Tax
2016 Intelligence, Zonal
Unit
Chapter V of | Service Tax October Directorate General 166.70
the Finance 2015 to| of Goods and
Act, 1994 January Service Tax
2017 Intelligence, Zonal
Unit
The Transitional July 2017 to | Dy. Comm. of State 31.16
Maharashtra | Credit — SGST March 2018 | Tax (E-643), Large
Goods and Taxpayer's Unit
Service Tax
Act, 2017
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Name of the | Nature of dues Period to which | Forum where | Amount in

Statue the amount | dispute is | dispute (In
relates pending Lakhs)

The Maharashtra | Transitional April 2017 to | Joint 29.21

Goods and | Credit — SGST June 2017 Commissioner

Service Tax Act,

2017

The Maharashtra | Transitional April 2017 to | Assistant 106.73

Goods and | Credit — SGST June 2017 Commissioner of

Service Tax Act, State Tax

2017

The Maharashtra | M-VAT 2015-16 Joint 26.86

Value Added Tax Commissioner of

Act, 2002 State Tax

The Maharashtra | Transitional 2017-18 Joint 125.77

Goods and | Credit — SGST Commissioner

Service Tax Act,

2017

The Maharashtra | Goods & Service | 2017-18 Joint 999.87

Goods and | tax Commissioner

Service Tax Act,

2017

viii. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) Basis the information and explanation provided to us, and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or other lender.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in our opinion term loans availed by the Company were applied during
the year for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) As per the information and explanation provided to us, and procedures performed by us, the
Company has not taken funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiary, associate, or joint venture.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
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X. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to
report under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not raised funds through preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partly or optionally) convertible debentures.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3(x) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xi. a)Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and to the best of our knowledge
and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and
hence requirement to report under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of the Act, where
applicable. This being a private Company, section 177 is not applicable to it. Further, the details of
such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as
required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures.

xiv. a) In our opinion the company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

b) We have taken into consideration, the internal audit reports for the period under audit issued to
the Company till date for determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no CIC in the Group.

Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not incurred the cash losses in the current financial year
and in immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year. Accordingly, the requirement
to report under paragraph 3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
(also refer note 47 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements), ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, undrawn bank facilities available,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.

xx. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification, the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act are applicable to the Company. The Company has made the
required contributions during the year and there are no unspent amounts which are required to be
transferred either to a Fund or to a Special Account as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Act
read with Schedule VII. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no ongoing project as required for discharging the liability of
the Company towards Corporate Social Responsibility. Accordingly, the requirement to report under
paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi. The reporting under paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no reporting under paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order has been
included in this report.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Milind Agal
Partner

UDIN: 23123314BGWIKQ2574

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2023

KOLKATA (H.O) NEW DELHI CHENNAI MUMBAI BANGALORE



Singhi &Z Co.

Chartered Accountants

B2 402 B, Marathon Innova, 4th Floor, Off Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Opp. Peninsula Corporate Park, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013. India
Tel : +91 (0) 22-6662 5537 / 38  E-mail : mumbai@singhico.com website : www.singhico.com
Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the standalone financial
statements of Runwal Developers Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph (ii)(f) under the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Runwal Developers
Private Limited (‘the Company’) as of 315t March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial Statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations’ of management and directors of the Company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Milind Agal
Partner
Membership Number: 123314
UDIN: 23123314BGWIKQ2574

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2023
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2023
CIN NO- U70100MH1988PTC046631
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
- As at As at
Particulars Note 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 7,129.20 7,487.33
Right-of-use asset 4 106.09 107.60
Investment property 5 4,383.88 4,473.42
Other Intangible asset 6 1.42 4.44
Capital work-in-progress 7 58.14 -
Intangible asset under development 8 167.46 -
Financial assets
i) Investments 9 42,970.75 42,735.90
ii) Other financial assets 10 1,467.90 945.40
Other non-current assets 11 20.43 18.32
Non current tax assets 2,990.59 2,473.01
59,295.86 58,245.42
Current assets
Inventories 12 98,152.94 90,907.25
Financial assets
i) Investments 13 12,471.55 9,954.28
ii) Trade receivables 14 653.43 1,132.81
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 15 2,753.40 2,508.73
iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above 16 1,976.12 511.32
v) Loans 17 2,131.22 1,454.03
vi) Other financial assets 18 258.41 6,886.26
Other current assets 19 7,246.69 5,194.71
1,25,643.76 1,18,549.39
Total Assets 1,84,939.62 1,76,794.81
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 20 2,228.90 63.68
Other equity 21 75,567.52 74,459.13
Total Equity 77,796.42 74,522.81
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 22 27,493.62 28,342.09
ii) Lease liabilities 23 3.48 =
Provisions 24 81.87 97.89
Deferred tax liability (net) 25 1,189.33 1,507.90
28,768.30 29,947.88
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 26 4,605.86 9,379.50
ii) Lease liabilities 27 1.23 -
i(ii))Trade payable(zjs ; g ’ 28
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and sma
Snterprises 313.30 101.74
b) total outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises
gn)d small enterprisgs 6,623.43 4,883.05
iv) Other financial liabilities 29 2,417.12 6,177.73
Other current liabilities 30 60,286.58 47,563.18
Provisions 31 34.62 31.61
Current tax liabilities 4,092.76 4,187.31
78,374.90 72,324.12
Total equity and liabilities 1,84,939.62 1,76,794.81
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Singhi & Co. evelopers Private Limited
Chartered Accountants /K /
Firm Regn. No i [N\l g
@ OWW
Milind Agal Sujata Rao Pallavi Matkari
Partner 5 Director Director
Membership No.123314 | & _ DIN: 03478837 DIN : 08054518
Date - 29-09-2023 Date - 29-09-2023
Place - Mumbai Place - Mumbai
S
Sweena Nair
Company Secretary
Membership No.A17636




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023
CIN NO- U70100MH1988PTC046631

Particulars

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income
Expenses

Cost of construction and development expenses
Purcahse of stock in trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods and construction
work-in-proaress

Employee benefits expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Other expenses

Reversal of fair value gain on Investment in Subsidiary

Total Expenses

Profit before tax

Tax (expenses)/credit
Current tax
Tax related to previous year
Deferred tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share

Basic (Face value of Re.1 each)
Diluted (Face value of Re.1 each)

Significant accounting policies

Note

32
33

34
35

37
38
39
40
9

41

2

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise sitated)

For the year ended
31ist March, 2023

For the year ended
31ist March, 2022

19,910.30 43,111.31
1,251.61 3,556.60
21,161.91 46,667.91
14,018.27 28,911.58
501.00 -
(7,192.33) 3,814.88
847.52 904.33
2,657.27 2,205.07
471.77 520.81
5,779.18 2,939.53
: 3,294.16
17,082.68 42,590.36
4,079.23 4,077.55
(1,128.03) (2,054.43)
s 0.23
319.54 (407.92)
3,270.74 1,615.43
3.84 13.02
(0.97) (3.28)
3,273.61 1,625.17
1.47 0.72
1.47 0.72

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regny No

nd
Partner
Membership No.123314
Date - 29-09-2023
Place - Mumbai

For and.on behalf of the board of directors
elopers Private Limited

Ao

Pallavi Matkari
Director
DIN : 08054518

Al

Sujata Rao
Director
DIN: 03478837
Date - 29-09-2023
Place - Mumbai

)
Sweena Nair
Company Secretary
Membership No.A17636




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March,2023
CIN NO- U70100MH1988PTC046631

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
arEeuae 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Operating activities

Profit before tax 4,079.23 4,077.55
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 471.77 520.81
Assets Written Off 66.51 -
Sundry Balance Written Off 74.58
Sundry Balance Written Back (120.02)
Capital Subsidy (9.50)
Finance costs 2,657.27 2,205.07
Deferred Expenses from joint development arrangement 1,098.68 5,505.49
Provision for expected credit loss 214.38 459,25
Reversal of fair value gain on investment in subsidiary - 3,294.16
Provision for employee benefit 19.87 (3.65)
Deferred revenue from joint development arrangement (1,098.68) (5,505.49)
Profit on sale of fixed asset # (1.44)
Fair Value gain on mutual fund (10.58) (1.64)
Finance income (137.66) (322.56)
Share of Profit from partnership and AOPs (396.72) (788.99)
Operating profit before working capital changes 6,209.13 9,438.56
Working capital adjustments
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 193.43 (634.10)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (6,224.34) 4,665.32
(Increase)/decrease in other current and non current financial (5,162.20)
assets 5,436.50
(Increase)/decrease in other current and non current assets (2,562.78) (1,870.38)
Increase /(decrease) in trade payables 2,071.96 71.66
Increase /(decrease) in other current financial liabilities (3,852.35) (10,839.98)
Increase /(decrease) in other current liabilities 12,723.40 18,616.03
(Increase)/decrease in provisions (29.04) =
Changes due to working capital movements 7,756.78 4,846.35
Income Tax Paid (1,740.17) (1,643.91)
Cash Generated from Operations 12,925.74 12,641.00

Investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 7.06
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including CWIP) and (305.88) (59.89)
intangible assets

(Increase)/decrease in Right of Use assets (5.80) (113.57)
Advances against land (given)/repaid (net) 508.69 94.82
Investment in partnership firm (3,111.05) (8,260.29)
Withdrawal of investment from partnership firm = 3,322.73
Investment in equity shares of subsidiary (99.00) (20,079.89)
Investment in equity shares and debentures of joint venture 1,000.00 (1,003.00)
Investment in units of mutual funds (125.27) (61.25)
Redemption/ (increase) in bank deposit (849.56) (814.26)
Loans and advances to related parties and others (given)/repaid 10,232.66
(net) (677.19)

Interest received (finance income) 191.27 295.73
Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities (3,473.79) (16,439.15)

Financing activities

Interest paid (3,586.88) (3,091.03)
Lease Payment 1.71

Repayment of non current borrowings (33,193.48) (16,225.81)
Proceeds from non current borrowings 29,245.42 13,980.08
Proceeds/(repayment) from current borrowings (net) (1,576.78) 3,007.70
Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities (9,110.01) (2,329.06)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 341.94 (6,127.21)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,386.34 8,513.55

Cash and cash equivalents at the end 2,728.28 2,386.34




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March,2023
CIN NO- U70100MH1988PTC046631

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Componants of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 14)

a) Balance with banks in current accounts 2,185.32 1,400.47
b) Balance with banks in deposit accounts with original maturity 519.41 1,059.67
less than three months
¢) Cash on hand 48.67 48.59
Total 2,753.40 2,508.73
Less: Book overdraft considered as cash and cash equivalent (25.12) (122.39)
for cash flow
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,728.28 2,386.34

Notes:

a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Ind AS 7, ‘Statement
of Cash Flows’.

b) Reconciliations of liablities arising from financing activities :

As at As at

Particulars 31ist March , 2023 31st March, 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 37,599.20 36,855.67
Cash flow (5,524.84) 761.97
Non cash changes - (18.44)
Balance at the end of the year 32,074.36 37,599.20

As per our report of even date attached
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No 302049E

For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Runwal,Developers Private Limited

o

Pallavi Matkari

Milind Agal Sujata‘Rao

Partner

Membership No.12331
Date - 29-09-2023
Place - Mumbai

Director

DIN: 03478837
Date - 29-09-2023
Place - Mumbai

gwwv"“

Sweena Nair
Company Secretary
Membership No.A17636

Director
DIN : 08054518
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Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

1. General information

Runwal Developers Private Limited ("the Company") is incorporated under the Companies Act 1956. The
Company is engaged primarily in the business of real estate construction, development and other related
activities along with this the Company is also into the business of leasing of mall, windmill power generation
and solar power generation.

The Company is a private limited company incorporated in the year 1988 and domiciled in India having its
registered office at Runwal and Omkar Esquare, 5th Floor, Off. Eastern Express Highway, Opp. Sion
Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai - 400022.

These standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2023, were
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors vide Board meeting held on dated 29t September 2023.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
I. Basis of preparation
a. Compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
read with Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III),
as applicable to this financial statements.

b. Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
e Certain Financial instruments are measured at fair value

c. Preparation of financial statement

As per the format prescribed under Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
presents the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cashflow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Standalone Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

i) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

ii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.
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All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
i) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The operating cycle of the Company's real estate operations varies from project
to project depending on the size of the project, type of development, project complexities and related
approvals. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current based
on the operating cycle of the project. All other assets and liabilities have been classified into current and
non-current based on a period of twelve months.

e. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (“INR”) which is also the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs.

II. Use of accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, management of the Company is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant
notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial
statements.

Following are the key areas of judgements, assumptions and estimates which have significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements:

a. Estimation of net realisable value (NRV) for inventory
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV).

NRV of completed or developed inventory is assessed by reference to market conditions, prices and trends
existing at the reporting date and is determined by the company based on comparable transactions
observed /identified for similar properties in the same geographical market serving the same real estate
segment.
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NRV in respect of inventory under development is assessed with reference to market prices and trends
existing at the reporting date for similar completed property, less the estimated cost to complete
construction and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion.

Estimated cost to complete is reviewed at each year end by considering cost escalation and overruns basis
the progress of the project.

b. Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

c. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
for impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

d. Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule 1II,
they are based on technical advice. Assumptions also need to be made when the Company assesses
whether an asset may be capitalised and which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.

e. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key
actuarial assumptions include discount rate, expected return on plan assets, trends in salary escalation and
attrition rate. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable
maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations.

f. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of the financial assets and liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on the quoted market prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technique.
The inputs to these models are taken from the observable market wherever possible, but where this is not
feasible, a review of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Any changes in assumptions could
affect the fair value relating to financial instruments.
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g. Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies. For
contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial
statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as
Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not
disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has been
resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

h. Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax-loss carry forwards and unused tax credits to the extent
that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The assessment of the probability with regard to the
realisation of the tax benefit involves assumptions based on the history of the entity and budgeted data for
the future.

III. Measurement of fair values

The Company measures financial instruments, such as certain investments at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The
Management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information is used to measure fair values, then the Management assesses the evidence obtained from
third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the
level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable
market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
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Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

IV. Property, plant and equipment & depreciation
a. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The Cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises of:

i. its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade
discounts and rebates.

ii. any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by Management.

iii. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it
is located, the obligation for which the Company incurs either when the item is acquired or as a
consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce
inventories during that period.

iv. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition / construction / development of Property, Plant and Equipment,
which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they
relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

v. Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by Management are
recognised in Statement of profit and Loss. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment.

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is added to its book value
only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. All other expenses on existing Property, Plant and Equipment, including repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Expenses incurred for acquisition of capital assets excluding advances paid towards the acquisition of
Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed under Capital Work
in Progress.

Capital Work in Progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at cost,
comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.
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Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss of the Company in the year of disposal.

¢. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided from the date the assets are ready to be put to use on straight line method as per
the useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment including property held as Investment as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is calculated on a prorata basis from the date of installation / acquisition till the date the assets
are sold or disposed.

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset or amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value.

Nature of the asset Useful life
Computers 3 years
Plant & Machinery

Solar 25 years
Windmill 22 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Vehicle 8 years
Furniture and Fittings 10 years

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically.

d. Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any Gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is
derecognised.

V. Investment properties

Building, that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not in use
by the Company, is classified as Investment Property. Investment property is measured initially at its
acquisition cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an Investment
property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The carrying amount of
investment property is reviewed periodically for impairment based on internal and external factors. An
impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use.

Investment properties (Building) are depreciated on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are in line with Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, in order
to reflect the actual usage of the assets.
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Initial direct costs incurred by the Company in negotiating and arranging an operating lease shall be added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as the lease income.

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method to allocate the cost of assets, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful life of investment property is 60 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the same period.

VI. Intangible assets
a. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost
of an intangible asset comprises of its purchase price including any import duties and other taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities) and any directly attributable expenditure
on making the asset ready for its intended use.

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will fl ow to the Company.

c. Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, from the date the
asset is available to the Company for its use. The amortisation period and the amortization method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed atleast at the end of each reporting period.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Nature of the asset Amortisation period
Computer software (ERP) 10 years - license period
Computer software (other than ERP) 3 years

d. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as
income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

VII. Foreign currency transactions / translations

a. Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the closing rate prevailing on the dates of the respectlve
transactions or at the contracted rates as applicable.

b. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated
into the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.

¢. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at
rates different-from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in

H [
S
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previous financial statements are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
arise.

VIII. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities measured
at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

a. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place. All recognised
financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

i. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method if
these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in
equity instruments, other than equity investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other
comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
investments.

iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on
initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for
investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading. Other financial assets are measured at
fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition.
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iv. Investment in associates

Investment in associates are measured at cost less impairment as per Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial
Statements.

v. Impairment of investments

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently when
there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is accounted in the statement of profit and loss.

vi. Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

- the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement? and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

vii. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance.
The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that
do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured
at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected
credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

viii. Step acquisitions (subsidiary is acquired in stages):

When the initial investment made by the Company in any other entity was not falling under the category
of an associate, joint venture or subsidiary of the entity, cost of such entity gets accounted for in accordance
with Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments” at fair value.

When such an entity becomes a subsidiary, the Company accounts for the cost of the investment in the
subsidiary as the sum of the consideration paid for the initial interest, plus any consideration paid for the
additional interest (accumulated cost approach).

When the accumulated cost approach is applied, the Company recognises the difference between the fair
value of th ,i»nm'?Hnterest at the date of obtaining control of the subsidiary and its original consideration
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in profit or loss, regardless of whether, before obtaining control, the initial investment had been measured
at fair value through profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI).

b. Financial liabilities and equity instruments
i. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

ii. Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

iii. Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of financial liabilities at amortised cost,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) amortisation
process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

iv. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

c. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassify cation is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change
in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of
external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident
to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to
perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies
the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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d. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

IX. Inventories

Direct expenditure relating to Real Estate Development activity is inventorized. Other expenditure (including
borrowing costs) during construction period is inventorized to the extent the expenditure is directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Other expenditure
(including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not directly attributable for
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use is charged to the statement of profit and
loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on specific identification to the construction and
real estate activity. Cost incurred/ items purchased specifically for projects are taken as consumed as and
when incurred/ received.

a. Inventories comprise of: (i) Finished Realty Stock representing unsold premises in completed projects
(ii) Realty Work in Progress representing properties under construction /development including land held
for development on which construction activities are yet to commence (iii) Transferable development rights
(TDRs)

b. Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

c. Cost of Realty construction / development is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in proportion
to the revenue recognised during the period and the balance cost is carried over under Inventory as part
of either Realty Work in Progress or Finished Realty Stock. Cost of Realty construction / development
includes all costs directly related to the Project (including finance cost attributable to the project) and other
expenditure as identified by the Management which are incurred for the purpose of executing and securing
the completion of the Project (net off incidental recoveries / receipts) upto the date of receipt of Occupation
Certificate of Project from the relevant authorities.

Realty Work in Progress includes cost of land, premium for development rights, transferable development
rights (TDR), construction costs, allocated interest and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by
the Company.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

X. Revenue recognition

a. The Company has applied five step model as set out in Ind AS 115 to recognise revenue in this Financial
Statements: '

Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or
more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that
must be met.

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.
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Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance
as the Company performs; or

- The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

- The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the
point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time and over a period of time based on the conditions in the
contracts with customers.

The specific revenue recognition criteria are described below:
(i) Income from Property Development

The Company has determined that the existing terms of the contract with customers does not meet the
criteria to recognise revenue over a period of time. Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to
contracts for sale of residential and commercial units as and when the control is passed on to the customers
which is linked to the receipt of occupancy certificate and on issuing the possession letter of the property.

(ii) Sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights

Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land and Development
Rights as and when the control is passed on to the customers.

(iii) Income from Investment in Partnership Firms & LLP, AOPs

Share of profit / loss in Partnership firms is recognized when the right to receive is established as per
agreement / agreed terms between all the partners / members.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is accounted on an accrual basis at effective interest rate (EIR method).

(v) Rental Income
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(vi) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.
b. Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer.
If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

¢. Cost to obtain a contract

The Company recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if the
Company expects to recover those costs. The Company incurs costs such as sales commission when it
enters into a new contract, which are directly related to winning the contract.

d. Joint development arrangement

The Company executes projects through Joint Development Arrangements (JDA), wherein the land owner
provides land and the Company undertakes to develop properties on such land (i.e. development right)
and in lieu of land owner providing land, the Company has agreed to transfer certain percentage of
constructed area or certain percentage of the revenue proceeds or certain percentage of surplus to the
land owner. Transfer of such constructed area or revenue or surplus in exchange of such development
rights/ land is being estimated at fair value as per the terms of the agreement and accounted for on launch
of the project as the cost of development right (Inventory) with its corresponding liability. When the fair
value of the land cannot be measured reliably, the revenue and cost is measured at the fair value of the
estimated construction service rendered to the landowner adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash
equivalents transferred. Subsequent to initial recognition, such liability is remeasured on each reporting
period depending on the type of the arrangement, to reflect the changes in the estimate, if any.

In case of JD arrangements, where performance obligation is satisfied over time, the Company recognizes
revenue only when it can reasonably measure its progress in satisfying the performance obligation. Until
such time, the Company recognizes revenue to the extent of cost incurred, provided the Company expects
to recover the costs incurred towards satisfying the performance obligation.

XI Income tax

a. Current income tax:

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the
period.

b. Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for all deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred tax arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of transaction.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax asset in respect of carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses are recognized
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized.

c. Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognized in OCI, in which case, the current and deferred tax
income/ expense are recognized in OCIL. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set
off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

XII Employee benefits

a. Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for
the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

b. Post-employment benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available.
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(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

Payment of Gratuity to employees is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. Provision for Gratuity is
recorded on the basis of actuarial valuation certificate provided by the actuary using Projected Unit Credit
Method.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and losses and the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest) are
recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Net interest expense/ (income) on the net
defined liability / (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined
liability / (asset). Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the settlement occurs.

a. Other long term employee benefits

The Company's liability towards compensated absences is determined by an independent actuary using
Projected Unit Credit Method. Past services are recognised on a straight line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement
of profit and Loss as income or expense or recognized under Other Comprehensive Income to the extent
such actuarial gains or losses arise due to experience adjustments. Obligation is measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to the
market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Government Bonds where the currency and terms of the
Government Bonds are consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.

XIII Leases
a. Where Company is the lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
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payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets.

ii. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii. Short term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

a. Where Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

XIV Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing.

Borrowing costs allocated to qualifying assets pertains to the period from commencement of activities
relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset upto the time all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Borrowing cost are suspended from inventorisation/capitalisation when development work on the
project/assets is interrupted for extended period and there is no imminent certainty of recommencement
of work.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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XV Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent as reported in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. However, for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
of cash and short term deposits as defined in Ind AS 7.

XVI Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year is adjusted for the events for bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to
existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income (net off any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

XVII Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Contingent liabilities are disclosed for:

(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or

(i) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in Financial Statements. If an inflow of economic benefits has become
probable, contingent assets are disclosed.

Contingent Assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the
Financial Statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
asset and the related income are recognised in the Financial Statements of the period in which the changes
occurs.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date.
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XVIII Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

Accordingly, the Company has identified following as its reportable segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108:
a) Real estate segment;

b) Lease rental activity;

c¢) Power generation

Real Estate segment (RE) comprises development of land, sale of land, sale of Transferable Development
Rights (TDRs) and operation of all or any part of townships, housing projects. Lease rental comprises the
rental of properties as Shopping Malls. Power generation is through Solar and Wind Mill.

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss
in the financial statements. Also, the Company’s financing (including finance costs and finance income) and
income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are not allocated to operating segments. Transfer prices
between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third
parties.

XIX Business combinations

The Company applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations for the businesses
which are not under common control. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Company elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the
fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

a) Deferred tax assets or liabilities and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 ‘Income Tax’ and Ind
AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ respectively.

b) Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the
acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are
accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

c) Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual
term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired
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Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate Ind AS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the group are accounted for using the
pooling of interests method as follows:

e The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

e No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. Adjustments
are only made to harmonise accounting policies.

e The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the
business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements,
irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the business combination had occurred
after that date, the prior period information is restated only from that date.

e The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated
with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee or is adjusted against
general reserve.

e The identity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the
transferee.

e The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is
transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves.
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Note 4
Right of use asset

Particulars

Gross block

As at 01st April, 2021
Additions
Disposals/adjustments
As at 31st March, 2022
Additions
Disposals/adjustments
As at 31st March,2023

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01st April, 2021
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31st March, 2022
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31st March,2023

Net block

As at 31st March,2023
As at 31st March, 2022
(Refer note - 52)

Note 5
Investment property*

Particulars

Gross block

As at O1st April, 2021
Additions
Disposals/adjustments
As at 31st March, 2022
Additions

Disposals

As at 31st March,2023

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01st April, 2021
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31st March, 2022
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31st March,2023

Net block
As at 31st March,2023
As at 31st March, 2022

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Land Total
113.57 113.57
113.57 113.57
5.80 5.80
119.37 119.37
5.97 5.97
5.97 5.97
7.31 7.31
13.28 13.28
106.09 106.09
107.60 107.60
Land Buildings Total

- 5,008.31 5,008.31

151.95 = 151.95

= (151.95) (151.95)

151.95 4,856.36 5,008.31

151.95 4,856.36 5,008.31

- 460.35 460.35

= 74.54 74.54

- 534.89 534.89

- 89.54 89.54

- 624.43 624.43

151.95 4,231.93 4,383.88

151.95 4,321.47 4,473.42

Information regarding income and expenditure of investment property

. For the Year ended 31st For the Year ended
Particulars

March,2023 31st March, 2022
Rental income derived from investment
property 907.02 420.51
Direct operating expenses 654.12 764.66
Profit/(loss) arising from investment
property before depreciation 252.90 (344.15)
Less: Depreciation 89.54 74.54
Profit/(Loss) arising from investment
property 163.36 (418.69)

* The Company’s investment property consists of commercial properties of Rmall mulund & Runwal odeon mall.
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Leasing arrangements
The Company has given mall premises on lease which includes both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of the leases are
renewable for further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses. The rental income in respect of leases is
disclosed as 'License fees and rental income' in note 32. With respect to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease
payments are as follows:

Particulars Al at As at

31st March, 2023 3ist March, 2022
Within one year 693.98 577.10
Later than one year but not later than 5
years 613.79 675.98

Contingent rent recognised as income - Rs. 87.22 Lakhs (31st March, 2022: Rs. 41.54 Lakhs)

The Company has no restriction on the realisability of its investment property and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or
develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

The valuation of property have been determined by independent valuers registered as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registeered
Valuers of Valuation) Rules, 2017. The calculation has been conducted through a Sale comparision technique. Under this approach the
market value has been obtained by considering value of comparable property having same utility & attraction. Under this method
average rate for estimated leasable area has been obtained from various sale instances for similar properties after adjusting it for
various factors as size, discount, rates, local attributes, good frontage positive and negative factors associated with the property under
valuation. All resulting fair value estimates for investment are included in leve! 2.

Fair valuation of commercial properties for land and building together is based on Sales comparison method which is

¥ 19,019 Lakhs (31st March, 2022 Rs.19,070 lakhs) as per valuation report for the period ended 31st March, 2023 respectively.
On adoption of IND AS, inventory given on lease rental is classified under head investment properties as per para 57 of Ind AS 40.

The carrying amount of investment properties charged as securities against borrowings amounts to Rs. 4,231.93 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs.
3,016.98 Lakhs)

Note 6

Other Intangible assets

Particulars Computer software Total

Gross block

As at 01st April, 2021 28.89 28.89
Additions 2.93 2.93
Disposals & =
As at 31st March, 2022 31.82 31.82
Additions 0.53 0.53
Disposals - -
As at 31st March,2023 32.35 32.35
Accumulated amortisation

As at 01st April, 2021 19.04 19.04
Amortisation charge for the year 8.34 8.34
Disposals = -
As at 31st March, 2022 27.38 27.38
Amortisation charge for the year 3.55 3.55
Disposals - -
As at 31st March,2023 30.93 30.93
Net block

As at 31st March,2023 1.42 1.42

As at 31st March, 2022 4.44 4.44
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Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31ist March, 2023

Note 9
Non current investments
A. Investments measured at cost

1. In equity shares of subsidiary companies
Unquoted, fully paid up

Avalor Developers Private Limited

(C.y. 10,00,000 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y.
10,000 shares of Rs 10 each)

Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited*

(C.Y. 1,60,424 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y.
1,60,424 shares of Rs. 10 each)

2. Investment in partnership firms - fixed
capital account®**

Subsidiary

Runwal Constructions

3. In equity shares of joint venture companies
Unquoted, fully paid up

R mall Developers Private Limited -Class A

(C.Y. 19,90,000 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y.
19,90,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)

R mall Developers Private Limited -Class B

C.Y. 47,142 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y. 47,142
shares of Rs. 10 each)

R Retail Ventures Private Limited

C.y. 20,31,10,000 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y.
10,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)

(Also refer note 55)**

4. In equity shares of associate companies
Unquoted, fully paid up

Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited

(C.Y. 8,00,400 shares of Rs. 100 each; P.Y.
8,00,400 shares of Rs. 100 each)

5. In preference shares of joint venture companies
Unquoted, fully paid up

** R Retail Ventures Private Limited

CCPS series 2 0.01% preference shares

(C.Y. Nil shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y.
20,31,00,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)

(Also refer note 55)

Total of investments measured at cost

B. Investments measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

1. In mutual fund
Aditya birla sun life saving fund - growth - direct plan
( C.Y 42,632.729 units, P.Y. 48,086.93 units)

Total of investments measured at fair value through profit and loss

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

100.00 1.00
20,080.15 20,080.15
20,180.15 20,081.15
95.00 95.00
95.00 95.00
199.00 199.00
264.00 264.00
20,313.00 3.00
20,776.00 466.00
1,720.86 1720.86
1720.86 1720.86

- 20,310.00

- 20,310.00
42,772.01 42,673.01
198.74 62.89
198.74 62.89
42,970.75 42,735.90

*During the previous year further investment of 1,34,557 equity shares was made in Dhruva Woollen Mills Pvt, Ltd. (DWMPL) at a consideration of Rs.
20,079.89 lakhs. Pursuant to such further investment, it has become a subsidiary of the Company. And accordingly, the investments in DWMPL have been
reclassified at cost, as investment in subsidiaries are being measured at cost. In the earlier years, it was measured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income, as it was classified as Investment in Others. As this, investment has now been measured at cost, the accumulated fair value gain
which was recognised till 31st March, 2021 through OCI, which aggregates to Rs.3,294.16 lakhs have been reversed and routed through profit and loss

account in the financial year 2021-22 by following the concept of accumulated cost approach.

** During the year investment of R Retail Ventures Private Limited CCPL Series 2 - 0.01% preference shares of Rs.20,310 Lakhs equivalent to 20,31,00,000
shares of Rs.10/- each converted into equity shares of Rs.20,310 Lakhs equivalent 20,31,00,000 equity shares of Rs,10 each approved through Board

Resolution.




-Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

*** Details about investment in partnership firm

Total capital of the firm (fixed and current capital)

Name of the partners and their profit sharing ratios

1.Runwal Developers Private Limited
2.Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Note 10
Other non-current financial assets
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

To parties other than related parties
Security deposits#
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity *

# Security deposits are towards utility deposits, earnest money deposits and towards other deposits.

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Runwal
Constructions

Runwal
Constructions

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
3ist March, 2022

18,236.70 17,855.91
18,236.70 17,855.91
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
95.00% 95.00%
5.00% 5.00%
100.00% 100.00%
198.74 62.89
42,772.01 42,673.01
As at As at

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

* Bank deposits held as margin money and lien marked for issuing bank guarantees amounting to INR 80 lakhs (PY Nil)

Note 11
Other non-current assets
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

To related parties
Security deposit #

# Securities deposits will be adjusted against the land for which the amount is given.

Note 12
Inventories (valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Raw material

Construction work in progress

Finished goods

Entitlement of transferable development rights
Stock in trade

The carrying amount of inventories charged as securities against borrowings

1,377.90 240.16
90.00 705.24
1,467.90 945.40

As at As at

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

20.43

18.32

20.43

18.32

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

125.06 71.70
78,091.74 66,236.85
19,435.14 23,880.32

- 718.38

501.00 -

98,152.94 90,907.25
40,097.90 50,608.30




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 13
Current investments

Investments measured at cost

Investment in partnership firm - current account

Subsidiary
Runwal Constructions #

# Partner In Runwal Constructions with effect from 1st October, 2021

Investment in debentures of joint venture - unquoted, fully paid up

R Mall Developers Private Limited*

(1,000 Non-convertible debentures of face value of INR 1,00,000)

* Debentures of Rs 500 lakhs redeemed in July, 2022 and balance redeemed in August, 2022.

Agaregate amount of unquoted investments

Note 14

Trade receivables
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, significant increase in credit risk/credit impaired
Less : allowance for significant increase in credit risk/credit impaired

Ageing of trade receivables :

A) Ageing for the 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31ist March, 2022

12,471.55 8,954.28

= 1,000.00

12,471.55 9,954.28

12,471.55 9,954.28
As at As at

31st March, 2023

31ist March, 2022

101.91
551,52
451.63

(451.63)

358.23

540.10

474.74
(240.26)

653.43

1,132.81

Particular

Less than 6 months

6 months
- 1year

1-2
years

2-3
years

More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables
Considered good

Which have significant increase in credit risk
Credit impaired

Disputed trade receivables

Considered good

Which have significant increase in credit risk
Credit impaired

Allowance for significant increase in credit
risk/credit impaired

510.92

23.97
123.01

(123.01)

21.10
83.21

(83.21)

19.11
112.46

(112.46)

78.33
132.95

(132.95)

653.43
451.63

(451.63)

Total

510.92

23.97

21.10

19.11

78.33

653.43

B) Ageing for the 31st March 2022

Particular

Less than 6 months

6 months
-1 year

1-2
years

2-3
years

More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables

Considered good

Which have significant increase in credit risk
Credit impaired

Disputed trade receivables

Considered good

Which have significant increase in credit risk
Credit impaired

Allowance for significant increase in credit
risk/credit impaired

454.71
146.80

110.98
93.89

(30.31)

90.46
137.65

(116.05)

90.73
48.22

(42.02)

111.45
48.18

(51.88)

(240.26)

Total

641.51

174.56

112.06

96.93

107.75

1,132.81

There is unbilled trade receivables of Rs.46.73 Lakhs for the month of March, 2023 (P.Y. Rs.Nil)




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 15
Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

In current accounts *

In deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March, 2023

As at

31st March, 2022

2,185.32 1,400.47
519.41 1,059.67
48.67 48.59
2,753.40 2,508.73

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company and

earns interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

*Includes Rs. 228.28 lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs. 307.75 Lakhs) held in escrow account for a project under Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act,

2016 (“RERA"). The money can be utilised for payments of the specified projects.

Note 16
Bank balances other than above

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months#

# Bank deposits held as margin money and lien marked for issuing bank guarantees amounting to INR 164.43 lakhs (PY INR 9.30 lakhs)

Note 17

Loans

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
To related parties

Inter corporate deposit*

To parties other than related parties
Security deposit
Inter corporate deposit **

* Inter corporate deposits given to related parties are repayable on demand. (refer note no 46)

As at
31st March, 2023

As at

31st March, 2022

1,976.12

511.32

1,976.12

511.32

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31ist March, 2022

31.00 0.50
1,289.62 811.30
810.60 642.23
2,131.22 1,454.03

** Inter corporate deposits given to parties other than related parties have rate of interest of 12% p.a. which Rs.150 Lakhs repayable on or before 01-08-
2023 & further Rs.150 Lakhs on or before 01-12-2023 and parties have rate of interest of 9% p.a which repayable within 3 years from date of agreement.

As at
31st March, 2023

Amount outstanding % of Total

Type of Borrower

Promoters = =
Directors = -
KMP's -
Related Parties 31.00 1.45
Total 31.00 1.45

Note 18
Other current financial assets
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

To related parties
Balance receivable as retired partner
Security deposit

To parties other than related parties
Other advances#

Interest accrued but not due

Loans and advances to employees

As at

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2023

Amount outstanding % of Total
0.50 0.03
0.50 0.03
As at As at

31ist March, 2022

- 661.45

- 5,923.93
219.43 189.52
34.51 88.12
4.47 23.24
258.41 6,886.26




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Note 19
Other current assets
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
To parties other than related parties
Advance to suppliers and contractor 2,070.69 1,459.40
Advance against flats 1,080.99 506.51
Balances with statutory authorities 412.14 7.01
Prepaid expenses 77.81 53.02
Advance for land/others# 712.90 1,221.59
Deferred brokerage 2,892.16 1,947.18

7,246.69 5,194.71

# Advances against land/others are towards purchase commitments, are non - interest bearing in nature and shall be settled against future purchase of such
assets.
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

Note 21
Other equity

Capital reserve

Balance as at 01st April, 2021
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2022
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Capital redemption reserve

Balance as at 01st April, 2021

Movement during the year

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Creation on redemption of prefernce shares
Amount utilised for issuance of Bonus Shares
Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Securities premium

Balance as at O1st April, 2021
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Creation of CRR (362.00)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 23,839.78
General reserve

Balance as at O1st April, 2021 225.00
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 225.00
Movement during the year (225.00)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 -
Retained earnings

Balance as at O1st April, 2021 79,781.40
Profit for the year ended 31st March, 2022 1,615.43
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans(net of tax) 9.74
Fair value gain on instrument subsequently measured at fair 2321.37
value through other comprehensive income ! ’
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 83,727.94
Profit for the year ended 31st March, 2023 3,270.74
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans(net of tax) 2.87
Fair value gain transferred to retained earnings on

reclassification of investment -
Transfer/utilisation of reserves (CRR) (1,578.22)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 85,423.33
Equity instruments through other comprehensive

income

Balance as at O1st April, 2021 2,321.37

Fair value gain transferred to retained earnings on
reclassification of investment

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Fair value gain transferred to retained earnings on
reclassification of investment

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Total Other Equity
At 01 April 2021

At 31st March 2022
At 31st March, 2023

(33,695.59)

(33,695.59)

(33,695.59)

1,803.22
(1,803.22)

24,201.78

24,201.78

(2,321.37)

72,833.96
74,459.13
75,567.52




Nature and purpose of reserves
1) Capital reserve

Capital reserve comprises of Rs.35,718 lakhs on account of merger in the year 2018-19 of Runwal Realty Private Limited ("RRPL"),
Runwal Projects Private Limited ("RPPL") and Runwal Township Private Limited ("RTPL")have merged into Runwal Developers

Private Limited resulting into a negative capital reserve of Rs. 10,175 lakhs, negative capital reserve of 28,640 lakhs and a positive
capital reserve of Rs. 3,097 lakhs.

2) General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general
reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items
included in general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.

3) Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profit that the Company (including all merged entities) has earned till date, less any dividends or other
distributions paid to shareholders.

4) Securities premium
On account of merger of RRPL and RPPL being accounted for using the pooling of interest method, the securities premium of the
respective companies as appearing on the appointed date of merger is merged into RDPL's reserves.

5) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income includes the fair value gain or loss of investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income as per Ind AS 109 - "Financial Instruments".

6) Capital redemption reserve

During the year capital redemption reserve created out of general reserve & retained earnings for the redemption of preference
share.It will be utilised for issue of bonus shares during the period.




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes ta

financial st

Note 22

Non-current financial liabilities- borrowings (at amortised cost)

Secured:
Term loans
From banks
From others
Vehicle loan from bank

s for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Less: Amount disclosed under current borrowings as current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 26)

Less: Unamartised borrawing cost

Unsecured

7% Redeemable preference shares™

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

8,113.95 9,173.87
19,789.61 22,556.63
29.72 46.65
(416.07) (3,499.96)
(23.59) ®
= 64.90
27,493.62 28,342.09
27,493.62 28,342.09

= The Company had issued 6,49,000 7% Redeemable Non - cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each on 30th November, 2019 in consideration of amalgamation of RTPL, RPPL and RRPL
with RDPL on 30th November, 2019. The RPS shall be redeemable at par at the option of transferee company anytime after five (5) years but before 20 years from the date of allotment. On
26th September, 2022 with the approval of Board of Directors of the Company, these preference shares have been redeemed.

A. Secured loans from banks:

Sr. |[Loan taken from Outstanding |Rate of interest Secured against/ guarantee given Terms of repayment
no
1 |Bank of Baroda - loan A/c no.|C.Y. - Nil 8.65% Term loan under future rent receivable scheme of Bank|Monthly EMI of Rs.47,65,000 till January 2024, last EMI
04160600020468 (P.Y. of Baroda , Secured by Agreement of assignment of rent|on 29th February, 2024 of Rs.25,37,662
992.55) receivables and equitable mortgage of some commercial
shops situated in R-Odeon Mall, Ghatkopar East,
admeasuring a leasable area of 53,505 sq.ft.
2 (Bank of Baroda - loan A/c no.|C.Y. - Nil B8.65% Secured by lease rentals of Rmall mulund. Monthly EMI of Rs.54,76,200 till January 2024, last EMI
04160600020469 (P.Y. on 29th February, 2024 of Rs.59,60,248
1166 14)
3 |Bank of Baroda car loan|C.Y. - 3.08 7.60% Car - maruti suzuki new wagon R LXI (0) CNG 36 Months EMI start from Septermber,2021 till August,
account 03810600002072 (P.Y. - 5.04) 2024
4 |Bank of Baroda loan A/c no.[C.Y. - Nil B8.65% Term loan under future rent receivable scheme of Bank|Monthly EMI of Rs.12,91,600 till June 2022,
04160600020606 (P.Y. N of Baroda, Secured by Agreement of assignment of rent|'July 2022 to December 2023- Rs. 18,11,000/-
1,442.68) recejvables and equitable mortgage of some commercial|{January 2024 to May 2026- Rs. 44,68,375/-
shops situated at R-Odeon Mall, Ghatkopar East,|last EMI on 30th June, 2026 of Rs.1,10,75,063/-
admeasuring a leasable area of 53,505 sq.ft.
5 |Bank of Baroda loan A/c no.[C.Y. - Nil 8.65% Secured by lease rentals of Rmall mulund. Monthly EMI of Rs.35,47,812 till December 2021,
04160600020607 (P.Y. = January 2022 to June 2023- Rs. 44,99,770/-
3,796.37) July 2023 to November 2025- Rs. 1,19,31,240/-
last EMI on 31st Decemnber,2025 of Rs.3,91,90,025.03/-
6 |ICICI Bank Ltd car loan -[C.Y.-43.55 7.50% Car - Mercedes-benz 60 Months EMI start from January, 2021 till December,
LAMUMOQ0042576930 (P.Y.-57.31) 2025
7 |Union Bank of India loan a/c|C.Y. = 13.75% 1. 'Land & building Repayable in 109 monthly instalments of Rs. 30,47,500/-
319306390000013. 1,731.43 2. Hypothecation of plant and machinery and other asset|each commencing from 28th February 2018.
(P.Y. - created out of bank finance.
2,123.55)
8 |ICICI Bank Ltd loan C.Y. - Nil 1.11.25% 1. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on|1. Repayment of RTL I & II in 10 monthly installments
RTL1I (PY: = the Property (Nirvana Project) 257,453 sq. ft. excluding|commencing from 15th November, 2021.
1. 603030002692 3,152.54) 2. 11.25% (15 June,22 to |saleable area of approximately 107,242 sqg. ft. t be|2. Repayment of RTL III in 24 monthly instalments
2. 603090002709 26 June,22) & 10.85% (27 |surrendered to the Property Owner. commencing from 15th December, 2021.
RTLII June, 22 to 14 July, 22) |2. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on
1. 603090002710 development rights of All the piece & parcel of land
2. 603090002711 3.15 July,22 onwards  |located at Survey No. 3/2468, Cadastral Survey No. 662
3. 603090002712 10.85% of Parel - Sewri Division, situated at G.D. Ambedkar
4. 603098009633 Road ‘(formerly known as Parel Tank Road) within the
RTL III Registration District of Mumibai City and Mumbai
1. 603090011898 Suburban admeasuring approximately 8,627.99 square
2. 603090015401 meters ("sq. mtrs."), including all the structures thereon
3. 603090009627 both present & future but excluding rehab building A
4. 603090009848 having area of approximately 132,698 square feet ('sq.
5. 603090009944 ft.").
6. 603090010283
8. 603090010444 3. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on
9. 603090016739 the Scheduled Receivables and all insurance proceeds,
10. 603098009741 both present and future.
4. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on
security of all rights, title, interest, claims, benefits,
demands under all the documents pertaining to the
Project Documents both present and future.
5. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on
the Escrow Account and the DSR Account along with all
monies credited/deposited therein (in whatever form the
same may be), and all investments in respect thereof (in
whatever form the same mav he)
9 |Indian Bank-RDPL(Malls) Loan|C.Y. s 8.20% 1. Exclusive Charge on Assignment of Rent Receivables|As per sanction letter repayment in 180 Installments as
a/c no.7298602335 6,365.60 out of the below mentioned Properties. follows:
(P.Y. - Nil) 2. Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the|1. 7 Installments of 7 Lakh

escrow account and all the receivables and all current
assets, present and future below mentioned properties.
3. Exclusive charge over Debt Service Reserve Account
maintained with Bank, equivalent to 1 Month.

4. Registered Mortgage of Shop no.G-7, G-16A, G-16B, G
16, F-6, T-2, 7-18, T 19, G-13, S29 & 30, G-10A, G-11,
F-1, F-5, T-12, 75 & 6, S1, 52 S3,526,527,528, S16,
517,518 and terrace, T2A, T-1, T-7, T-15 & 16, S-14, S
41 of R Mall, BS Marg, Mulund West,

5. Registered Mortgage of commercial shops situated at
Floor no.3 to 6, Shop nos. G-1, G-3, G-14, Common
Area, F-4, F-5, F-9, F-10, F15, S2, S5, K6, K7, S10, S11,
S$12 of R Odeon Mall, Ghatkopar East.

1
2. 8 Installments of 8 Lakh

3. 12 Installments of 12 Lakh
4. 12 Installments of 20 Lakh
5. 19 Installments of 25 Lakh
6. 9 Instaliments of 30 Lakh
7. 18 Installments of 35 Lakh
8. 6 Installments of 40 Lakh
9. 9 Instaliments of 48 Lakh
10. 11 Installments of 51 Lakh
11. 6 Instaliments of 56 Lakh
12. 8 Instaliments of 62 Lakh
13. 10 Installments of 70 Lakh
14. 13 Installments of 75 Lakh
15, 9 Installments of 85 Lakh
16. 12 Installments of 90 Lakh
17. 10 Installments of 95 Lakh

Total

C.Y. - B,143.66
(P.Y. - 12,736.18)




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to

financial st

B. Secured loans from others:

for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Sr.

4

no

Loan taken from

Outstanding
amount

Rate of interest

Secured against/ guarantee given

Terms of repayment

Aditya Birla Finance Limited -
12008400258 a/c &
ABFLMUMCF0000136782

C.y.
7,505.94
P.y.
11,295.89)

-1 10.50% upto 25-05-2022,
10.80% from 26-05-2023
-| to 17-06-2023, 11.30%
from 18-06-2023 to 14-01-
2023, 11.65% - 15-01-
2023 onwards

1.Unsold inventory of "The Residence" & "The Reserve"
Projects.

2. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Sandeep Runwal for the
proposed facilities.

Repayable in 24 monthly installments commencing from
01st October, 2023.

N}

Aditya Birla Finance Limited -
ABFMU2TER00001002240

cv.
6,215.47(P.Y.
Nil)

-| 11.15% from 15-01-2023
onwards

1. 28 unsold units admeasuring 50,026 sq. ft. of carpet!
area in the project known as Runwal Elegante

2. Hypothecation & Escrow of scheduled receivables of
28 unsold units of Runwal Elegante

3. DSRA equivalent ta 1 month's interest.

4. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Sandeep Runwal for the
oronpsed facilitie:

Repayable in 60 monthly instalments commencing from
15th August, 2022

w

Tata Capital Housing Finance
Limited 10533130 &
10681237

C.Y. - Nil
(P.Y. -53.21)

11% from 14-02-2022 to
30-06-2022,
11.80% from 01-07-2022
to 01-10-2022, 12.80%
from 02-10-2022 onwards

1. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on
the unsoid units in Praperty 1 90,786 sqft ('Security 1')
located at Survey No./CTS No. 884A

2. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on
the unsold units in Property 2A 56,545 sqft ('Security 2')
located at Survey No./CTS No. 884A

3. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on
the unsold units in Property 2B 1,34,794 sqft ('Security
3') located at Survey No. / CTS No. - 884A

4. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Sandeep Runwal to the
tune of Rs 75 crores under the proposed facilities

5. DSRA equivalent to 3 months' interest on outstanding
amount to be maintained in the form of FD with lien
marked to TCHFL during the currency of loan

6. Security Interest on unsold Units along with residual
interest on sold units in the Property 1, 2A & 2B.

60 Months including moratorium period of 30 months
from the date of first disbursement

B. Secured loans from others:

4

Tata Capital Housing Finance
Limited s 10704493 &
10705475

C.Y. - 6068.21

(P.y.
7,813.99)

11.80% from 01-07-2022

% to 01-10-2022

12.80% from 02-10-22 to
31-03-2023

I. 1. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on
the RDPL's share of right/title/interest in the project
"Runwal Timeless" being developed on land parcel
located at CS. Nos. 4 (part), 5 (part), 6 (part), and 7
(part) of Salt Pan Division, Sion-situated at Pratiksha
Nagar, Shastri Nagar, "C" Division in F/North Ward,
Mumbai, Maharashtra, including all future constructions,
FSI, TDR, and benefits thereon to the extent of RDPL's
share.

2. DSRA equivalent to 3 months' interest on outstanding
amount of the facility.

11. Additional Security:

1. Extension of first charge by way of registered
mortgage on the unsold proportion of land and building
of the projects “R Anthurium" and "R Square" located at
LBS Marg, Mulund, Mumbai, along with any present and
future construction.

Receivables

IIL. Primary Receivables:

1. Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on all
receivables, to the extent of developer's share, including
sold, unsold, insurance receipts as well as development
and other charges from units and any cash flow from the
project "Runwal Timeless" located at CS. Nos. 4 (part), 5
(part), 6 (part), and 7 (part) of Salt Pan Division, Sion-
situated at Pratiksha Nagar, Shastri Nagar, "C" Division
in F/North Ward, Mumbai, Maharashtra, including all
future constructions, FSI, TDR, and benefits thereon to
the extent of RDPL's share.

Iv.Additional Receivables:

1. Extension of first charge by way of hypothecation on
all the receivables including sold, unsold, insurance
receipts as well as development and other charges from
units and any cash flow from the project "R Anthurium"
and "R Square" located at LBS Marg, Mulund, Mumbai.

V. Personal Guarantee : 55cr sandeep Runwal

72 Months including moratorium period of 42 months
from the date of first disbursement

Total

C.Y.-19,789.62

(P.Y. - 19,05

6.67)




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

A)

B)

c)

This changes in liabilities schedule includes mavements for current as well as non -

Note 23
Lease Liabilities - Non Current
Lease Liabilities (Refer note 52)

Note 24

Non current provisions

Provision for gratuity

Provision for compensated absences

Refer note Note 42 employee benefit expenses

Note 25
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax (liabilities)

Property, plant & equipment

Right of use asset

FVTPL financial assets

Lease equalisation reserve assets

Revaluation of inventory on account of business combination

Deferred tax assets

Intanqible asset

Investment property

Carry forward losses of house property income
Provision for Doubtful Debts

Provisions for retirement benefits
Disallowance under section 438

Discounting on security deposits

Expenses incurred on business combination

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Unused tax losses

Unused tax losses with expiry on which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are attributable to the following:

Long term capital loss
AY 2016-17

Short term capital loss
AY 2020-21

Reconciliation of tax expenses :

Amount of current tax r i in the

Deferred tax (charge) / credit

Property, plant & equipment

Right of use asset

FVTPL financial assets

FVOCI financial assets

Lease equalisation reserve assets
Revaluation of inventory on account of business combination
Intangible asset

Investment property

Carry forward losses house property income
Carry forward losses capital transaction
Provision for Doubtful Debts

Provisions for retirement benefits
Disallowance under section 43B

Discounting on security deposits

Expenses incurred on business combination
Total of B

Totalof A + B

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax

Tax @25.168% (PY @25.168%)

Tax effect of :

Non-deductible expenses

Tax on exempted income

CSR expenses

Tax on deemed rent

Deferred tax not considered in previous year
(Expenses) / income offered in tax books (net)
Tax expenses recognised

of profit and loss

current portion of term loans.

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

3.48

As at
31ist March. 2023

As at
31st March. 2022

50.09 54.59
31.78 43.30
81.87 97.89

As at
31st March. 2023

As at

31st March, 2022

(1,405.03) (1,468.29)
(26.70) (27.08)
(1.09) (0.19)
(13.91) (5.38)
(110.20) (110.20)
(1,556.93) (1,611.14)
0.88 .
157.16 5
35.23 35.23
113.67 5
17.79 17.16
13.57 20.16
27.58 28.11
1.72 2.58
367.60 103.24
(1,169.33) (1,507.90)
As at o
31st March, 2023 Expiry
5928.55 AY 2024-25.
360.89 AY 2024-25
As at As at

31st March, 2023

31st March. 2022

(1,128.03) (2,054.43)
63.26 26.76
0.38 (27.08)
(0.90) (0.19)
= 829.01
(8.53) (5.38)
= 104.44
0.88 -
157.16 -
= 13.09
= (1,379.64)
113.67 .
0.63 (5.25)
(6.59) 5.79
(0.53) 28.11
(0.86) (0.86)
318.57 (411.20)
(809.46) (2,465.63)
4,079.23 4,077.55
1,026.66 1,026.24
13.51 169.81
99.85 198.57
48.12 48.69
22.43 -
(195.49) 3
(205.62) 1.022.32
809.46 2,465.63




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to 1e financial
Note 26
Current borrowings
Secured

Bank overdraft (refer table below)
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (also refer note 22)

From banks
From others
Vehicle loan from bank

Unsecured

0.01% Redeemable preference shares#

Book overdraft

Bank overdraft

for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
3ist March, 2022

4,164.67 4,003.13

310.34 3,499.96
88.80 =

16.93 15.70

5 1,738.32

25.12 122.39

4,605.86 9,379.50

:: Bank overdraft taken from ::;s::r;dmg Rate of interest Secured against/ guarantee given Terms of repayment
1 [HDFC Bank A/c - C.Y. 3,998.93 7.00% BSLI ULIP Policies of Mr. Sandeep Runwal & Mr. Subodh |Renewal every year
50200058023408 (P.Y. Runwal, FD of Rs.2.80 cr for 24months on auto renewal
3,832.01) till the tenure of the facility.
2 |ICICI BANK LTD A/C C.Y. -(Nil) 11.25% 1. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on The Borrower shall be entitled to repay the OD facility at
074005002999 = (P.Y. Nil) the Property I. any time from the date of disbursement of such OD
facility, till the last OD reduction 15th November, 2023.
2. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on .
development rights of the Property.
3. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on
the Scheduled Receivables and all insurance proceeds,
both present and future.
4. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on
3 |ICICI Bank Ltd A/C C.Y. -(Nil) 11.25% security of all rights, title, interest, claims, benefits,
074005001213 = (P.Y.4.20) demands under all the documents pertaining to the
Project Documents both present and future,
5.Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on the
Escrow Account and the DSR Account along with all
monies credited/deposited therein (in whatever form the
same may be), and all investments in respect thereof (in
whatever form the same may be).
4 |ICICI Bank Ltd A/C C.Y. -(165.74) 11.25%
623905028781 (P.Y. 166.92)
Total C.Y. -4,164.67

(P.Y. - 4,003.13)

* As on 31st March, 2023 there were Debit closing balance hence qroup under Cash & Cash Equivalent.

# The Company has issued 1,73,83,200 0.01% Redeemable non - cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each on 4th November 2020 in consideration of amalgamation of Runwal Builders
Private Limited (‘RBPL'), Runwal Properties Private Limited ('RPPL') , Veear Property Developers (Bombay) Private Limited ('VPDBPL') and Odeon Exhibitors Private Limited ('OEPL') with RDPL
on 4th Novemnber 2020. The RPS shall be redeemable at par at the option of Transferee Company anytime after five (5) years but before 20 years from the date of allotment.

After the preference shares were issued on 4th Novemnber, 2020, in the month of March 2021 the Company initiated the discussion with the preference shareholders to redeem these preference
shares on immediate basis. Hence,these preference shares were shown as a part of Current Liability in previous year at fair value and during the current year, the Company has redeemed the
preference shares on 26th september, 2022. Upon extinguishment of preference shares, uncleared balance of Rs.119.20 lakhs are transferred to Other payable.

Note 27
Lease Liabilities - Current

Lease Liabilities (Refer note 52)

Note 28
Trade payables

To Parties other than related parties

i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Retention money

i) Dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises

ii) Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

For transactions with related parties, refer to Note 46
For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes. (Refer note no. 51)
Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. (Refer note no. 57)

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

256.42 48.05
5,533.29 3,555.29
56.88 53.69
1,090.14 1,327.76
6,936.73 4,984.79




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to financial for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Ageing of trade payables :

A) Ageing of trade payables as on 31st March, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from the booking date

Particular

Unbilled

Less than 1

vear

1-2year

2 -3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed trade payables

Micro enterprises and small enterprises

29.98

184.79

23.89

17.51

0.25

256.42

Others

733.03

4.325.64

56.77

83.79

334.06

5,533.29

Disputed trade payables

Micro enterprises and small enterprises

Others

Total

763.01

4,510.43

B80.66

101.30

334.31

5,789.71

B) Ageing of trade payables as on 31st March, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Particular

Unbilled

Less than 1

vear

1-2year

2 -3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed trade payables

Micro_enterprises and small enterprises

14.75

19.97

5.06

8.27

48.05

Others

1131.84

1,794.63

91.21

104.97

432.64

Disputed trade payables

3.555.29

Micro enterprises and small enterprises

Others

Total

1,131.84

1,809.38

111.18

110.03

440.91

3,603.34

Retention money is collected and retained based on various terms and conditions agreed upon with the contractors. In various instances, retention money is payable when the milestone of the
entire set of services is completed and that too with a covenant that it will be paid after a period which ranges between 3 to 5 years, if no deficiency is found during this specified period towards
the services which were rendered by them. Hence, practically it is difficult to extract the ageing of retention money.

Note 29
Other current financial liabilities
To related parties

Inter corporate deposits

As at
31st March, 2023

As at

31st March, 2022

4 508.00
To parties other than related parties

Salary and bonus payable 122.81 196.37
Security deposits 1,252.08 1,306.21
Deferred income 44.00 26.92
Expenses payable 158.88 206.10

Other payable 119.20 #
Interest accrued but not due 262.31 170.57
Amount payable towards cancelled flats 457.84 3,763.56
2,417.12 6,177.73

Note 30
Other current liabilities

Security deposit

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March. 2022

- 1,890.00
To parties other than related parties

Advance from customers 51,426.55 34,949.04
Society Maintenance payable 226.88 477.28
Statutory dues payable 188.17 703.20
Deferred liability against purchase of development rights = 8.444.98 9.543.66
60,286.58 47,563.18

= Note (Refer note 45 on Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers)

As at As at

Note 31
Current provisions
Provision for gratuity

31st March, 2023

31st March. 2022

20.61 13.59
Provision for compensated absences 14.01 18.02
34.62 31.61

Refer Note 42 employee benefit expenses




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended

31st March, 2022

Note 32
Revenue from operations

Sale of Flats 15,280.15 35,528.27
Sale of TDR 718.38 -
Income from lease rental 1,018.60 538.27
Sale of solar power 553.90 342.56
Sale of wind power 61.55 67.05
Deferred revenue from joint development arrangement 1,098.68 5,505.49
18,731.26 41,981.64
Other operating revenue* 1,179.04 1,129.67
19,910.30 43,111.31

* Other operating revenue comprises of income towards cancellation charges, interest on delayed payment from customers,

cheque bounce charges, club usage charges etc.

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

Note 33
Other income

Business support service 360.00 360.00

Interest income
on fixed deposits 95.50 47.72
on income tax refund - 63.31
on debentures 26.96 54.47
on ICD 10.60 132.72
on other deposits 4.60 24.34
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets - 1.44
Share of profit from firm (also refer Note 54) 396.72 788.99
Miscellaneous income 226.63 17.73
Fair value gain on mutual fund investment* 10.58 1.64
Sundry balances written back 120.02 2,064.24
1,251.61 3,556.60

* Total net gain on fair value changes includes Rs. 1.03 lakhs (PY Rs. 0.01 lakhs) as net gain on sale of investments.

For the year ended
31ist March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

Note 34
Cost of construction and development expenses

Cost of construction and development expenses 14,018.27

28,911.58

14,018.27

28,911.58

(Refer note 56)

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

Note 35
Purchase of stock in trade

Purchase of stock 501.00

501.00




Note 36

Changes in inventories of construction work-in-progress,

finished goods and stock in trade

Opening stock
Finished goods
Construction WIP
Stock in trade
Closing stock
Finished goods
Construction WIP
Stock in trade

Note 37
Employee benefits expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds

(Refer Note 42 employee benefit expenses)

Gratuity expense(Refer Note 42 employee benefit expenses)
Expenses related to compensated absences

(Refer Note 42 employee benefit expenses)

Staff welfare expense

Less: Transferred to construction work in progress

Note 38
Finance costs

Interest cost on financial liabilitiy measured at amortised cost
On fixed period loan
On inter corporate deposits
Other interest cost

Dividend on redeemable preference shares

Finance charges

Total interest expense

Less: Transferred to construction work in progress

Total finance cost

Note 39

Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on right to use

Depreciation on investment property
Amortisation of intangible assets

For the year ended

31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

24,598.70 58,545.86
66,236.85 36,104.57
(19,435.14) (24,598.70)
(78,091.74) (66,236.85)
(501.00) -
(7,192.33) 3,814.88

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

2,048.07 2,152.99
51.46 37.62
10.55 22.17

9.32 13.12
64.85 42.94
2,184.25 2,268.84
(1,336.73) (1,364.51)
847.52 904.33

For the year ended
31ist March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

3,637.51 2,686.00
- 117.27

1.88 221.70

2.31 4.72
36.92 35.80
3,678.62 3,065.49
(1,021.35) (860.42)
2,657.27 2,205.07

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

371.37 431.96
7.31 5.97
89.54 74.54
3.55 8.34
471.77 520.81




Note 40
Other expenses
Electricity charges
Repairs and maintenance
Building
Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Legal and professional fees
Payment to auditor (refer note below) *
Advertising and sales promotion
Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note 57)
Donation
Brokerage commission
Allowances for expected credit losses
Miscellaneous expenses
Other outsourcing expenses
Sundry balances w/off

Payment to auditor**
Audit fee

Certification

Other services

* Exclusive of GST

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

369.55 109.75
11.41 5.29
506.58 250.15
34.58 46.37
494.43 102.18
306.48 102.15
27.45 53.68
2,402.81 783.18
191.18 191.00
5.95 2.45
200.45 360.36
217.78 459.25
925.24 400.94
10.71 10.30
74.58 62.48
5,779.18 2,939.53
27.00 27.00
0.45 0.18

- 26.50
27.45 53.68

** Payment of FY 2021 -22 is inclusive of payment of INR 6.18 lakhs paid to the previous auditor.
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 42

Employee benefits expenses
(A) Defined contribution plans

Contribution to defined contribution plans recognised as an expense for the year are as under:

For the year ended For the year ended

31ist March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Employer’s contribution to provident fund 50.16 36.01
Employer’s contribution to ESIC 1.18 1.52
Labour welfare fund contribution for workmen 0.09 0.07

(B) Defined benefit plans
(i) Gratuity (unfunded)

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement, death, permanent disablement and resignation in terms of
the provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972. Benefits would be paid at the time of the separation.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows :

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31ist March, 2022
I Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the year
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 68.18 89.07
2. Interest cost 3.50 4.29
3. Current service cost 17.03 19.05
4. Past service cost -
5. Liability transferred in/acquisitions 8.89 8.53
6. Liability transferred out / divestment (26.56) (32.31)
7. Benefits paid directly by employer (4.18) (7.43)
8. Benefits paid -
9. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions 0.72 (14.06)
10. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (3.75) 7.61
11. Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments 6.87 (6.57)
12. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 70.70 68.18
II Net asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year (70.70) (68.18)
2. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - J
3. Amount recognised in the balance sheet (70.70) (68.18)
4. Net (liability)/ asset- current (20.61) (13.59)
Net (liability)/ asset- non-current (50.09) (54.59)
IIT Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year
1. Current service cost 17.03 19.05
2. Interest cost on benefit obligation (net) 3.51 4.29
3. Total expenses included in employee benefits expense 20.54 23.34
IV Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year
1. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions 0.72 (14.06)
2. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (3.75) 7.61
3. Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments 6.87 (6.57)
4. Return on plan assets excluding interest income -
5. Recognised in other comprehensive income . 3.84 (13.02)
V Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
1. Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 20.61 13.59
2. 2nd following year 11.59 11.21
3. 3rd following year 11.93 10.18
4. 4th following year 10.17 10.62
5. 5th following year 7.94 9.44
6. Sum of years 6th to 10 years 19.81 21.14
7. Sum of 11 years and above 4.49 4.79

VI Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:
1. Increase/(decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year

(i) One percentage point increase in discount rate (1.66) (1.99)
(ii) One percentage point decrease in discount rate 1.77 2.13
(i) One percentage point increase in rate of salary increase 1.45
(ii) One percentage point decrease in rate of salary increase (1.39)
(i) One percentage point increase in employee turnover rate (0.54)
(ii) One perc int decrease in employee turnover rate 0.55




2. Sensitivity analysis method

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using
the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected
benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

VII The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total
Insurer managed funds NIL NIL

VIII Actuarial assumptions

1. Discount rate 7.20% 5.15%
2. Salary escalation 9% 9%
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14 Mortality 2012-14
3. Mortality rate during employment (Urban) (Urban)
4. Mortality post retirement rate
5. Rate of employee turnover 29% 30%
Notes :

(i) The actuarial valuation of present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31st March, 2023. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

(ii) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated
term of the obligations.

(iii) The salary escalation rate is arrived after taking into consideration the seniority, the promotion and other relevant factors, such as,
demand and supply in employment market.

Risks associated with defined benefit plan

Interest rate risk:

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the government securities rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher
provision.

Salary risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in
the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Asset liability matching risk:
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. entity has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go basis from own funds.

Mortality risk:
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

(ii) Compensated absences
The employees of the company are entitled to compensated absences as per the policy of the company.

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Defined benefit obligation as at end of the year 45.79 61.32




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 43
Commitments and contingencies

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Rs. 64.83 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2023 & Rs. Nil for
the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Other commitments:

a) The Company enters into construction contracts with its vendors. The final amounts payable under such contracts will be based on actual measurements and
negotiated rates, which are determinable as and when the work under the said contracts is completed.

b) The Company has entered into joint development agreements with owners of land for its construction and development. Under the agreements the Company is
required to give share in built up area from such developments in exchange of undivided share in land as stipulated under the agreements to the owners of the
land and to MHADA

(c ). Contingent liabilities
1) Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting

Standard (Ind AS) 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities Income Tax Excise and Service Sales Tax demand Goc_ads and Total
and Contingent Assets: demand Tax demand Services Tax

Carrying amount as at 01st April, 2021 10,321.84 109.58 28.07 60.37 10,519.86
Arising during the year 3,746.44 359.20 = 106.73 4,212.37
Settled/reversed (1.21) (1.21)
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2022 14,068.28 468.78 26.86 167.10 14,731.02
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2022 14,068.28 468.78 26.86 167.10 14,731.02
Arising during the year 76.20 1,125.64 1,201.84
Settled/reversed (9,577.07) (26.86) = (9,603.93)
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2023 4,567.41 468.78 - 1,292.74 6,328.93

Nature

(i) Service tax notice is also issued by Commissioner of Service tax and demand is raised for short payment of service tax on renting of immovable property at
Rmall Mulund and also for FY 2011-12 and 2012-13 showing the payment wrongly under as input tax credit availed instead of showing it as Service tax paid and for
few of them an appeal is also filed in CESTAT.

(ii) The Company is a party to various legal proceedings in normal course of business (including cases pending before RERA authorities) and does not expect the
outcome of these proceedings to have any adverse effect on its financial conditions, results of the operations or cash flow. Amounts of such disputes are
unascertainable.

(iii) The Company is contesting the demands and the management is of the view that it has a good case with likelihood of liability / any loss arising out of these tax
matters being remote. Accordingly, pending settlement of the tax dispute, no adjustment has been made in the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2023. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position
and results of its operations or cash flows.

(iv) As per the conractual arrangements with brokers, brokerage is payable to them on the units sold through then only when 10% of sale consideration of the
respective unit is received. Hence, such brokerage is contingent in nature which amounts to Rs. 86.98 lakhs as at 31st March, 2023 (PY Rs. 310.55 lakhs).

(v) The Company has issued an irrecoverable and unconditional corporate guarantee in respect of loan taken by R Mall Developers Private Limited jointly by the
Company and RECOSIA Ghatkopar PTE Ltd and the outstanding amount along with accrued interest as on 31st March, 2023 Nil (PY Rs:11,064.98 lakhs).

Note 44
Segment reporting

The Company has identified following as its reportable segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108:
a) Real estate segment;

b) Lease rental activity;

c) Power generation

As per para 4 of the Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, segment has been disclosed in consolidated financial statements. Hence, no separate disclosure has been
given in standalone financial statement of the Company.

Note 45
IND AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(a) The amount of INR 15,280.15 lakhs (Previous Year: INR 35,528.27 lakhs) recognised in contract liabilities has been recognised as revenue.

(b) Significant changes in contract asset and contract liabilities balances are as follows:

Particulars

Contract liability

At the beginning of the reporting period - advances from customers

Amounts received during the year(net off refund)
Amount recognized as revenue during the year
At the end of the reporting period

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

38,712.60 28,970.58
28,451.94 45,270.29
15,280.15 35,528.27
51,884.39 38,712.60
As at As at

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Contract liability (JDA)

At the beginning of the reporting period 9,543.66 -
Amounts received during the year - 15,049.15
Amount recognized as revenue during the year 1,098.68 5,505.49
At the end of the reporting period 8,444.98 9,543.66
Contract asset (JDA)

At the beginning of the reporting period 9,543.66 -
Amounts paid during the year 15,049.15

Amount recognized as Expenses during the year 1,098.68 5,505.49
At the end of the reporting period 8,444.98 9,543.66




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Contract liabilities represent amounts collected from customers based on contractual milestones pursuant to agreements executed with such customers for
construction and sale of residential units. The terms of agreements executed with customers require the customers to make payment of consideration as fixed in
the agreement on achievement of contractual milestones though such milestones may not necessarily coincide with the point in time at which the Company
transfers control of such units to the customer. The Company is liable for any structural or other defects in the residential units as per the terms of the agreements
executed with customers and the applicable laws and regulations.

The Company expects to satisfy the said performance obligations when (or as) the underlying real estate projects to which such performance obligations relates are
completed. Such real estate projects are in various stages of development as at 31st March, 2023.

(c) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company revenue from contracts with customers by timing of transfer of goods or services.

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Timing of transfer of goods or services
Revenue from goods or services transferred to customers at a point in time 18,811.62 37,605.82
Revenue from goods or services transferred over time 1,098.68 5,505.49

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Revenue as per contracted price 15,280.15 35,528.27
Adjustments - -
Discount s =
Revenue from contract with customers 15,280.15 35,528.27
(d) Assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fullfil a contract with a customer

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Brokerage costs pertaining to sale of residential units 200.45 360.36
Deferred Brokerage Outstanding at Balance Sheet Date 2,892.16 1,947.18

(e) The transaction price of the remaining performance obligations as at 31st March,2023 1,10,708.17 lakhs, 31st March 2022 is INR 1,04,137.32 lakhs. The same
is expected to be recognised within 1 to 5 years

(f) Revenue from major customer (more than 10% of turnover)

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March, 2023 31ist March, 2022
Mr Sanjeev Taparia = 5,400.00
Mr. Ashish Dhurvendra Goel - 6,200.91

Amount received towards sale of units from a single customer (Subsidiary Company) pertaining to real estate segment comprises an amount of Rs. Nil and Rs.
4,444.12 lakhs ( 10.31 %) for the year ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022 respectively. Out of such receipts of Rs. 3,044.12 lakhs have been repaid
during the period ended 31st March, 2023 and Rs.1,400 lakhs during the year ended 31st March, 2022 towards cancellation of the unit.




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 46
Related party disclosure
A) List of related parties

(i) Person having Control
Mr. Sandeep Runwal

(ii) Close family members of person having control
Mr. Subhash S. Runwal (Father)
Mrs. Chanda S Runwal (Mother)
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal (Spouse)
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal (Brother)
Mrs. Snehal Subodh Runwal (Sister in Law)
Mr. Saurabh Sandeep Runwal (Son)

(iii) Subsidiaries companies
Avalor Developers Private Limited
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited
Sanabh Ventures Private Limited (whollyowned subsidiary during the period 13th March,2023 to 30th March,2023)

(iv) Subsidiary partnership firm
Runwal Constructions

(v) Associate company
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited

(vi) Joint venture
R Mall Developers Private Limited
R Retail Ventures Private Limited

(vii) Subsidiary of joint venture
Aethon Developers Private Limited
Galleria Retail Private Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limited

(viii) Others (entities controlled by person mentioned (i) & (ii) having control or joint control)
Anand Developers
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Subhash Runwal HUF
Runwal & Associates
Runwal Farms Private Limited
Runwal Foundation
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited
Sandeep Constructions
Value Constructions SRA*
Runwal Wonder Venture**
Saurabh Runwal Family Trust
Sanya Runwal Family Trust

(ix) Key management personnel (KMP):
Pallavi Matkari, Director
Ravi Sharma, Director (Appointed Wef 24-02-2022 & Resigned Wef 31-03-2023)
Sujata Rao, Director (Appointed Wef 24-02-2022)
Sanjay Daga, Director (Resigned on 15-03-2022)
Kishorkumar Jain, Director (Resigned on 27-10-2021)
Mahesh Iyer, Director (Resigned on 16-05-2022)
Sweena Nair, Company Secretary (Appointed wef 01-12-2022)

(x) Relative of KMP
Mrs. Babita Daga (Spouse of Mr. Sanjay Daga)

* Retired from partnership firm from 30th September, 2021
** Retired from partnership firm from 31st March, 2021




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31ist March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
B) The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Sr. ¢ ; lationshi For the year ended 31st For the year ended
No. Nature of transaction / relationship March, 2023 31st March, 2022

1 Sale/purchase of material

Sale

Runwal Constructions 12.80 17.80
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited 1.40 3.55
Horizon Projects Private Limited = 65.54
R retail Ventures Private Limited 0.88 -
Histyle Retail Private Limited. - 0.64
R Mall Developers Private Limited 0.27 2

Sales Return
Horizon Projects Private Limited 2.66 -

Purchase

Ariane Orgachem Private Limited = 1.25
Dhruva Woolen Mills Private Limited 0.53 0.46
Runwal Constructions 5.07 21.72
R Retail Ventures Private Limited 4.19 =
Horizon Projects Private Limited - 0.29

Purchase Return
Horizon Projects Private Limited 2.66 =

2 Sale of flats
Mrs. Chanda S. Runwal - 2,086.67

3 Sale/purchase of Fixed Assets
Purchase
Dhruva Woolen Mills Private Limited 0.61 -
Runwal Constructions 3.61 -

4 Sale of TDR
Runwal Constructions 718.38 -

5 Reimbursement of expenses
Dhruva Woolen Mills Private Limited % 23.43

6 Sub- letting Rent Charges
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 1.00 -

7 Advance received against material supply
Histyle Retail Private Limited - 400.00

8 Repayment of advance
Histyle Retail Private Limited - 400.00

] AMC Charges
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited 242.57 =

10 Sale of electricity
R Mall Developers Private Limited 507.17 -

11 Business facility services
R Mall Developers Private Limited 60.00 60.00
R Retail Ventures Private Limited 300.00 300.00

12 Maintenance service given
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 52.37 19.55
13 Maintenance service & property tax received
Mrs. Chanda S. Runwal = 3.59
14 Dividend accrued
Anand Developers
Mrs. Chanda S Runwal
M/s.Subhash Runwal HUF
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal
Runwal Associates
Runwal Constructions
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mr. Subhash S. Runwal
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal
* Amount is less than 500




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

15

16

17

i8

19

20

21

22

23

24

Dividend Paid
Anand Developers
Runwal Associates
Runwal Constructions
Sandeep Constructions
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal
Mrs. Snehal Runwal *
Saurabh Runwal *
* Amount is less than 500

Investment in partnership firm/AOP
Runwal Constructions
Capital Introduced
Capital Withdrawn

Redemption of Preference Shares
Runwal Constructions
Anand Developers
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal
Runwal Associates
Sandeep Construction
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal

Share of profit /(loss) from AOP/firm
Runwal Constructions

Security deposit given
Given
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Repaid
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Security deposit taken
Received
R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Repaid
R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Intercorporate deposits received
Taken
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Runwal Farms Private Limited

Repaid
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Runwal Farms Private Limited

Intercorporate deposits given
Given
R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Avalor Developers Private Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Repaid
Horizon Projects Private Limited
R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Avalor Developers Private Limited °

Histyle Retail Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Loan repaid
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mrs. Chanda S Runwal

Purchase of equity share of R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Mrs. Priyanka Runwal
Mr. Sandeep Runwal

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

0.01
0.01
0.01
0.01
1.58
0.06
0.66
0.00
0.00

17,445.00
14,203.23

130.72
130.70
4.21
130.70
130.70
1,158.82
113.09

396.72

882.50

882.50

5,923.93

150.00

150.00
508.00

8,266.80
6.50

788.99

19,809.93

15,542.00

882.50

882.50

200.00
508.00

200.00

200.00
450.50
917.00
283.00

8,655.93
200.00
1,250.00
917.00
283.00

1,892.21
134.52

1.20
1.80



Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
25 Investment in equity shares

Avalor Developers Private Limited 99.00 -
Dhruva Woolen Mills Private Limited (DWMPL) = 20,079.89
Reversal of fair value gain on Investment in (DWMPL) - 3,294.16
R Retail ventures Private Limited = 3.00
Sanabh Ventures Private Limited * 1.00 -

*Sold during the year to unrelated party

26 Investment in debentures

R Mall Developers Private Limited = 1,000.00
27 Redemption of debentures

R Mall Developers Private Limited 1,000.00 -
28 Interest on debentures

R Mall Developers Private Limited . 26.93 54.47
29 Advertisement Expenses

R Mall Developers Private Limited 1900.00 -
30 CSR expenditure

Runwal Foundation 191.18 176.00
31 Salary

Sanjay Daga = 168.07

Ravi Sharma 35.78 19.05

Sweena Nair 7:32 -

32 Brokerage charges paid
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited 8 74.91

33 Professional fees paid
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited £ 59.00

34 Refund of capital invested in subsidiary
Value Constructions SRA 7 3,372.43

35 Advance against flat / shop
Advance received
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited = 4,444 .12

Refund given against cancellation of flat
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited 3,044.12 1,400.00

36 Capital Subsidy
Runwal Constructions 9.50 -

37 Expenses incurred on behalf of
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited 6.00 -

38 Reversal of fair value gain on Investment in Subsidiary
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited - 3,294.59

39 Guarantee taken
Mr. Sandeep Runwal* - -
(refer note 22)

40 Sharing of infrastructure
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited
Runwal Constructions
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited
Rupri Consultancy LLP
Runwal Foundation
(Transaction of non monetary nature)
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<)

i0

11

12

i3

14

i5

16

17

Amount due to / from related parties

Inter corporate deposit
Given
Avalor Developers Private Limited

Taken
Runwal Farms Private Limited

Inter corporate guarantee
Given
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Advance from Customer
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Sanya Runwal Family Trust

Security deposit
Given
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Sundry Deposit
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mr. Subhash Runwal

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Investment of capital in partnership firm (fixed and current capital)

Runwal Constructions

Investment in equity shares
Avalor Developers Private Limited
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited
R Mall Developers Private Limited
R Retail ventures Private Limited

Investment in preference shares
R Retail ventures Private Limited

Interest on Investment in debentures
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Trade receivables
Runwal Constructions
Horizon Projects Private Limited
R Mall Developers Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Trade payable
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited
Runwal Constructions
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
R Retail ventures Private Limited
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Reimbursement receivables
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited

Payable against cancellation of flat
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited

Brokerage charges payable
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited

Professional fees payable
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited

Maintenance receivables
Subhash Runwal
Chanda Runwal

Salary Payable
Sweena Nair

31.00 0.50

- 508.00

- 22,000.00
0.03 -
59.40 =

1,513.31 1,513.31

- 5,923.93
15.00 -
115.00 -

12,566.55 9,049.28

100.00 1.00

20,080.15 20,080.15

1,720.86 1,720.86

463.00 463.00

20,313.00 3.00

- 20,310.00

- 49.02

6.05 0.27

= 137.39

165.98 58.29
372.73 -

= 0.46

- 1.58

- 2.88

1.38 1.25
4.19 -
2,204.00 -

- 22.44

= 3,044.12

= 74.91

= 59.00
3.18 -
3.59 =



Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
18 Lease Rent payable
Subhash Runwal 1.53 -
Sandeep Runwal 0.18 -

19 Guarantee taken
Mr. Sandeep Runwal* = -
(refer Note 22)

20 Dividend payable

Anand Developers - 0.01
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal - 0.11
Runwal Associates - 0.01
Runwal Constructions - 0.01
Mr. Sandeep Runwal - 3.21
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal 0.66 1.34

21  Other payable
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal 114.88 -

22 Receivable /(Payable) as retired partner
Runwal Wonder Venture = 661.45

23 Investment in debentures
R Mall Developers Private Limited - 1,000.00

For the year ended 31st For the year ended
March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Compensaticn of key management personnel of the Company

Nature of transaction / relationship

Short-term employee benefits 43.09 187.12
Post-employment pension and medical benefits*

Other long term benefits*

Termination benefits

Share based payments

* Provision for gratuity and leave encashment benefits are determined on actuarial valuation basis. Hence the same is not
seperately reported here for KMPs.

Total compensation paid to key management personnel

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. This
assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standaione financial statements for the year ended 3ist March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 48
Information on associates, joint venture & subsidiaries

Percentage of voting power
As at A

o ; s at

Name of the entity Principle place of business 31st March, 20232 31st March,
— === _ 3lstMarch,

Subsidiaries

Avalor Developers Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%

Dhruva wollen Mills Private Limited India 51.00% 51.00%

Runwal Constructions India 95.00% 95.00%

Joint venture

R mall Developers Private Limited India 49.75% 49.75%

R Retail Ventures Private Limited (RRVPL) India 50.00% 43.57%

Subsidiary of joint venture

Percentage holding of joint venture (RRVPL)

Galleria Retail Private Limiteg India 100.00% 100.00%

Histyle Retail Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%

Aethon Developers Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%

Associates

Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited India 34.26% 34.269%,

Note 49

Fair values disclosure
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the Instrument could be exchanged in 3 Current transaction between market

prices).

Level 3: Inputs that are not based on observable market data unobservable inputs. Fair value are determined in whole or in part using a valuation mode| based on

Carrying amount w
: Fair value
e e n

As at March 31, 2023

thraugh other Level 1 Level 2

Profif or Comprehensive
42,772.01 198.74
1,467.90
12,471.55
653.43
2,753.40
1,976.12
2,131.22

27,493.62
3.48

A. Financial assets

Non-current
Investments
Other financial assets

Current
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balance other than (in) above
Loans

Other financial assets

Total

e

B. Financial liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings
Lease Liabilities

Current
Borrowings
Lease Liabilities
Trade pavables
Other financial liabilities
Total

4,605.86

1.23
6,936.73
2

Carrying amount
Fair value Fair value
through through
V9 other Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Comprehensive
in

62.89
JE
_\WA‘

As at 31ist March, 2022

A. Financial assets
Non-current
Investments
Loans
Other financial assets

42,673.01

945.40

Current
Investments

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balance other than (iii) above
Loans

Other financial assets

9,954.28
1,132.81
2,508.73

511.32
1,454.03
6,886.26

Total

L




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B. Financial liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings 28,342.09 - -
Current
Borrowings 9,379.50 = -
Trade pavables 4,984.79
Other financial liabilities 6,177.73
Total = - 48,884.11 = = -

'During the reporting period ending 31st March, 2023 and 31st March 2022, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, loans, short term deposits/loans/overdrafts, trade receivables, Inter corporate deposits, trade payables and other
current liabilities/assets approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
The fair values for security deposits approximates its carrying amount as the same are repayable on demand.

Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost
Current loans measured at amortised cost includes inter corporate loans, the fair value of which is as stated below:

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Loans 2,131.22 1,454.03

As loans are current in nature, fair value of inter corporate loans given are considered to be at carrying amount.

Note 50
Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of
the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The groups policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.
Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash
and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Borrowings(Note 22 and Note 26) 32,099.48 37,721.59
& h and cash equivalents (Note 15
Less: cash and ¢ quivalents (Nof ) 2,753.40 2,508.73
Net debt (A) 29,346.08 35,212.86
Eauity 2,228.90 63.68
Other equity 75,567.52 74,459.13
Total equitv (B) 77,796.42 74,522.81
Gearing ratio (A/B) 37.72% 47.25%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

‘No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022.
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 51
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

S principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans and advances, trade and other receivables, and
cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include
deposits, FVTOCI investments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-
financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest
bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments
will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

The Company is exposed to the cash flow interest rate risk due to which the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments fluctuate because of fluctuations in
the interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-
financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022

Particulars Increase/decrease in existing interest rate by | Effect on profit before tax
For the vear ended 31st March. 2023 + 1% (324.67)
Finance cost incurred - 1% 324.67
For the vear ended 31st March. 2022 + 1% (392.29)
Finance cost incurred - 1% 392.29

Exposure to interest rate risk
In order to optimize the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a
comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio. According to
the Company interest rate risk exposure is only for floating rate borrowings. The interest rate profi le of the Company’s interest-bearing fi nancial instruments as
reported to the management
of the Company is as follows.
Particulars As at As at

3ist March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Fixed rate instrument
Financial asset

Bank deposits 2,585.53 2,276.23
Other Loans 2,131.22 1,454.03
(a) 4,716.75 3,730.26

Financial liabilities

Preference shares - 1,803.22
Vehicle Loan 46.65 62.35
(B) 46.65 1,865.57
Variable rate instrument
Financial liabilities
Term loan 28,302.70 35,230.46
Bank overdraft 4,164.67 4,003.13
(C) 32,467.37 39,233.59

Foreign currency risk

There is no foreign currency assets or liability as on 31st March, 2023. Thus there is no foreign currency risk as on 31st March, 2022.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Exposure to credit risk :
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Cr
business segment tprev:rg;'l“cF it approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of Customers to which the Company grants credj

terms in the nor @@L‘T’Sé ngu iness.
N
< @]
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to
compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenues. The provision matrix takes into account factors such as default risk of industry,
historical experience for Customers etc. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company
does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables is low, as its customers are located in several
Jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets. (for Detail movement in provision for trade receivables - refer Note 14)

Financial instruments and bank deposits

potential failure to make payments.
The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31st March, 2023.
Loans

The loans and advances also includes loans in the nature of advances for project and hence risk on them is minimal. Based on the above factors and historical data, loss
on collection of receivables is not material and hence no provision was made in respect of these loans.

. As at As at
24 I
=rSiiats 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Loans other than project advances 2,131.22 1,454.03

Expected credit loss assessment of loans as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March , 2022:
Considering the nature of the business, the Company has a policy to provide loans to its group entities for undertaking projects, based on its primary business model of
undertaking project developments. The loans given to these entities are repayable on demand and there is no past history for any default / delay / irregularity in
repayments based on demands made. Moreover, all the group entities to whom loans have been advanced, have substantial potential in the projects to repay the loan
based on the valuation of such entities and their activities are controlled and managed by the Company. Accordingly, in view of such control over operations and
underlying security of the project / assets, these loans are considered adequately secured for repayments, except in cases where the independent valuation of underlying
projects warrant provision for impairment.

¢) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations as they fall due. The company's policy on liquidity risk is to maintain sufficient
liquidity in the form of cash and investment in liquid mutual funds to meet the Company's operating requirements with an appropriate level of headroom. In addition,
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on
the basis of expected cash flows. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing
lenders.

Maturity profile of financial liabilities
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.

As at 31st March, 2023 On demand Lesf’:::m 1 ito 5 years More than 5 years Total
Financial liabilities
Borrowings = 4,712.86 22,606.02 4,780.60 32,099.48
Trade payables - 5,789.71 1,147.02 6,936.73
Other financial liabilities = =
Total = 10,502.57  23,753.04 4,780.60 39,036.21
As at 31st March, 2022 On demand Les‘s, th:n 1 1to5vyears More than 5 years Total

— _year
Financial liabilities
Borrowings = 9,379.50  24,176.21 4,165.88 37,721.59
Trade payables = 3,603.34 1,381.45 - 4,984.79
Other financial liabilities - 6,177.73 - - 6,177.73
Total = 19,160.57 25,557.66 4,165.88 48,884.11
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(All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

Note 52

Leases
Asset given under operating lease

The Company has recovered Rs.1,018.60 Lakhs rent from the Customers, Details of rental income recognized during the year in respect

of this is given below:

Particulars

Rent income recognized during the year

Asset taken under o erating lease
(i) The Company has taken Land on leave and license basis.
Details of rental €Xxpense recognized during the year in respect of this lease s given below:

Particulars

Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period

(ii) Analysis of Lease liability:
Movement of lease liabilities

Opening lease liabilities

Addition during the year /period

Interest Cost

Cash outflow towards payment of lease liabilities

Deletion during the Year on account of termination of lease agreements
Closing lease liabilities

(iii) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities (on undiscounted basis)

Particulars

Less than 1 year
Between 1-5 years
More than 5 years

(iv) Lease liabilities included in statement of financial position

Particulars

Current
Non-current

(v) Impact on statement of profit and loss
Particulars

Interest on lease liabilities
Depreciation on right of use assets *
Net impact on profit before tax
Deferred tax - Charge/ (credit)

Net impact on profit after tax

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
——————f == _Tafch 51, 2022

1,018.60 538.27
1,018.60 538.27
T Y
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
’ ——dfch 5L, 2022
106.09 107.60
106.09 107.60
—_  1U7.60
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
— - —<= _7dich 31, 2022

5.80 .
0.61 -
(1.71) -
\- _\

4.70 -

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
——— === _arch 31, 2022

1.71 -

3.98 -
580 T ————

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
——————=—=2 _arch 31, 2022

1.23 -

3.48 -

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
——— === arch 31, 2022
0.61 -
1.34 -
1.95 -
(0.49) -
1.46 -

* Depreciation on ROU during the year pertains to prepaid rent - 5.97 lakhs and for leases 1.34 lakhs.
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Note 53

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company's Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS réquires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures,

t liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resul( in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the
financial statements were prepared. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates is recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future year affected.

Note 54
Share of profit from investment in partnership firm ("the firm”) and investment in the firm is based on financial statements of the such firm
as audited by the respective auditor. The audited IGAAP financial statements of the partnership firm Runwal Constructions (w.e.f 1st October,
2021) in which the Company is a partner except for complying with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions (revised
2012) are prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended)
under the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), and other generally accepted accounting principles in
India (collectively referred to as “Indian GAAP"), !

Note 55

The Company has investments in a jointly controlled entity amounting to Rs. 20,313 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 20,313 Lakhs) as at 31st
March, 2023. while this entity has incurred losses and /or have negative net worth as at the year end, the underlying projects in this entity
are in the early stages of development (real estate and mall rentals) and are expected to achieve adequate profitability on substantial
completion and / or have current market values of certain properties which are in excess of the carrying values. The Company considers its
investments in this entity as long term and strategic in nature. Accordingly, no provision is considered necessary towards diminution in the
value of the Company’s investments in such entity.

Note 56
Construction Work In Proaress includes:
: As at As at
31ist March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Aooroval Faees 10,930.83 B,416.65
Emplovee Benefits 4,699.73 3,364.42
Finance Cost 5,130.00 4,111.03
Land 24,226.87 25,135.36
Materials & Labour 18,076.83 19,646.81
Others 15,027.48 5,562.58

78,091.74 66,236.85
— = /8 00 66,236.85

Note 57
Details of corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenditures
Particulars As at As.at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
—==5 Tarch, 2022
Gross amount required to be spent for CSR activity 189.80 190.18
Amount spent during the year * 191.18 161.00
Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act
Balance excess spent as at the beginning of the year 0.82 -
Amount spent during the year * 191.18 191.00
Amount required to be spent during the year 189.80 190.18
Balance excess spent as at the end of the vear

2.20 0.82
- &0 @082
* The amount spent during the year has been incurred for the purposes of Educational activities. (Also referNote 46 (30))

Note 58

Details of dues to Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises:
Particulars Asat As:at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Amount unpaid as at vear end - principal 313.30 101.74
Amount unpaid as at vear end - interest Nil Nil
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16,
of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 Nil Nil

(the 'Act')along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,
The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed Nil Nil
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end . .
of each accounting year. Nil Nl

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
Act.

Nil Nil

Note 59

The Company carries out its business ventures through various entities. The funds required for projects in those entities in certain
instances are secured through financial guarantees and securities of the Company. Further, the loans taken by these entities have also
been secured by primary charge on the underlying assets of the said entities. As per management, in view of value of primary /
underlying assets provided as security to the lenders being greater than the outstanding loans obligation, no additional liability will
devolve on the Company in spite of the quarantee provided by the Company. In the above amounts, interest and other charges are not
included as the same cannot be quantified as per management,

Considering the restrictive covenants, value of underlying securities being greater than the outstanding loans, hence the fair value of
the guarantedis Nit.
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Note 60
Other information

1 The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding

any benami property.

The Company has availed various borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly

2 returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks and financial institutions are in agreement with books of
account.
3 The Company registered all the charges and satisfaction of charges with registrar of companies within statutory period.
4 The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
5 The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.
6 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or
b provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
7 The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (uitimate beneficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as
8 income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
g The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority or
other lender, in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulter issued by the Reserve Bank of India.
10 Title deeds are held in the name of the Company.
Note 61
(i) There are no new standards that are notified upto the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements.
a) Newly issued standards
There were no standards notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) during the year ended 31st March, 2023.
b) Amendments in prevailing standards but not effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 31st March, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015. The effective date for adoption of these amendments s annual period beginning on or after 01st April, 2023, The
significant amendments are as below.
(i) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rathr than their significant accounting policies. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant on its financial statements.
(i) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of
the amendment is insignificant on its financial statements.
(i1) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes
This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to
equal and offsetting temporary differences. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment s
insignificant on its financial statements
Note 62

()

(i)

Events occurring after balance sheet date

The Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited (the ‘Transferor’) with the Company (the ‘Transferee’) has
been approved in the Meeting of Board of Directors held on 08th May, 2023. The Appointed date for the Merger is 01st April, 2023, In
this connection, a Joint Application by Transferor and Transferee Company was made to National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench
(NCLT) on 02nd August, 2023. 1st motion Order by Hon’ble NCLT has been received on 24th August, 2023. A Joint Petition has been
made by the Transferor and Transferee Company on 14th September, 2023 with NCLT.

On 1st April, 2023 a Share purchase agreement was entered between Avalor Developers Private Limited (subsidiary of the Company) &
Reco Ghatkopar Pte. Ltd. to acquire 20,47,142 no. of share for consideration of Rs. 82,200 lakhs, resulting into increase in stake from
49.75 % t0 99.75 % at Runwal Developers Private Limited group level, thus R Mall Developers Private Limited becomes subsidary of the
Company.




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 63

(i) Other than disclosed, there are no other significant events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements
as at the Balance Sheet date.

(i) Previous period figures have been re-grouped and rearranged whenever necessary to conform to current years's preparation.

As per our report of even date attached For an alf 9’ the board of directors
For Singhi & Co. F Vvelgpers Private Limited
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Milind Sujata Rao Pallavi Matkari
Partner Director Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Runwal Developers Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Runwal Developers
Private Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (Holding company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), its joint ventures and associate, which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31 2023, the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors, on standalone audited financial
statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associate, referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid consclidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Group, its joint ventures and associate as at 31 March 2023, and their
consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and the
consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements' section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, its joint ventures and associate in accordance with the ‘Code of
Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidences obtained by us and by other auditors in respect of their report referred
to in the other matter paragraph section below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
thereon

& Co™ge Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
Jwidymation. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there
is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding
Company’s Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors
are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of
the Group including its associate and joint ventures in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors and those charged with
governance of the entities included in the Group and of its joint ventures and associate are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error which have

been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management of the
companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures and its associate is responsible for
assessing the ability of their respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors and Management of the companies included in the
Group, its joint ventures and its associate are also responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of the respective entities.

ditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bf objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
itements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
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assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgety,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management and Board of
Directors.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group, its joint ventures and its associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group and its associate and joint venture to cease to continue as a going
concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

vi. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such
entities or business activities within the Group, its associate and joint venture of which we
are the independent auditors to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements of such entities or business activities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditor's. For the other
entities or business activities included in the consoclidated financial statements, which
have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

1. We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of two
subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 1,36,939 lakhs as at
March 31, 2023, and total revenues of Rs 2,884 fakhs and net cash inflows of Rs 196.68
lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statement and other financial
information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial
information and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the management. The
consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss after tax of Rs.
4,428.81 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, in respect of one associate and two joint ventures, whose financial
statements, other financial information have been audited by other auditors and whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates, is based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors.

2. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the amount and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries/ joint ventures/ associates is based solely on the audit report of such other
auditors / management accounts, and the procedure performed by us as stated under
‘Basis for Opinien’ paragraph.

3. Our opinion and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements below, are not
modified in respect of these matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the
reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, [based

gompanies and joint ventures companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other
atter’ paragraph] we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.
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ii. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act [based on our audit and on the consideration of
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, as noted in the ‘other matter’
paragraph], we report that;

a.

We/ the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all
the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements;

. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the

aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and reports of the other auditors except in case of one
joint venture where the backup of books of account and other books and papers
maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on a daily basis on servers
physically located in India during the year;

. The Consoclidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Fiow
Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements;

. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding

Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139
of the Act, of its subsidiaries, its joint ventures and its associate of such nature, none of
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Group with reference to consolidated financial statements as on March 31, 2023 and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B’ to this report which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Holding company,
subsidiary companies, its joint ventures and its associate, incorporated in India;

With respect to the matter to be included in Auditor's report under Section 197(16) of the
Act, Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 on ‘Overall maximum managerial
remuneration and managerial remuneration in case of absence or inadequacy of profits’
is not applicable to the Group and its joint ventures as these being private company.
However, based on the consideration of reports of statutory auditor of the associate, the
managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid / provided

by the associate is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Act;

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors and management

Indi
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certification on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of
the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate:

KOLKATA (H.0) NEW DELHi CHENNAI MUMB!

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
its consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and joint ventures —
refer note 48 and note 44 to the consolidated financial statements;

The Group does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group, its joint venture and associate in accordance to the
provision of the Act, and rules made there under.

() The respective management of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associate (which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act) have represented to us or to their
respective auditors that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
Note 59 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries or joint
ventures or associate to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign
entities (‘Intermediaries’) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, either directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate (‘Ultimate

Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

{b) The respective management of the Group, its joint ventures and associate whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us or their
respective auditors that, to the best of its knowledge and belief , as disclosed in the
Note 59 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries or joint venture or associate from
any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate shall, either directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on audit procedures, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us, and that performed by the auditors of the
subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, we report that nothing
has come to our or other auditor's notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

The Holding Company has investment in a partnership firm which is considered as a
subsidiary for the purpose of consolidation. As this subsidiary is non-corporate entity,
reporting requirement of Rule 11(e) and Rule 11(f) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
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v. The Board of Directors of the Group have not declared or paid dividend for the year
and one subsidiary being a partnership firm, accordingly, compliance to section 123
of the Act to the extent, it applies to the declaration of dividend is not required.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Membership No: 123314
UDIN: 23123314BGWILW9765

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2023

KOLKATA (H.O) NEW DELHI CHENNAI MUMBAI BANGALCRE



Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

B2 402 B, Marathon Innova, 4th Floor, Off Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Opp. Peninsula Corporate Park, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013. India
Tel : +91 (0) 22-6662 5537 /38  E-mail : mumbai@singhico.com website : www.singhico.com

Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph (i) with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date of Runwal Developers Private Limited)

According to information and explanations given to us, following companies are included in
consolidated financial statements, have certain remarks included in their reports under

Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO") which have been reproduced as per the
requirement of the Guidance Note on CAROQO:

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO reports issued
by us and the auditors of respective companies included in the consolidated financial statements
to which reporting under CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the
Holding Company, we report that in respect of those companies where audits have been
completed under section 143 of the Act, there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the
respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said companies included in the consolidated
financial statements except for the following:

Holding Clause number of
s Company/ the CARO report
r.
- Name CIN Subsidiary/ which contains
0.
Joint Venture/ | qualification or
Associate adverse remarks
Runwal Developers Holding iii (b}, iii(c), iii(f) &
1 U70100MH1988PTC046631 .
Pvt Ltd company vii(c)
Dhruva Woollen Mills ifi(c), vii {b), vii(c) &
2 ) o U17110MH1952PTC008960 o
Private Limited Subsidiary ix {c)
Wheelabrator Alloy iii(c), iii(d),ii(f) & wii
3 ] o U99999MH1959PLC011472 i
Castings Limited Associate (c)
R Mall Developers
-_ \ Private Limited U45201MH2006PTC163273 | Joint venture i (c), vii (a) & vii (b)

urther, according to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of the following
companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, the
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CARO report relating to them has not been issued by their auditors. Following are the basic
details of the same:

Sr. Name CIN Holding Company/
No. Subsidiary/ Joint
Venture/ Associate
1 Avalor Developers U70100MH1988PTC046631 Subsidiary
Private Limited
2 Sanabh Ventures UB8100MH2023PTC398835 WOS during the
Private Limited period 13.3.2023 to
30.3.2023
3 Runwal Constructions Not applicable as being Subsidiary
partnership firm

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number; 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Membership No: 123314
UDIN: 23123314BGWILWO765
Place: Mumbai

Date: September 29, 2023
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the consolidated
financial statements of Runwal Developers Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph (ii)(f) under the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Reqguirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Runwal Developers
Private Limited (‘the Holding Company’) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (Holding company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), its joint venture and associate (read together
with the paragraph of other matter as specified in Annexure B) as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, its joint ventures
and associate, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company internal financial controls
over financtal reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to cbtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
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audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Group, its
joint ventures and associate which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements

A Holding Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Holding Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that :

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Holding Company’s;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Holding Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations’ of management and directors of the Holding
Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Holding Company's assets that could have-a material effect
on the financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, the Group, its joint ventures and associate which are companies
incorporated in India, have in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controis
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by respective
Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matter

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company, in so far as it relates to two joint ventures and one associate which is audited by other
auditor, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such joint ventures and
associate. Further as subsidiary, a partnership firm is consolidated and report under section
143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
is not applicable to it as it is not a company.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number; 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Membership No: 123314
UDIN: 23123314BGWILW9765

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2023
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2023
CIN NO- U70T00MH1988FTC044431
{Al amounis in Rs. Lakhs, unless ofherwise sfated)
" As at As af
B Ui Note 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Assets
Non-cument assets
Property, plant and equitment 3 7.581.80 7.821.93
Cuapifal work-in-progress 4 58.14 1,600,22
Right-of-use asset & 106.09 107.60
Investment property [ 52,842.13 51,990,710
Other Intangible asset 7 1.42 4.44
Infangible asset under development 8 212.26 -
Goadwill on consolidation 9 022 022
Equity accounted investees 10 26,374.57 30.803.38
Financial asseis
i} Other investments 11 348.49 63.06
i) Other financial assets 12 1,622.18 1,353.42
Non curreni tax assets 9.848.94 8.955.35
Other non-current assets 13 22.34 20.25
Total non curent asset #9,018.60 1.02,719.97
Current assets
Invenioras 14 2,28.447.91 1.70,780.27
Financial assels
i) Investrenis 15 7,000.00 8,000.00
ii} Trade receivables 16 1,437.68 2,035.46
i) Cash and cosh equivaients 17 10,478.44 1527509
iv] Bank balance other than (ili) above 18 2,597.04 1,371.94
v) Loans 19 8,608.12 8,030.40
vi] Other financial assets 20 1,385.44 7.554.94
Other current assets 21 21,050.83 24,717.93
Tatal current assets 2,81.005.48 2,39.766.25
Total assels 3,80,024.08 3,42,486.22
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 22 2,191.37 62.61
Cther equity 23 1,15,606.62 1,15,925.90
Equity atiributable to shareholders of the company 1,17,797.99 1,15,988.51
Non-controlling interest 26,465.14 24,023.23
Tofal equity 1,44,263.12 1,40,011.74
Non-current liabilifies
Financial Liabilities
i} Bomowings 24 64,942.37 51,518.12
il) Lease liabilities 25 3.48 =
Provisions 24 177.25 171.17
Defered tax liability {nef) 27 15,819.40 18,611.31
Tolal non current llabilities 80,742.50 70,300.60
Current liebiiittes
Fnancial liabiiities
i} Borrowings 28 8,622.51 22,381.98
fi] Lease Liabilities 29 1.23 -
fii) Trade payables 30
[a] tetal outsfanding dues of micro enterprises and smatl
enterprises 1.359.61 493,65
(b} total outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises
and small enferprises £1,983.28 2.050.94
iv) Other financial abilities kil 5,202.07 6,056.3%
Other curent liabifties 32 1,23,00623 89,414.14
Provisicns i} 199.82 188.59
Current tax liabililies 4,443.71 4,586.17
Tote! current liabiliies 1,54,818.46 1,32,173.88
Totat Nabilities 2,35,760.96 2,02,474.48
Tolal equity and liabilities 3.80.024.08 3.42,486.22
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral par of the consolldated financlal statements
As per our report of even date altached For anw, on bahalf of the board of directors
For Singhl & Co. ForRun lopers Private Limited
ntants .
CUU'\ g
Q
) -]
« MUMBAI< Sujata R @ Palfavi Matkarl
% “HY birector Director
Membership Mo.123314 4 .;?" DIN: 03478837 DIN 2 08054518
Cate - 29-09-2023 +* ! 0 Date - 29-09-2023
Place - Mumbai 2 Place - Mumbai
) e~
Sween Nuir/”r’)
Company Secretary
Membearship No.A174634




|Pariculars

|Ihcome

Tatal Income

Expenses

Total Expenses

Tax expenses

Profit after fax

Runwal Developers Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023
CIN NO- U70T100MH1988PFTC046431

{All amounis in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise sliated)

For the year ended

Far the vear ended

Note 31st March, 2023 318l March, 2022
Revenue from operations 34 30.317.08 7687454
Otherincome 35 6,163.65 5,693.44
35,482.73 82,567.98
Cost of construction and develocpment expenses 34 68,435.13 69,091.34
Purcahse of slock in frade 37 501.00 -
Changes in invenfories of finished goods and construction
waork-in-progress 38 {57 ,476.27) {12,315.00)
Employee benefits expenses 39 1,.275.33 1,162.15
Finance costs 40 3,220.04 2,344.55
Depreciation and amorlisation expenses 41 1.424.16 979.36
Other expenses 42 10,281.82 4,213.56
27.661.00 65,476.06
Profit befare share of profit/{loss) of joint ventures and 8,821.72 17.091.92
associates and fax
Income tax {2.901.27) [3.690.44)
Excess/ Shorl provision of faxrelaling fo zarlier years [53.86) -
Defemed tax [credit)/charge 2,796.00 [19,660.82)
Short / [Excess) tax of previous years - 0.23
Total tax expenses [159.13) (23,351.23)
B8,662.5¢ {6,25%.31)
Share of profit/[ioss) of joinf ventures and asscociale 4,428.81) {712.24)
Profit for the year 4,233.78 {6.971.55)
Other Comprehensive Income
(I} tems that will no! be reclassifted to profit or loss
Remeasurement of actuarial gains and losses 13.41 10.55
[} Income tax relating to iterns that will not be reclassilied
to profit orioss [4.10) {2.96)
Share of ethar comprehensive Income in asseciate and
joint venture 829 518
Tolal other comprehensive income for the yaar 17.60 12.77
Total comprehensive Income for the year 4,251.38 {4,958.78)
Profif for the year attributable ta:
(i} Owners of the company 1.792.80 [12,517.80)
{ii) Nan-controling inferest 2,440.98 5,544.25
Cther Comprehenslve Income for the year attributable to:
{i} Gwners of the company 16.68 1535
{i} Non-controlling interest 0.93 {2.58)
Totdl Comprehensive Income for the year attribviable to:
fi) Owners of the company 1,809.48 [12,502.45)
i) Nor-conitrelling interast 244191 5,543.67
Earnings per equily share {amount In Rs.} 43
Basic{face vaiue of Re.1 each) 1.90 13.13)
Diluted (face value of Re.1 each)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

As per our report of even date afached
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Acegpntants

Firm Regrf. No 302

-4
S
-
p

(e

Date - 29-09-2023
Place - Mumbai

-
MUMBA) <

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

>N

-y

For an half of the board of directors
F elfpers Private Limited
Sujata @lavl Matlarl
Director Director

DIN: 03478837 DiN : 08054518

Daie - 29-09-2023
Place - Mumbai

e
Sweena Nair

Company Secretary
Membership No.A17636
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023
CIN NO- U70100MH1988PTC044631

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise sfated)}

For the yaar ended For the year ended
Ranicuiary 315t March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Operating activities
Profit before tax 8,821.72 17,091.92
Adjustrents to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 1.424.16 97937
Finance cosfs 3.220.04 2,344.56
Deferred Expenses from joint development arrangement 1,098.68 5,505.49
Provision for expecied credit loss 261.71 479.43
Fixed assets writien off 2.97
Prov for Grat & leave encash -OC| adjustment 30.72 43.44
Deferred revenue from joint development orrangement (1.098.68) (5,505.4%9)
Profit on sale of Fixed Asset (22.76) (1.44)
Profit on sale of Mutual Fund {15.72) {1.64)
Finance income (1,065.48) (687.22)
Dividend income = {0.02)
Sundry balances written off (3,877.15) (3,872.41)
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back 93.44 195.02
Operating profit belore working capital changes 8,870.48 16,573.98
Working capital adjustments
(Increase)/decrease in frade receivables 362,85 {952.40)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (51,687.78) 5,095.76
(Increase]/decrease in other current and non current financial assets 6,356.69 2,823.48
(increase)/decrease in other cumrent and non cumrent assets 5,665.01 (12,477.77)
Increase /{decrease) in frade payables 3,798.30 2,661.36
Increase /(decrease) in other current financial habilities (1,005.00) (10.769.58)
Increase /(decrease] in other current liabilities 36,275.10 823.30
Changes due to working capital movements (234.83) (12,795.85)
income tax paid (3.991.20) (2,670.19)
Net cash flows from / {used in} operating aclivities 4,644.45 {5,892.08)
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 93.28 7.06
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and infangible assets [348.41} (180.59)
Purchase of investment property (205.76) 12.75
{Increase)/decrease in right to use assetls (113.57)
Advances against land (given) frepaid (net) - 2482
Advance ogainst infangibie asset under development (212.26) -
Withdrawal of investment from partnership firm - 3,322.73
Investment in equity shares and debentures of joint venture - (1,003.00}
Invesiment in units of mutual funds (268.68) (61.25)
Proceed from investments 1,000.00 =
Increase - investment in bank deposit (1,225.10) {1.565.88)
Loans and advances to related parties and others (given)/repaid (net) (577.72) 4,194.80
Addition to cash and cash equivalent on account of acquisition of - 340.44
subsidiary
Dividend received - 0.02
inierest received (finance income) 61017 444.12
Net cash flows from / (used In) investing activities (1,134.48) 5,492 45
Financing aclivities
Interest paid (8,128.33) (3,843.21)
Equity share issuance cost {net of tax| - (3.14)
Amount paid to retiring partners - (2,807.41]
tease rental and interest payment {1.71)
Repayment of non curent borrowings (18,170.25)
Proceeds from non cument borrowings 9,607.95 26,865.23
Proceeds/(repayment) from current borrowings (net) (10.565.71] 1.413.24
Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities (9.087.80) 3,454.26
Netf increase / {decrease)} in cash and cash equivalenis (5.577.63) 3.054.65
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14,986.43 11,931.78
Cash and cash equivalents of the end of the year m 9.408.80




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow $tatement for the year ended 31st March, 2023
CIN NO- U70100MH1988PTC044431

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

Compoenanis of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 14)

a) Balance with banks in current accounts 766177 2,674.02
b) Balance with banks in deposit accounts with original maturily less than thre 2,759.50 11,143.17
) Cheque-in-hand = 1,400.00
d) Cash on hand 57.19 57.90
Total 10,478.44 15,275.09
Less: Book overdrait considered as cash and cash equivalent for cash flow (1,069.64) (288.66)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9,408.80 14,986.43
Notes:

a) The above Cash Flow Siatement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Ind AS 7, 'Statement of
Cash Flows'.

b] Reconciliations of liablities arising from financing activities ;

Particulars il i

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Balance af the beginning of the year 73,900.10 38,817.69
Cash flow (957.76} 10,108.22
On account of business acquisition 24,996.50
Non cash changes 622.54 {22.31]
Balance af the end of the year 73.564.88 73,900.10
As per our reporf of even date aitached For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Singhl & Co. For Rynwal Developers Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regp. NofB02049E

et
Ut

Suja; Rao

al Pallavi Matkari
Partner Director Director
Membership No.123314 DIN: 03478837 DIN : 08054518

Dale - 29-09-2023
Place - Mumbai

Date - 29-09-2023
Place - Mumbai

égww*/,’q

Sweena Nair
Company Secretfary
Membership No.A176346
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Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

1. General information

The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Runwal Developers
Private Limited {the Holding Company}, its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group). associates and
jointly controlled entity for the year ended 315t March, 2023.

The Holding Company is a private limited company incorporated in the year 1988 and domiciled
in India having ifs registered office at Runwal and Omkar Esquare, 5th Floor, Off. Eastern Express
Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai - 400022,

These consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 315t March 2023, were
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors vide Board meeting held on dated 29 September,
2023.

Significant Accountfing Policies and notes to these Consolidated Financial Statements are
intended to serve as o means of informative disclosure and a guide to better understanding of
the financial position of the Group. Recognising this purpose, the Group has disclosed only such
policies and notes which fairly present the needed disclosures.

2, Summary of significant accounting policies
l. Basis of preparation
a. Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group has been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (as amended from fime
to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
{Ind AS compliant Schedule Ill), as applicable to this financial statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using the significant accounting
policies and measurement bases summarized as below. These accounting policies have been
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements,
except where the Group has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition
to ind AS.

b. Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the following:
» Certain Financial instruments are measured at fair value

¢. Preparation of financial statement

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are
prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule 1l o the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepdred and presented in accordance with
Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosures with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule Il fo the Act, are presented by way of
notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed
under the nofified Indian Accounting Standards as amended.




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
Principles of Consolidation and Equity Accounting
(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity, when
the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability o affect the returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by
line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, eqguity, income and expenses. Intercompany
fransactions, balances and unrealized gains or losses on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consclidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Consolidated Balance Sheet respectively.

{ii) Associates/ Joint Venture

Associates or Joint Ventures are all entities over which the Group haos significant influence or Joint
confrol but not control. This is generally the case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights or where decisions over the relevant activities are unanimous in case of joint
venture. Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting after initially being recognized at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the excess of cost of investment over the proportionate
share in equity of the associate/ joint venture as at the date of acquisition of stake is identified as
goodwill or capital reserve as the case may be and included in the canying value of the
investment in the associate/ joint venture.

The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
and the Group's share of other comprehensive income of the investee in Consolidated Other
Comprehensive Income. However, the share of losses is accounted for only to the extent of the
cost of investment. Subsequent profits of such associates/ joint ventures are not accounted for
unless the accumulated losses [not accounted for by the Group) are recouped. Additional losses
are provided for to the extent that the Group has incutred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate and joint venture to satisfy obligations of the associate and joint venture
that the Group has guaranteed or to which the Group is otherwise committed. Unredlised gdains
or losses on fransactions between the Group and iis associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in these entfities.

d. Current and non-current classification

The group presents assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet based on current/ non-
current classification.

An asset is freated as current when it is:




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

i) Expected to be redlised or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operaiing cycle.

ii} Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expected to be redlised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

i} It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

i} It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

i} It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv] There is no unconditional right to defer the setflement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Group classifies gll other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liakilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
reglisation in cash and cash equivalents. The operating cycle of the Group's real estate operations
varies from project to project depending on the size of the project, type of development, project
complexities and related approvals. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities are
classified into current and non-current based on the operating cycle of the project. All other assets
and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current based on a period of twelve
months.

e. Functional and presentalion currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (“INR") which is also the
functional currency of the Group. All values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs.

Il. Use of accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, management of the Group is required fo
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Detailed information about each of
these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the
basis of calculation for each affected lineg item in the financial staternents.

Following are the key areas of judgements, assumptions and estimates which have significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:
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c. Estimation of net redlisable value (NRV) for inventory

Inventory is stated ot the lower of cost and nef realizable value (NRV).

NRV of completed or developed inventory is assessed by reference fo market condifions, prices
and trends existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Group based on comparable

fransactions observed Jidentified for similar properties in the same geographical market serving
the same real estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory under development is assessed with reference to market prices and
frends existing at the reporting date for similar completed property, less the estimated cost to
complete consfruction and an estimate of the fime value of money to the daie of completion.

Estimated cost to complete is reviewed at each year end by considering cost escalation and
overruns basis the progress of the project,

b. Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. When the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects curent market assessment of the
fime value of money and the risk specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal,
recent market fransactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identfified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples
or other available fair value indicators.

¢. Impairment of financial asseis

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs for impairment calculation, based on Group's past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporiing period.

d. Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in
Schedule Il, they are based on technical advice. Assurmptions also need to be made when the
Group assesses whether an asset may be capitalised and which components of the cost of the
asset may be capitalised.

e. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rafe, expected refurn on plan assets,
frends in salary escalation and attrition rate. The discount rate is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of
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the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit
obligations.

f. Fair valve measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of the financial assets and liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot
be measured based on the quoted market prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from the observable market
wherever possible, but where this is not feasible, a review of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. Any changes in assumptions could affect the fair value relating to financial instruments.

g. Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Group reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other
confingencies. For confingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded
as an accrual in financial statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not
provided for but disclosed as Contingent liakilities in the financial statements. Confingencies the
likelhood of which is remote are not disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are
not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are received or receivable,

h. Recognition of deferred fax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax-loss carmry forwards and unused tax credits to
the extent that redlisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The assessment of the probability
with regard to the realisation of the tax benefit involves assumptions based on the history of the
entity and budgeted data for the future.

. Measurement of fair values

The Group measures financial instruments, such as cerfain investmenis atf fair value at each
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
fransfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advanfageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best inferest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valugtion fechniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are availakle to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of uncbservable inputs.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
The Management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
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third party information is used to measure fair values, then the Management assesses the
evidence obtained from third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations
should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Group uses observable
market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in o fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

level 1: Quoted prices in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or
liokility, either directly [i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair vaiue hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

IV. Property, plant and equipment & depreciation
a. Recognilion and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. The Cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises of:

i. its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting
trade discounts and rebates.

ii. any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner infended by Management.

iii. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located, the obligation for which the Group incurs either when the item is acquired or
as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to
produce inventories during that pericd.

iv, Borrowing costs relating to acguisition / construction / development of Property, Plant and
Equipment, which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also
included to the extent they relate 1o the period fill such assets are ready to be put to use.

v. Ihcome and expenses related fo the incidental operations, not necessary to kring the item to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by Management are recognised in Statement of profit and Loss. If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separafe items {major components) of property, plant and equipment.
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b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is added to its book
value only it it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance. All other expenses on existing Property, Plant and Equipment, including
repdir and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Expenses incurred for acquisiion of capital assets excluding advances paid towards the
acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding ot each Balance Sheet date are
disclosed under Capital Work in Progress.

Capital Work in Progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried
at cost, comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the Group in the year of disposal.

c. Depreciaiion

Depreciation is provided from the date the assets are ready to be put to use on straight line
method as per the useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment including property held as
Investment as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is calculated on a preorata basis from the date of installation / acquisition till the date
the assets are sold or disposed.

Depreciable ameunt for assets is the cost of an asset or amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value.

Nature of the asset Usetul life
Computers 3 yeqars
Plant & Machinery

Solar 25 years
windmit| 22 years
Office Eguipment 5 years
Vehicle 8 years
Furniture and Fittings 10 years

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically.
d. Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initiclly recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any Gain or loss arising on derecognifion of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.
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V. Investment properties

Building, that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
in use by the Group, is classified as Investment Property. Investment property is measured initially
at its acquisition cost, including related fransaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when
incurred. When part of an Investment property is replaced, the carrying ameount of the replaced
part is derecognised. The carrying amount of investment property is reviewed periodically for
impairment based on internal and external factors. An impdirment loss is recognised wherever the
carrying amount of assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the asset's net selling price and value in use.

Investment properties (Building) are depreciated on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are in line with Schedule [l to the Companies
Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assefts.

Initicl direct costs incurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging an operating lease shall be
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as the lease income.

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method o allocate the cost of assefs, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful life of investment property is 60 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanenfly withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss in the same period.

VI. Intangible assets
<. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.
The cost of an intangible asset comprises of its purchase price including any import duties and
other taxes [other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities) and any
directly athibutable expenditure on making the asset ready for its infended use.

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

c. Amorlisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, from the
date the asset is available to the Group for its use. The amortisation period and the amortization
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful lite are reviewed atleast atf the end of each
reporting pericd.
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The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Nature of the asset Amortisation period
Computer software (ERP) 10 years - license period
Computer software {other than ERP) 3 years

d. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible assef are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

VII. Foreign cuirency transactions / translations

a. Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the closing rate prevailing on the dates of the
respective fransactions or at the contracted rates as applicable.

b. Monetary assets and liakilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
franslated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date,

c. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translafing monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the
periad or in previous financial statements are recognised In the statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they arise.

VIII. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

a. Financial assels

All regular way purchases or satles of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a frade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place. All recognised financial assets are subseguently measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost or tair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

i. Financial assets af amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amoriised cost using the effective interest rate
method if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is 1o hold these assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset giverise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount cutstanding.




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
ii. Financiai assets ai fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured af fair value through other comprehensive income if it
is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outsfanding.

On initial recognition, the Group makes an irevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument
basis to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining
to investments in equity insfruments, other than equity investment which are held for trading.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity
insfruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

jii. Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably elects on
initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for
investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading. Other financial assets are
measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

iv. Investment in associates & jeint venture

Investment in associates are measured using the equity method of accounting affer inifially being
recognized at cost less impairment as per Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements.

v. Impairment of investmenis

The Group reviews its camying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently
when there is indication forimpairment. lf the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is accounted in the statement of profit and loss.

vi. Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

- the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Group has transterred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement? and either {a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asseft, nor fransferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
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asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an asseciated liability. The fransferred asset and the asscciated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and abligations that the Group has retained.

vii. Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses af each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses o be measured through
loss allowance. The Group recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all
frade receivables that do not constitute a financing fransaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses
or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition.

viii. Step acquisitions (subsidiary is acquired in stages):

When the initial investment made by the Group in any other entity was not falling under the
category of an associate, joint venture or subsidiary of the entity, cost of such enfity gets
accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 109 "Financial Inshruments” at fair value.

When such an entity becomes a subsidiary, the Group cccounts for the cost of the investment in
the subsidiary as the sum of the consideration paid for the initial interest, plus any consideration
paid for the additional inferest (accumulated cost approach).

When the accumulated cost approach is applied, the Group recognises the difference between
the fair value of the initial interest at the date of obtaining conirol of the subsidiary and its original
consideration in profit or loss, regardless of whether, before obtaining control, the initial investment
had been measured at fair value through profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCI),

b. Financial liabilities and equity instruments
i. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial fability and an equity instrument.

it. Equily instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of ifs liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recegnised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

iii. Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of financial liabilities at
amorfised cost, net of directly attributable fransaction costs. All financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses
are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the Effective Interest Rate (EIR} amortisation process. Amortised cost s calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cosfs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
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iv, Derecognition

A financial licbility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liakility and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective canying amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

c. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassify cation is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model
are expected 1o be infrequent. The Group’s senior management determines change in the
business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group's
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs
when the Group either begins or ceases o perform an activity that is significant to its operations.
If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
{including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

d. Offselling of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an infention to settle on a net basis, to redlise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

IX. inventories

Direct expenditure relating to Real Estate Development activity is inventorized, Other expenditure
(including borrowing costs) during construction period is inventorized o the extent the
expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for itsintended
use. Other expenditure [including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which
is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use is
charged to the statement of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on
specific identification 1o the construction and real estate activity. Cost incurred/ items purchased
specifically for projects are taken as consumed as and when incurred/ received.

a. Inventories comprise of: (i) Finished Realty Stock representing unsold premises in completed
projects (i) Realty Work in Progress representing properfies under construction /development
including land held for development on which construction activities are yet to commence ({iii)
Transferable development rights {TDRs)

b. Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net redlisable vaolue.

c. Cost of Redalty construction / development is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
proportion to the revenue recognised during the period and the balance cost is caried over
under Inventory as part of either Realty Work in Progress or Finished Realty Stock. Cost of Realty
construction / development includes all costs directly related o the Project (including finance
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cost attributable to the project) and other expenditure as identified by the Management which
are incurred for the purpose of executing and securing the completion of the Project (net off
incidental recaoveries / receipts) upto the date of receipt of Occupation Certificate of Project from
the retevant authorities.

Realty Work in Progress includes cost of land, premium for development rights, transferable
development rights (TDR}, construction costs, allocated interest and expenses incidental to the
projects undertaken by the Group.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
cosfs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

X. Revenue recognifion

a. The Group has applied five step model as set out in Ind AS 115 to recognise revenue in this
Financial Statements:

Step 1. Identify the contractis) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for
every confract that must be met.

Step 2. ldentify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3. Determine the fransaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Group expecis to be entitled in exchange for fransfening promised goods or services
to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group will dilocate the transaction
price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance cbligation.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs; or

- The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced: or

- The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is
recognised at the poeint in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time and over a pericd of time based on the conditions
in the contracts with customers.
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The specific revenue recognition criteria are described below:
(i) Income from Property Development

The Group has determined that the existing terms of the contract with customers does not meet
the criteria fo recognise revenue over a period of fime. Revenue is recognized at point in fime
with respect to contracts for sale of residential and commercial units as and when the conftrol is
passed on to the customers which is linked to the receipt of occupancy certificate and onissuing
the possession letter of the property. However, in those cases where the receipt of occcupancy
certificate is significantly delayed after an applicafion is made towards the respective project with
the appropriate authorities, revenue is recognised when the enftire sales consideration of the
respective units are received and the soft possession for fit outs being given to customers.

i} Scale of Materials, Land and Development Rights

Revenue is recognized at point in fime with respect to confracts for sale of Materials, Land and
Development Rights as and when the control is passed on to the customers.

{iii} Income from Investment in Partnership Firms & LLP, AOPs

Share of profit / loss in Partnership firms is recognized when the right to receive is established as
per agreement / agreed terms between all the partners / members.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is accounted on an accrual basis at effective interest rate {EIR method).
{(v) Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted over the lease terms.

[vi) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.

b. Contract balances

Coniract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
{i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract llability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received considerafion {or an ameount of consideration is due) from the cusfomer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Group fransfers goods or services to the customer, a
contfract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due {whichever is
earlier}). Contract liakilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract,
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c. Cost to obtain a contract

The Group recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
if the ¢ expects to recover those costs. The Group incurs costs such as sales commission when it
enters info a new contfract, which are directly related fo winning the contract,

d. Joint development amrangement

The Group execules projects through Joint Development Arrangements (JDA), wherein the land
owner provides land and the Group undertakes to develop properties on such land (i.e.
development right} and in lieu of land owner providing land, the Group has agreed to fransfer
certain percentage of constructed area or certain percentage of the revenue proceeds or
certain percentage of surplus to the land owner. Transfer of such constructed area or revenue or
surplus in exchange of such development rights/ land is being estimated at fair value as per the
terms of the agreement and accounted for on launch of the project as the cost of development
right {Inventory) with its corresponding liability. When the fair value of the land cannot be
measured reliably, the revenue and cost is measured at the fair value of the estimated
construction service rendered to the landowner adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash
equivalents transferred. Subsequent 1o initial recognition, such liability is remeasured on each
reporting period depending on the type of the arrangement, to reflect the changes in the
estimate, if any.

In case of JD amrangements, where performance obligation is satisfied over time, the Group
recognizes revenue only when it can reasonably measure its progress in safisfying the
performance obligation. Uniil such time, the Group recognizes revenue to the extent of cost
incurred, provided the Group expects to recover the cosfs incurred towards satisfying the
performance obligation.

Xl Income tax

d. Current income tax:

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable profit for the period. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted by the reporting
date and applicable for the period.

b. Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for all deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the
deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a fransaction
that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the
time of transaction.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is redlized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax asset in respect of carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused fax
losses can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the exfent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

c. Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in OCl, in which case, the current and
deferred tax income/ expense are recognized in OCI. The Group offsets current tax assets and
current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceabte right to set off the recognized amounts
cand where it intends either 1o settle on a net basis, or To redlize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liakilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same tax authority on the Group.

Xl Employee benefits

a. Short ferm employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected o be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

b. Post-employment benefits

{i) Defined Confribution Plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided.

Prepdid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in future payments is available.

(i} Defined Benefit Plans

Payment of Grafuity to employees is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. Provision for Gratuity
is recorded on the basis of actuarial valuation certificate provided by the actuary using Projected
Unit Credit Method.

The Group's net abligation in respect of defined benefit pians is calculated separately for each
ptan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit obiigations is performed annually by a gudilified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group,
the recognised asset is imited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the
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present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements,

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and losses
and the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset celling (if any,

excluding interest) are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Net
interest expense/ (income) on the net defined liability / (assets) is computed by applying the
discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability / {asset). Nef interest expense and other
expenses related o defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the setlement occurs.

a. Other long term employee benefits

The Group's liability towards compensated absences is determined by an independent actuary
using Projected Unit Credit Method. Past services are recognised on a straight line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately in the Statement of profit and Loss as income or expense or recognized under Other
Comprehensive Income to the extent such actuarial gains or losses arise due to experience
adjustments. Obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows using
a discounted rate that is determined by reference to the market yields at the Balance Sheet date
on Government Bonds where the currency and terms of the Government Bonds are consistent
with the currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.

Xl Leases
a. Where Group is the lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities 1o make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement daie of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liakilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease ferm and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

ii. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease ferm. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees.
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In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
delerminable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accrefion of inferest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addifion, the
carnying amount of lease liabilifies is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments {e.g.. changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments} or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii. Short term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

d. Where Group is the lessor

Leases in which the Group does not fransfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as renfal income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

XIV Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds and is measured with reference fo the effective interest rate applicable to the respective
borrowing.

Borrowing costs allocated to qualifying assets pertains fo the period from commencement of
acftivities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset upto the fime dll the
activilies necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Borrowing cost are suspended from inventorisation/capitalisation when development work on the
project/assets is interrupted for extended period and there is no imminent certainty of
recommencement of work.

All other borrowing costs are recegnised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

XV Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent as reported in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. However, for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise of cash and short term depaesits as defined in Ind AS 7.
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XVl Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / {loss) after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the events for bonus issue, bonus element
in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares),

Diluted eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit / {loss) after tax as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net off any attributable taxes) relating
to the dilutive potentfial equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighied average number of equity
shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

XVII Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assels

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertaintfies surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows {when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Confingent liabilities are disclosed for:

i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control
of the Group or

(i1} Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required 1o settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannotf be made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in Financial Statements. If an inflow of economic benefits
has become probable, contingent assets are disclosed.

Contingent Assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the Financial Statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognised in the Financial Statements of
the period in which the changes occurs.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date.

XVl Segment reporling

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to
fransactions with any of the Group's other components, and for which discrete financial
information is available.
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All operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors fo make
decisions about resources to be dllocated to the segments and assess their performance.

Accordingly, the Group has identified following as its reporfable segment for the purpose of Ind
AS 108:

a) Real estate segment;

b) Lease rental activity;

c) Power generation

Real Estate segment (RE) comprises development of land, sale of land, sale of Transferable
Development Rights (TDRs} and operation of all or any part of townships, housing projects. Lease
rental comprises the rental of properties as Shopping Malls. Power generation is through Solar and
Wind Mill.

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit
or loss in the financial statements. Also, the Group's financing (including finance costs and finance
income) and income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are not allocated o operating
segments. Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm'’s lengih basis in a manner
similar to fransactions with third parties.

XIX Business combinatlions

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations for the
businesses which are not under common control. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration fransferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the
amount of any non-conirolling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether t0 measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s idenfifiable net assefs. Acquisition related costs are
expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent
liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values
irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable.
However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at
the basis indicated below:

a} Deferred tax assets or liabilities and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with ind AS 12 'lncome Tax’
and Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ respectively.

b) Polential tax eftects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist
at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are
accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12,

¢} Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual ferm of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential
renewal of the reacquired right.

Any confingent consideration fo be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments’, is measured at fair value with
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changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the
scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS.
Conlingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subseguent reporting
dates and its subsequent seftlement is accounted for within equity.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assefs and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designaticn in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent condifions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured
at ifs acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OC,
as appropriate.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the group are accounted for using
the pooling of interests method as follows:

* The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts,

* No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.
Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting policies.

* The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if
the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding peried in the
financial statements, irespective of the actual date of the combination, However, where the
business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only
from that date.

* The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is
aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the
fransferee or is adjusted against general reserve.

* The identfity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the fransferor become the reserves
of the transferse.

* The ditference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any
additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of
the transferor is fransferred fo capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital
reserves.
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Note 4
Capital Work-In-Progress (CWIP)

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, uniess ofherwise stafed)

Padiculars

Praperty, Plant and
Equipment

Investment Property Total

Cosi

As at 01st October, 2021

Add: addifion during the period
Add: Transferred from Inventories
Less: Capitalised during the period
Less: Transferred to profit and loss
As at 31st March, 2022

Add: Addition during the pericd
Add: Transfered from Inventories
Less: Caopitalised during the period
Less: Transferred to profit and loss

As at 31st March, 2023

= 1,612.96 1,612.96
- (10.34) (10.34)
= (2.40) {2.40)
s 1,600.22 1,600.22
58,14 - 5814
. [1,600.22) {1,600.22)
58.14 - 58.14

Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023

Property, Plant and Equipment
{CWIP)

(CWIP) for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 yedars 2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Property, Plant and Equipment
Project in progress
Projects iemporarily suspended

Investment Properly
Project in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

58.14

58.14

Project in progress

58.14

58.14

Projects temporarily suspended

Total

58.14

58.14

Adgelng schedule as at March 31, 2022

Property, Plant and Equipment
(CWIP)

{CWIP) for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Property, Plant and Equipment
Project in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

Investment Property
Project in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

7.53

42.51 99.19

1.450.98

1,600.21

Project In progress

7.53

42.51 99.12

1,450.98

1,600.21

Projects temporarily suspended

Total

7.53

42.51 f99.1%

1,450.98

1.600.21

The Company's investment property under construction consists of some commercial properties in India.
Based on the intention and business plans, commercial properties owned by the Firmis considered as being held for capital
appreciaiion and rental income rather than for business purposes.

The Company has no resiriction on the realisability of its investment property under construction.

Capital work in progress of Property, Plant & Equipment mainly comprises of expenditure towards Electrical Equipments.

The valuation of property have been delermined by independent valuers registered as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registeered
Valuers of Valuation] Rules, 2017. The calculation has been conducted through a Sale comparision technique. Under this approach the
market value has been obtained by considering value of comparable property having same utility & attraction. Under this method
average rate for esfimated leasable area has been obiained from varicus sale instances for similar properties after adjusting it for varicus
factors as size, discount, rates, local attributes, good frontage positive and negative factors associated with the property under
valuation. All resulting fair value estimates for investment are included in level 2.
Capital work In progress of Investment Property mainly comprises of expenditure fowards Building. Fair valuation is Rs. Nil {P.Y. Rs.1,412.96

lakhs} as per Fair Valuation Report.

Refer Note 48 for disclosure of capital commitment of construction of Property, Plat and Equipment
The CWIP relates to project which are in Progress. No such projects are suspended.

= (MU

BAH <
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Note §
Right of use asset
Reconciliation of Carrying Amount

Particulars

Gross block

As at 01st April, 2021
Additions
Disposals/Adjustments
As at 31st March, 2022
Additions
Disposals/Adjustments
As at 31 March, 2023

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 01st April, 2021

Cepreciation charge for the year
Disposals

As at 315t March, 2022
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31 March, 2023

Net block

As at 31st March, 2023
As at 31st March, 2022
{Refer note - 56)

Note &
Investment Property*®

Particulars

Gross block

As at 01st April, 2021
Adjustment due to acquisition of subsidiary
Additions

Addition due to revaluation
Disposals

As at 31st March, 2022
Additions

Reclassification

Disposals

As at 31st March, 2023

Accumuiated depreciation

As at 01st April, 2021

Adjustment due to acquisition of subsidiary
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31st March, 2022

Depreciation charge for the year
Depreciation on Reclassified qssets
Disposals

As at 31st March, 2023

Net block
As at 31st March, 2023
As at 31st March, 2022

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise sfated)

Land Total
113.57 113.57
113.57 113.57
5.80 5.80
119.37 119.37
5.97 597
5.97 5.97
7.31 7.31
13.28 13.28
106.09 104.09
107.60 107.60
Land Building Total

- 5,008.31 5,008.31

209.30 2,388.55 10,297.85

151.95 - 151,95

8,443.49 30,095.00 38.538.49

- (1,061.25) -1,061.25

$,504.74 43,430.61 52,935.35

- 1,805.98 1,805.98

(111.35) 111.35 -

9,393.3¢% 45,347.94 54,741.33

- 460.35 460,35

- 410.36 410.36

o 74.54 74.54

- 945.25 945.25

- 952.77 95277

- 1.18 1.18

- 1,8%99.20 1,899.20

43,448.74 52,842.13

42,485.36 51,$90.10
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property

particul for the Year ended For the Year ended
CIISREC 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Rental income derived from investment

property 2,293.03 1.107.74

Direct operatfing expenses 1,156.50 932.12

Profit/(loss) uns:ln?; from investment property 1.136.13 175.42

before depreciation

Less: Depreciatfion (953.95) 484,90
182.18 (309.28)

Profit/(Loss) arising from investment properly

*The Company’s investment property consists of commercial properties of Rmall mulund, Runwal odeon mail and
Rmail Thane.

Leasing arrangements

The Company has given mall premises on lease which includes both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of
the leases are renewable for further period on mutually agreeable terms and dlso include escalation clauses. The
rental income in respect of cancellable leases is disclosed as 'License fees and rental income’ in note 34 . With respect
to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Particulars As at As af

ey 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Within one year 1,527.15 1,338.07
I;/Zg; than one year but not later than 5 1.334.02 1.941.46

Contingent rent recognised as income - Rs. 299.09 Lakhs {315t March, 2022: Rs. 150.68 Lakhs)

The Company has no restriction on the realisability of its investment property and no contractual obligations to
purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

The valuation of property have been determined by independent valuers registered as defined under rule 2 of
Companies (Registeered Valuers of Valuation) Rules, 2017. The calculgtion has been conducted through a Sale
comparision technique. Under this approach the market value has been obidined by considering vatue of
comparable property having same ulility & attraction. Under this method average rate for estimated leasable area
has been obtained from various sale instances for similar properties after adjusting it for various factors as size, discount,
rates, local atfributes, good frontage positive and negative factors associated with the property under valuation. All
resulting fair value estimates for investment are included in level 2.

Fair valuation of commercial properties for land and building together is based on Sales comparison method which is
Rs.66,249 Lakhs (31st March, 2022 Rs.66,997.04 lakhs) as per valuation report for the pericd ended 31st March, 2023
respectively.

On adoption of IND AS, inventory given on legse rental is classified under head investment properties as per para 57 of
Ind AS 40.

The canrying amount cf investiment properfies charged as securities against borrowings amounts to Rs. 43,44%.83 lakhs
(P.Y. Rs. 41,180.88 iakhs)




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{(All amountis in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 7
Intangible assels

Particulars Computer Sofftware Total

Gross block

As at 01st April, 2021 28.89 28.89
Additions 293 293
Disposals - -
As af 31st March, 2022 31.82 31.82
Adlditions 0.53 0.53
Disposals - -
As at 31st March, 2023 32.35 32.35
Accumulated amortisation

As at 01st April, 2021 19.04 19.04
Amortisation charge for the year 8.34 8.34
Disposals - -
As at 31st March, 2022 27.38 27.38
Amortisation charge for the year 3.55 3.55
Disposals - -
As atl 31st March, 2023 30.93 30.93
Net block

As at 31st March, 2023 1.42 1.42

As at 31st March, 2022 4.44 4.44




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial staternents for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounis in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 8

Infangible asset under development

Particulars Software Total

Cost

As at 01st April, 2021 - -
Additions - -
Capitalised during the year - -
As at 31st March, 2022 - -

Additions 21224 212.26
Capitalised during the year - -
As af 31st March,2023 212.26 212.26

a) Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023

Infanglble assels under Amount In Infangible assets under developme:;of:: izﬁr;od of
development Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years — Total
Projects in progress 212.26 - - - 212.26
Projects tfemporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 212.26 - - - 21224

b) Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022

Intangible assets under Amount In Intangible assets under development for a period of
More than 3

development Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
years

Projects in progress = = = = E
Proiects femporarily suspended - - - - -
Total - - = = =

Infangible assets under development mainly comprises of expendiiure towards software.
Refer Note 48 for disclosure of Capital Commiiments for acquisition of Intangible Assets under development.

The Intangible assets under development are related to projecis which are in Progress. No projects are suspended.

No projects have exceeded their original imelines or original budget.




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless ofherwise sfated}

As atb As at
higte 3 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Goodwill
Gocedwill on Consolidation 0.22 0.22
0.22 0.22
As at As at
Note 10

31st Mareh, 2023 31st March, 2022

Equily accounted investees
Investments measured at equity method

1. In equity shares of assoclale companies:

Unquoted, fully paid vp

Wheeiabrator Alloy Castings Limited

{C.Y. 8,00.400 shares of Rs. 100 each; P.Y. 8,00.400 shares of Rs. 100 each) SR G
2. In shares of joint venture companies

Ungquoted, fully paid up

R Retail Ventures Private Limited **

{C.Y. 20,31,10,000 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y. 10,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)
CCPS series 2 0.01% preference shares

{C.Y. Nil shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y. 20,31,00,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)

521092 17.041.08

R mall Developers Privafe Limited

Class A

(C.Y. 19,920,000 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y. 19,90,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)
Class B

(C.Y. 47,142 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y. 47,142 shares of Rs. 10 each)

1592428 10,557 .64

26,374.57 30,803.38

**as on 315t March, 2023 invesiment of R Retail Ventures Private Limited CCPL Series 2 - 0.01% preference shares of Rs,
20,310 Lakhs equivalent o 20,31,00,000 shares of Rs.10/- each converted into equity shares of Rs. 20,310 Lakhs equivalent
20,31,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each approved through Board Resoiuticon.

Note 11 As af As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

QOther non current investments
Invesiments measured at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL)

In ungueoted equity shares, fully paid up
Ariane Crgachem Private Limited 0.17 0.17
{C.Y. 100 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y. 100 shares of Rs. 10 each) ‘ )

In mutual fund
Aditya birla sun life saving fund - growth - direct plan 348.32 62.89
[ C.Y - 74,858.207 units, P.Y. - 48,086.93 units}

348.4% £3.06

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and markei value thereof 348.32 42.89

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 0.17 0.17




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March, 2023

Note 12

As at
31st March, 2022

Ofher non-current financial assets
{Unsecured considered good unless olherwise staled)

To pardies other than related pardies

Security deposits# 1,377.89 240.16
{ease Fqualization Reserve 82.41 134.32
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturiby* 141.88 978.94
1,622.18 1.353.42
# Security deposits are towards ufility deposits, earmest meney deposits and towards other deposits.
* Bank deposits held as margin money and lien marked for issuing bank guarantees amounting to Rs. 80 lakhs {PY Nil)
As at As ot

Note 13 31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Other Non-Current Assets
{Unsecured considered good unless oftherwise stafed)

To relafed pariies

Security deposit # 20.43 18.32

To parties other than related parties

Other non curent asset 1.91 1.93
22,34 20.25

# Securities deposits will be adjusied against the tand for which the amount is given,

Note 14 As at As at

31st March, 2623

31st March, 2022

Inventeries (valued at lower of cost or net realisable vaiue)

Raw material 52710 335.73
Consfruction work In progress 2,03,473.60 1,36,521.61
Finished goods 23.946.21 33.204.55
Entitlement of fransferable development righis - 718.38
Stock in trade 501.00 -

2,28,447.91 1.70,780.27
The camrying amount of inventorias charged as securities cgainst borowings 67.913.34 73,319.89
Note 15 As at As at

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Current investments

Investments measured at cost
Investment in debentures of joint venture - unqueoted, fully paid up

R Mall Cevelopers Private Limited* - 1.000.00

(1,000 Non-convertible debentures of face value of iINR 1,00,000)

Investment in debenture instruments {at cmortised cost)

OCD Series 3 #

Horizon Projects Pvt Ltd (7,000 debeniures of Rs 1,00,00C each) 7,000.00 7,000.00
7.000.00 8,000.00

* Debentures of Rs 500 lakhs redeemed in July, 2022 and balance redeemed in August, 2022

# Each OCD series 3 shall have a face value of Rs. 100,000, The Tencr of the QCD Series 3 shall be uniil March 31, 2024, or
such extended term as may be determined by the board with the prior written consent of CCD Series 3 holders
redeermabile at a premium, which is to be decided at the fime of redempfion.

At the expiry of the tenor any unredeemed face value OCD Series 3 may be converted to Class C Shares, The OCD Series
3 shall be unsecured. The OCD Series 3 shall not cary any voting rights.

Aggregate amount of unquoted invesiments 7.000.00
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 17 As at As at
31st March, 2023 315t March, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

in curreni accounts * 7.661.77 2,674.02
In deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 2,759.50 11,143.17
Cheque-in-hand - 1,400.00
Cash on hand 57.1% 57.90

10,478.44 15,275.09

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three montins, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company and earns interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

*Includes amount held in escrow account for a project under Real Estate (Regulation and Development] Act, 2016 ["RERA"). The
money can be utilised for payments of the specified projects.

As at As ot

Note 18 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Bank balances other than above

In deposit accounts (with original maturity more than three months but [ess than twelve

months| # 2,597.04 1,371.94

2,597.04 1,371.94

# Bank deposits held as margin meney and lien marked for issuing bank guarantees amounfing to Rs.164.43 lakhs
(PY Rs., 9.30 lakhs)

As at As al

Neter12 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Loans

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

To related parties

Inter Corporate Deposits * = 4500

To Parties other than related parties

Security deposit 1,289.54 811.30
Inter corporate deposit** 7.310.60 7.142.23
Lodns and advances o employees A 7.98 31.87

8,608.12 8,030.40

* Inter corporate deposits given to relaled parties are repayable on demand. (refer nole no 47)

** Inter corporate deposits given fo parties other than related parties have rate of interest of 12% p.a. which Rs. 150 Lakhs repayable
on or before 01-08-2023 & further Rs.150 Lakhs on or before 01-12-2023 and parties have rate of interest of 9% p.a which repayable
within 3 years from date of agreement.

In DWMPL inter corporate depaosits given to parfies other than related parties have rate of inferest of 8.5% p.a. and are repayable on
demand.

A Loans and advances fo employees are adjusted against future salaries and reimbursement of expenditures.

As at As at
Type of Borrower 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Amount Amount
. % of Total . % of Total
outstanding oulstanding
Promoters - 0.00% - 0.00%
Directors - 0.00% - 0.00%
KMP's - 0.00% - 0.00%
Related Parties - 0.00% 45,00 0.56%

Total - 0.00% 45.00 0.56%




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Nofes fo consolidated financial statemenis for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stafed)

As at
Note 20 31st March, 2023

Other Current Financial Assets
{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stafed)

To Related Parties

As at
31st March, 2022

Balance receivable as retired partner = 661.45
Receivable towards cancellation of flats - -
Receivable towards cancellation of lease 46.00 6.00
Security deposit* - 592393
To Paities other than related parties
Security deposit* 306.88 231.09
Recaverable from society - 144.04
Other receivables 36.50 17.42
Other advancesi# 219.43 18%2.52
Interest accrued but not due 771.67 315.74
Lease Equalization Reserve 44.96 65.77
1,385.44 7,554.94

* Security deposils are towards utility deposits, eamest money depaosits and towards other deposits which are repayalkle on demand

# Other advances are repayable an demand.

As at
31st March, 2023

Note 21

Other Current Assels
{Unsecured considered good unless ofherwise stated)

Advances other than capital advances
To Related Parties

As at
31st March, 2022

Security deposit** - 4,374.00
To Parlies other than related parties
Advance to suppliers and contracior 3,575.21 2.863.06
Advance against flafs 1,080.99 506.51
Balances with statutory authorities 997.85 783.97
Prepaid expenses 130.16 2481
Advance for land/others/TDR# 8,960.28 14,749 .20
Deferred brokerage 6,306.34 3.346.38
21.050.83 25,717.93

# Advances against land/others are towards purchase commitments, are nen - interest bearing in nature and shall be settled against

future purchase of such assets.

** Security deposits given to related parties are non interest bearing.
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Runwal Developers Privaie Limited

Notes to consclidated financial siatements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, uniess otherwise stafed)

Note 23
Other equity

Capital Reserve

Balance as at 01st April, 2021
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2022
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Capital redempticn reserve

Balance as at 01st April, 2021

Movement during the year

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Creation on redemptlion of prefernce shares
Amount utilised for issuance of Bonus Shares
Balance as at 31si March, 2023

Capital reserve on consolidaiion

Balance as at 01st April, 2021
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2022
Movement during the year
Balance as af 31st March, 2023

Securities premium

Balance as ai 01st April, 2021
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2022
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2023

General reserve

Balance as at 01st April, 2021
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2022
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Retained earmings

Balance as at 01st April, 2021

Profit for the year ended 31st March, 2022
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (net of tax]
Fair value gain on instrument subsequently measured at fair value through other
Acquisition of subsidiary

Effects of transaction between equity participants
Reversal of excess value of treasury shares (refer note 22)
Balance as af 31st March, 2022

Profit for the year ended 315t March, 2023
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Cregtion of CRR on redemption of Preference Shares
Reversal of excess value of freasury shares {refer note 22)
Transfer/ufilisation of reserves (CRR}

Balance as af 31st March, 2023

133,695.59)

(33,695.59)

(33,695.59)

1.803.22
(1.803.22

2,32
53,819.31
53,821.63

53,821.63

24,201.78

(3.14)
24,198.64

(362.00
23,836.64

225.00

225.00
(225.00)

91,355.74
(12,517.80}
15.35

(6,495.43)
427.12
{1,408.746)
71,376.22
1,792.80
16.68
(1,578.22)
36.46

71,643.94




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidafed financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(Al amounis in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Non controlling interest

Balance as ai 01st April, 2021 16,132.01
Movement during the year 7,891.22
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 24,023.23
Movement during the year 2,441.91
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 246,465.14
Total equity

At 01 April 2021 98,221.26
Al 31st March 2022 1,39.949.13
Al 31st March 2023 1,42,071.75

Nature and purpose of reserves

1} Capital reserve

Capital reserve comprises of Rs.35,718 lakhs on account of merger in the year 2018-19 of Runwal Realty Private
Limited ("RRPL"), Runwal Projects Private Limited {"RPPL"} and Runwal Township Private Limited ("RTPL"jhave merged
into Runwal Developers Private Limited resulting infe a negative capital reserve of Rs. 10,175 lakhs, negaiive capital
reserve of 28,640 lakhs and a positive capital reserve of Rs. 3,097 lakhs.

2) Capital reserve on consolidation
Capital reserve arising on account of consclidation of subsidiaries.

3) General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As
the general reserve is created by a transter from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other
comprehensive incame, items included in general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.

4) Refained earnings
Retained sarnings are the profit that the Company (including all merged entifies) has eamed fill date, less any
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

5) Securities premlum

On account of merger of RRPL and RPPL being accounted for using the pooling of inferest method, the securities
premium of the respective companies as appearing on the appointed date of merger is merged infa RBPL's
reserves.,




Runwal Developers Private Limied
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Note 24

Nen-current financial liabilities- borrowings {at amortised cost)
Secured:
Term loans

From banks
From athers
Vehicle loan from bank

Less: Amouni disciosed under curent bomrowings as curent maturities of long-term
bomrowings [refer note 28)

Less: Unamortised borowing cost

Ufnsecured:
7% Redeemable preference shares®

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless ofherwise stated)

As at As at

— 3t March 2023 . 31l March, 2022

13,097.45 10,138.68
53,060.74 44,198.99
2972 46.64
{61507) (4,459.09)
{630.47} {472.00)

= 44.90
$4,942.37 51,518.12

* The Company has issued 6,49,000 7% Redeemable Non - cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each on 3Gth November, 2019 in censideration of amalgamation of RTPL,
RFPL and RRPL with RDPL on 30th November, 2019. The RPS shall be redeermnable at par at the oplion of fransferee company anylime after five [5) years but before 20 years
fram the date of allotment. On 26th September, 2022 with the approval of shareholders of the Company, these preference shares have been redeemed.

A. Secured loans from banks:

$r. No. |Loan taken from Quistanding amount|Rate of interest Secured against/ guarantee given Terms of repayment
1 |Bank of Baroda - foan Ajc no.|C.Y. - Nil B.65% Termn loan under future rent receivable scheme of|Monthly EMI of Rs.47,65,000 fill
0416660C020468 [B.Y.- 992.55) Barnk of Baroda , Secured by Agreement of|January 2024, last EMI on 29th
assignment of rent receivables and equitable|February, 2024 of Rs.25,37.4642
mertgage of seme commercial shops situated in R-
Odeon Mall, Ghatkopar East, odmeasuring a
leasable area of 53,505 sq.ft.
2 [Bank of Barada - loan A/c no.|C.Y, - Nil B.65% Secured by lease rentals of Rmall mulund. Monthly EMI of Rs.54,76,200 till
04180600020449 {P.Y.-1,186.14) January 2024, last EMI on 29ih
February, 2024 of Rs.59,60,248
3 |Bank of Bareda car loan CY.-3.08 7.60% Car - maruti suzuki new wagon R LXI [O) CNG 36 Months EMI
account 038104600002072 {P.Y.- 504}
4 [Bank of Bareda loan Afc no. [C.Y. - Nil 8.65% Term loan under fulure rent receivable scheme of|[Monthly EME of Rs.12,21,600 il
04140400020606 [P.Y.-1,442.68) Bank of Baroda, Secured by Agreement of|June 2022,
assignment of rent receivables and eguitable|'July 2022 {o December 2023-
mortgage of some commercial shops situated ot RIRs. 18,11,000/-
Cdeon Mall, Ghaikopar East, admeaswring alJanuary 2024 o May 2024- Rs.
leasable area of 53,505 sq. ft. 44,68,375/-
last EMI on 30th June, 2026 of
Rs.1,10,75,083/-
5  |Bank of Bareda loan A/c no. |C.Y. - Nil 8.65% Secured by lease rentals of Rmall mulund. Monthly EMI of Rs.35,47,812 iill
04160400020607 (P.Y. - 3.794.37) Decamber 2021,
January 2022 to June 2023- Rs.
44,99,770/-
Juiy 2023 fo November 2025-
Rs. 1,19.31,240/-
last EMI on 31st December,2025
of Rs.3,91,90,025.03/-
4 [ICICI Bank Ltd car lean - C.Y.- 43.55 7.50% Car - Mercedes-benz 60 Months EMI start from
LAMUMOO04257 6930 [P ¥.- 57.31) Janudry, 2021 1ill December,
2025
7 Urion Bank of Indid lean a/c |C.Y.- 1,731.43 13.75% 1. 'Land & building Repayable in 109 monthly
319306390000013 [P.Y.-2,123.55} 2. Hypothecation of plant and machinery and|instalments of Rs. 30,47,500/-
other asset created out of bank finance each commencing from 28th
February 2018,




Runwal Developers Private Limifed

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stafed)

ICICI Bank Lid loan
RTLI

1. 603090002492

2. 603090002709
RTL I

1. 603090002710

2. 603090002711

3. 603090002712

4. 603098007633
RTL Il

. 603090011898
2..6030%0015401
3. 603090009427
4. 603090009848
5. 503090009944
6. 603090010283
7/
8
2
1

. 603090010382
. 603090010444
. 403090016739
0. 603098009741

1. 11.25%

2. 11.25% (June 15 to 26) &
10.85% lJune 27 to 14 July)
3. 15 July onwards 10.85%

1. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage
on the Properly [Nirvana Projeci) 257,453 sq. fi.
excluding saleable arsa of approxdmately 107,242
sq. fi. 1 be sumendered fo the Property Owner.

2. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered merigage
on development fights of All the piece & parcel of
land located at Survey No. 3/2448, Cadastral
Survey No. 662 of Parel - Sewri Division, situated at
G.D. Ambedkar Road '{formerdy known as Parel
Tank Road) within the Registration Disfict of
Mumbai City end Mumbai Suburban admeasuring
appreximately 8,627.99 square meters (‘sq. mirs”},
inciuding all the structures thereon both present &
fulure but excluding reha building A having area
of approximately 132,498 square feet ["sg. ft.").

3. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage
on the Scheduled Receivables and all insurgnce
proceeds, both present and future.

4. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered morigage
on security of all righis, title, interest, claims,
benefits, demands under all the documents
pertaining to the Project Documents both present
and future.

5. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage
on the Escrow Account and the DSR Account
along with all monies credited/deposited therein
in whatever form the same may bel, and all
investments in respect thereof (in whatever form
the same may be).

1. Repayment of RTL | & 11 in 10
monthly installments
commencing from 15th
November, 2021,

2. Repayment of RIL I in 24
monthly instalmenis
commencing from 15th
December, 2027.

Indian Bank-RDPL{Malls) Loan
afc no. 7298402335

8.20%

1. Exclusive Charge on  Assignment
Receivables out of
Properties.

2. Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on
the escrow account and all the receivables and all
curent  assets, present and future  below
mentioned properiies,

3. Exclusive charge over Debt Service Reserve
Account maintained with Bank, equivaleni to 1
Month.

4, Registered Mortgage of Shop no.G-7, G-144, G-
168, G-164, F-& T-2, T-18, T 19, G-13, 529 & 30, G-10A,
G-11, F-1, £-5, T-12, T5 & 6, 51, 52 53,824,527,528, 516,
517,518 and terace, 124, T-1, -7, T-15 & 16, 5-14, §
41 of R Mdidl, BS Marg, Mulund West.

5. Registered Mortgage of commercial shops
sifuated at Fleor no.3 to 4. Shop nos. G-1, G-3, G-
14, Commaon Areq, F-4, F-5, F-2, F-10, F15, $2, 85, K8,
K7.510, 511, 812 of R Odeon Mall, Ghatkopar East.

of Reni
the below mentioned

As per sanction letter
repayment in 180 Installments
as follows:

1.7 Instailments of 7 Lakh

2. 8 Instailments of 8 Lakh

3. 12 Installments of 12 Lakh
4,12 Instaliments of 20 Lakh
5. 19 Instaliments of 25 Lakh
6. % Installments of 30 Lakh
7. 18 Instaliments of 35 Lakh
8. § Installments of 40 Lakh
2.9 Installments of 48 Lakh
10. 11 Instaliments of 51 Lakh
1. & Installments of 56 Lakh
12. 8 Installments of 42 Lakh
13. 10 Installments of 70 Lakh
14. 13 installments of 75 Lakh
15. 9 Installrments of 85 Lakh
16. 12 Instaliments of 90 Lakh
17. 10 Instaliments of 95 Lakh
18. 1 Instaliments of 93 Lakh

Bank of Barodo

CY.-Ni
(P.Y.- 3,152.54)
CY.- 6,385.60
[PY. - Nil}

CY - N

(PY 959.14)

8.65%

1. Mortgage of land and building corstructed
thereon with valuation not less than 2 times of the
loan (EM of all those pieces or parcels of land in
Revenue Village of Mouje Chitaisar. Manpada ,Pot
Tukdi and Taluka Petha Thane, Tukdi .md District
Thane [W) admeasuring 24282.68 sq mt .and
bearing survey no 23 Hissa No 1, survey m. 23 Hissa
m 2 {part] and survey no 24 Hissa no.2 {pari)
alengwith the Mall structures standing therecn
called R-Mali and having licensable area of
approx. 3,15,672 sqft valued ot Rs.205.55 crore.

2. The firm has to submit an inevocable
undertaking siafing that, the assignmeni of rent|
receivables will be in place fill the cumency of the
term loan granted by fhe bank and the firm will
reassign the rent receivables in respect of lease
agreements which are required renewed /[
extended on expiry of oplion period. irevocable
letier of authordty from the firm authorizing the
lessee to pay the rent/lease rent amount to our
bank, duly acknowledged by the lessee.

3. Assignment of rent receivables to be routed in fo
ESCROW accuunt with cur bank. Exclusive charge
on the ESCROW account,
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Notes to consclidated financiai statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amounls in Rs. La

khs, unless oftherwise staled)

ICICI Bank

CY - 4,893.10
[PY Nil}

7.90%

All the plece & parcel of land admeasuring
approximately 22,510 sg. mirs. (excluding therefrom
[a) an area admeasuing 6410 square meters for
rood set back |(b) an area admeasuring 7%0.25
square meters for Amently space as per and an
area admeasuring 295 square meters - area not in
possession as per TILR 28/2003, as approved plan
dated 18.10.2019 bearing reference no. V.P. No.
505/016418{2004/42V/TMCATDN/3207 /19 issved by
Thane Municipal Corporation) bearng Gut numkber|
14 {Survey Number 23 Hissa No, 1), Gut number 17
(P [Survey number 23 hissa no. 2{part) and Gut
no. 19 {pi} {Survey No. 24, hissa ne. 2{pt] located at
revenue village of Mouje Chitalsar, Manpada, Pot
Tukdi and Taluka Petha Thane, Tukdi, and District
Thane within Thane Mahanagarmpallika, Thane
Ghodhbunder Road including alf the structures
thereon as defined in Project.

138 monthly installments
commencing from é months
from the Deate of First Drawal,

Total

B. Secured loans from others:

C.Y.-12,945.34
{P.Y. - 13.695.32)

Sr no

Loan taken from

Outstanding amount

Rate of interest

Secured against/ guarantee given

Terms of repayment

1

Aditya Birla Finance Limited -
12008400258 wfc &
ABFLMUMCFQ000134782

C.Y.-7.505.94
{PY.-11,29589)

10.50% wuplo  2505-2022,
10.80% from 24-05-2023 to 17
046-2023, 11.30% from 18-06-
20723 to 14-01-2023, 11.65% -
15-01-2023 onwards

1.Unsold inventory of "The Residence” & 'The
Reserve” Prajects.

2. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Sandeep Runwal for
the propased facilities,

Repayable in 24 monthly
installments commencing from
01st Octeber, 2023.

Aditya 8irla Firance Limited -
ABFMUZTER000D1002240

C.Y. - 621547
{P.Y, - Wi}

11.15% from 15-01-2023
onwards

1. 28 unsold units admeasuring 50,026 sq. fi. of
carpet area in the project known as Runwatl
Fleganie

2. Hypothecalion & Escrow of scheduled
receivables of 28 unsold units of Runwal Fleganie
3. DSRA equivalent to | month's interest.

4. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Sandeep Runwal for
the proposed facilities.

Repayable in 40 rmonthly
instaiments commencing frem
15th August, 2022

Tate Capital Housing Finance
Limifed 10533130 & 10681237

C.Y.- il
{P.Y.-53.21}

11% from 14-02-2022 to
30-06-2022,

10-2022, 12.80% from
02-10-2022 onwards

11.80% from C1-07-2022 to 01+

1. Exciusive charge by way of registered mortgage
on the unsoid unils in Property 1 90,786 sqgff
['Securty 1') located at Survey No./CTS No. 884A

2. Exclusive charge by way of regisiered mortgage
on the unsold units in Property 2A 54,545 sqft
{'Security 2') located at Survey No./CTS No. 884A

3. Bxclusive charge by way of registered mortgage
on the unsold units in Property 2B 1,34,794 sgft
{Secunty 3} located at Survey No. / CTS No. - BB4A
4. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Sandeep Runwal fo
the tune of Rs 75 crores under the proposed
facilifies

5. DSRA eguivaient to 3 months' interest on
cutstanding amount to be maintained in the form
of FD with lien marked to TCHFL duing the
currency of loon

6. Security Interest on unsold Units along with
residual interest on sold units in the Property 1, 2A &
28

60 Months Including
moratorivm  perod  of 30
months from the date of first
disbursement

Tata Capital Housing Finance
Llimited - 10704493 &
10705475

C.Y. - 4068.21
(P.Y.-7,813.99)

11.80% from 01-07-2022 to 01
10-2022
12.80% from 02-10-22 to 31-
03-2023

. 1. Exclusive charge by way of registered
marigage on the RDPL's share of right/tillefinierast
in the project "Runwal Timeless' being developed
on land parcel located ai C5. Nos, 4 [part), 5
(part], é {par], and 7 (part] of Salit Pan Division,
Sion-situated at Pratiksha Nagar, Shasii Nagar, "C”
Division in F/North Ward, Mumbai, Maharashira,
including il future constructions, FSl, TDR, and
benefits ihereon to the exient of RDPL's share.

2. DSRA equivalent to 3 monihs' interest on
outstanding amount of the facility.

1i. Additionat Secunty:

1. bBdension of fist charge by way of registered
martgage on the unsold proportion of land and
building of the projects "R Anthurnum” and "R
Square” located at LBS Marg, Mulund, Mumbai,
dlong with any present and future construction.
Receivables

72 Months including
moraferium  period  of 42
months from the daie of first
disbursernent
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

[, Primary Receivables:

1. Exclusive charge by way of hypethecation on all
receivables, to the extent of developer's share,
including sofd, unsold, insurance receipis as weli as
development and other charges from unils ang
any cash flow from the project "Runwal Timelass”
located at CS. Nos. 4 (part], 5 {part}, 6 {(part}, and 7
[part] of Salt Pan Division, Sion-situated af Pratiksha
Nagar, Shasfri Nagar, "C" Division in F/North Ward,
Mumbai, Maharashira,  including  all  future
consiructions, 7SI, TDR, and kenefits therean to the
extent of RDPL's share.

¥ .Additional Receivables:

i. Bxtension of fist charge by way of
hypothecation on all the receivables including
sold, unsold, insurance receipts as well as
development and other charges from units and
any cash flow from the project "R Anthurium” and
"R Square” located at LBS Marg, Mulund, Mumbai.
Y. Personal Guarantee : 55¢cr sandeep Runwal

5 |Aditya Birla Finance Ltd

C.Y. 12,238.95
{P.Y. 12886.71}

7.35%

Exclusive charge by way of first par passe charge
on lond at Village Dhokali (Balkum) in Thane, along
with Residential Building known as Runwal Eirene
and TDR/F8I thereon.

Exclusive charge by way of escrow of receivables
from sold and hypothecation of unsold unifs in the
project '‘Runwal Eirene', Tower 6A to 4D and Tower 7
o 13.

Tenor of total 60 months
fwherein scheduled repayment
will start from the end of the
3éth month from date of first
disbursement)

6 |Adtiya Birla Finance Lid

C.Y. 3793.50
{P.Y. Nil)

8.70%

1. Exclusive first charge by way of registered
mertgage on land admeasuring 3,343 sgm located
village Dhokaili (Balkumy) in Thane district alongwith
rasidential buliding known as Towear 14- Ienith,
developed thereon alongwith present and future
construction of TDR / FSI thereon. 2. Incremental
collection {ill Rs.100 crores - 25% of incremental
collections to be transferred to lender collection
a/c & remaining amount will be fransfered o the
current accouni of the bomower. Incremental
collection from Rs.100 crores till closure of the
Facility - 85% of incremenial collections fo be
transfered to lender coliection afc & remaining
amounf will be transferred to the cument account
of the borower.

Tenor of folal 40 months
{whereln scheduled repayment
will start from the end of the
36th month from date of first
disburserment)

7 |HDFC Ltd

CY-9,160.73
{PY-10,289.31)

11.00%

1. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage
on the project land of 'Runwal Sanciuary’ being
developed on land admeasuring 24,406.20 sg mir
of area and sitlvated af C5 No, 544 and 544/1 of
Villsge Nahur, Taluka Kurlg, together  with
consfruction thereon both present and future,

2. Exciusive charge by way of registered morigage
on security of all scheduled receivables under the
documents entered into with the customers of the
funded projects by the Borrower and aii insurance
preceeds, both present and fulure scheduled
receivables, receivables/cash  flows/frevenues
including booking amounis arising out of or in
connection with pr relating to the project.

3. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage
on escrow accounts.

4, Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgags
on TDR boeth present and fuiure formerly part of
the three projects.

Limited

& |JM Financial Credit Solulions

CY - 7,446,640
{PY - NII)

L1-12.5%
TL-3-11.4%

1. First and Exclusive charge by way of registered
morfgage of Projeci "Runwal Enchanted” along
with all structures developed [ to be developed
thereon and all receivables generated from the
sold/unsoid units developed/to be developed
thereon ["Project Runwal Enchanted”).

2. Escrow of receivables generated from the
sold/unsold unifs developed/to be developed in
Project "Runwal Enchanted”.

3. Personal Guaraniee of Mr. Sandeep Runwal.

The rexayment shall be made
in 24 equal monthly instalments
staring from the end of 49th
month  from date of first
drawdown under Term Loan 1
and ending on the 72th month
from the date of first drawdown
under Term Loan 1.

There shall be a principal
moratarium of 48 months for
Term tean 1, Tm Loan 2 and
Term Loan 3 from the date of
first drawdown under Term
Loan 1.

Tolal C.Y.-52,429.40
[P.Y. - 42,232 6

'This changes in liabililies schedule includes movements for current as well as non - curent portion of fem loans.
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Note 25

Lease Liabililies - Non Current

Lease Liabilifiss (Refer note 54)

Note 24

Nen Currenf Provisions

Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences

Refer note no. 46 employee benefif expenses

Note 27
Deferred Tax Assets (Licbilities)

Deferred tax (liabilities)

Property, plant & equipment

Right of use asset

Investment property

Investiment

FVTPL financial assets

FVOCI financial assets

Lease egudlisation reserve assets
Revaluation of inventory on account of business combination
Capital gain on unsold inventory {land)
Finished Goods

Advance from customer

toan Processing Fees - Mail
Discounting on security deposits
Construction Work In Progress

Deterred tax assels

Intangible asset

Investment property

Carry forward tosses of house property income
Carry forward iosses of capital fransaction
Provisions for doubtful debts

Provisions for retirement benefits

Disallowance under section 438

Discounting on security deposits

Expenses incumred on business combination

Fair valuation of merged entity (Runwal Township Private Limited)

Advertisement Expenditure
Advance from customer

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

(All amounis in Rs. Lakhs, unless ofherwise stated)

As ot
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

3.48

3.48

As af
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

109.15 100.54
68.10 70.63
177.25 171.17

As at
31st March, 2023

As al
31st March, 2022

{1,449.53) (1,504.97)
{26.70) {27.08)
(13,021.43) {13,323.49)
{163.62) (175.62)
{1.0%) (0.19)
{58.42) {75.30)
{110.20) (110.20)
{311.26) (397.28)
= (551.14)
[31.59) -
(28.74) -
{1,589.54) (2,736.72)
(16,792.12) (18,901.99)
0.88 =
157.16 -
35.23 35.23
129.02 -
4106 36.08
29.93 33.40
27.58 28.11
1.72 2.58
506.00 g
4414 155.28
972.72 290.68
{15,819.40) (18.611.31)
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(All amounis in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Reconcliliation of tax expenses : Asiat Asih

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
i‘:\)rsr;ounf of curent tax recognised in the standalone statement of profit and (2.901.27) (3.690.64)
Deferred tax (charge) / credit
Properiy, plant & equipment 55.43 20.18
Right of use asset 0.38 (27.08)
FVTPL financial assets {0.90) {0.19)
FVOCt financial assets = 82%.01
Lease equalisation reserve assets 16.88 (84.38)
Infangible asset 0.88 -
investment in shares 12.00 (175.62)
investment property 459.22 (13,323.49)
Revaluation of inventory on account of business comkination - 104.44
Carry forward losses house property income - 13.09
Canry forward losses capilal ransaction - (1,379.64)
Provision for Doubtful Debfts 129.02 -
Provisions for refirement benefits 4.98 (4.22)
Disaliowance under section 438 (3.47) 13.00
Discounting on security deposits [29.28) 2811
Expenses incurred on business combination (0.86) (0.86)
Finished goods 86.03 3,601.90
Construction Work In Progress 1,147.18 (2,736.72)
Advance from cusiomer 440.00 [(5,154.14)
Advertisement Bxpenditure 506.00 -
Loan Processing Fees {31.59) -
Capital gain on unsold inventory {land} - 0.45
Total of B 2,791.%0 (18,2746.18)
Total of A + B (109.37) {21,966.80)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profif before tax 8,821.72 17,.091.92
Tox * 2,083.53 4,312.70
Tox effect of :
Non-deductible expenses 15.29 180.01
Tax on exempted income 94.60 188.13
CSR expenses 78.80 7914
Disallowance of mall management exp 21.26 28.06
Tax on deemed rent 42.39 18.10
Tax on actual rent 191.89 128.87
Deferred tax not considered in previous year {195.49] -
(BExpenses) / income offered in tax books (net) (2.441.64) 17.031.79
Tax expenses recognised {109.37) 21,966.80
* Tax rate : for corporate @ 25.168% (P.Y. 25.148%) and for partnership firm @ 34.32% (P.Y. 34.32%)
Nofe 28 As at As at

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Current Borrowings

Secured
Bank overdraft {refer table below) 4,164.67
Current maiurities of long-term borowlings (also refer note 24)
From banks 394.30
From others 88.80
Vehicle loan from bank 16.93
Unsecured
0.01% Redeemable preference shares# -
Book overdraft 1,069.66

From parties other than related parties

4,003.14
4,459.09

15.70

1.607.62
288.66

12,007.77

From financial institutions 2,500.00

From related parlies

From Cthers 388.15
8,622.51

22,381.98
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Bank overdraft

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Bank overdraft taken from |Ouisianding Rate ot |Secured against/ guarantee given Terms of repayment
amount interest
HDFC Bank A/c - C.Y. 3,998.93 7.00% |BSLI ULIP Policies of Mr. Sandeep Runwal & Mr,  |Renewal every year
50200058023408 (P.Y. 3.832.01) Subodh Runwal, FD of Rs.2.80 cr for 24months on
auto renewdi till the fenure of the facility.
ICICI BANK LTD A/C C.Y. -(Nil} 11.25% |1. Exclusive charge by way of regisiered The Borrower shcil
Q7400500299% * (GAS] maortgage on the Property |, be entitled to repay
2. Exclusive charge by way of registered the OD facility at
mortgage on development rights of the any fime from the
Property. date of
3. Exclusive charge by way of registered disbursement of
mortgage on the Scheduled Receivables and  |such OD facility, fill
ICICEBank Lid A/C C.Y. -(Nil) 11.25% |ail insurance proceeds, both present and future. |the last OD
074005001213 * (P.Y. 4.20) 4. Exclusive charge by way of registered reduction 15th
mortgage on security of all rights, title, interest,  [November, 2023,
claims, benefits, demands under all the
documents pertaining 1o the Project Documents
both present and future.
5.Exclusive charge by way of registered
ICICI Bank Lid A/C CY.-{165.74) 11.25% |mortgage on the Escrow Account and the D3R
423905028781 (P.Y. 166.92) Account along with all monies
credited/deposited therein (in whatever form
the same may be}, and all investments in
raspect thereof (in whatever form the same
may bej,
Tolal C.Y. -4,164.867

(P.Y. - 4,003.13)

* As on 31st March, 2023 there were Debit closing baiance hence group under Cash & Cash Equivalent.

# The Company has issued 1,73,83,200 0.01% Redeemabkle non - cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each on 4th
November 2020 in consideration of amalgamation of Runwal Builders Private Limited ('RBPL), Runwal Properties Private
Limited {'RPPL} , Veear Property Developers (Bombay} Private timited ('VPDBPL'}) and Odeaon Exhibitors Private Limited
{"OEPL') with RDPL on 4th November 2020, The RPS shall be redeemable at par af the option of Transferee Company anytime
after five (3] years but before 20 yvears from the date of allotment.

After the preference shares were issued on 4th November, 2020, in the month of March 2021 the Company initiated the
discussion with the preference shareholders to redeem these preference shares on immediate baosis, Hence these
preference shares were shown as a part of Current Liabiliity in previous year at fair value and during the current year, the
Company has redeemed the preference shares on 26th seplember, 2022, Upon extinguishmeni of preference shares,
uncteared balance of Rs.119.20 lakhs are transfered to Other payable.

Note 29
Lease Liabilities - Cumrent

Lease Liabilities (Refer note 56)

As of
31si March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

1.23

1.23
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Runwdal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 30
Trade payables

To Parties other than related parfies

(i} total ouvistanding dues of micro enterprises and small

As af

As at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. 1,201.91 379.98
enterprises
{ii) totol.ou?sfcndmg dues of _credlfors other than micro 9.683.90 682217
enterprises and small enterprises
Retention Money
i} Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 157.70 113.67
ii} Dues_of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 2.299.38 2.098.77
enierprises

13.342.89 9.544.5¢
For transcctions with relafed porlies, Refer to note 47
For explanations on the Company's credii risk management processes, Refer to nate 54
Ageing of frade payables :
A) Ageing of irade payables as on 31st March, 2023

Quistanding for following perlods from the due dale
Rarieplar Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2year 2 -3years Moreittant Total
years
Undispuled trade payables
Micro enferprises and small enterprises 216.32 921.46 39.24 22.49 2.40 120191
Others 1.634,10 7.351.75 131.24 160.40 406.41 9.683.90
Dispuied trade payobles
Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - = =
Cthers = = = = = =
Telal 1.850.42 8.273.21 170.48 182.89 408.81 10,885.81
B) Ageing of frade payables as on 31st March, 2022
Quistanding for following periods from the due date
Rarticular Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2year 2 -3 years LI Total
years

Undisputed tfrade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 53.37 264.51 4376 8.59 .75 379.98
Others 1,799.02 4,084.05 257.55 165.11 516.44 6,822.17
Disputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises = - - - - =
Cthers - 3 - = = =
Total 1.852.39 4,348.56 301.31 173.70 526,19 720215

Retention money is collected and retained based on various terms and conditions agreed upon with the contractors. In varous instances, retention
money is payable when the milestone of the entire set of services is completed and that too with a covenant that it will be paid after a period which
ranges between 3 fo 5 years, if nc deficiency is found during this specified pericd towards the services which were rendered by them. Hance,
practically it is difficult to extract the ageing of retention money.

¢
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Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 31

Other current financial liabilities
To related parties
Inter corporate deposits

To other than related parties
Saiary and bonus payable
Security deposits
Deferred Income
Expenses payable
Other Payable
Payable toward society (net)
Interest accrued but not due
Amount payable towards cancelled flats

Note 32

Other current liabilities
Security deposit

To other than relaied parties

Advance from customers *

Society Mainfenance payable

Statutory dues payoble

Defered liability against purchase of development rights *
Cther payable

(All amovunis in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As af
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

- 508.00
206.62 245,53
3,289.34 2,867.36
121.22 100.0%
358.57 399.56
119.20 353.59
168.40 363.21
342.52 191.84
596.20 1,027.21
5,202.07 6,056.3%
As at As at

31st March, 2023

31sf March, 2022

* [Refer note 50 on Ind AS 115 - Revenue from confracts with customers)

Note 33
Current Provisions
Provision for gratuity

Provision for contingent liability
Provision for compensated absences

Refer note no. 46 employee benefit expenses

- 1,890.00
1,13,107 .48 71,604.17
273.78 477.28
738.53 1,084.37
8,444.98 9,.543.66
441.46 4,816.68
1,23,006.23 89.4146.14
As at As at

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

40.74 30.83
128.54 128.54
30.54 2922
199.82 188.5%




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 34 For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Revenve from operations
Sale of flats 23,881.90 67,910.00
Sale of solar power 553.90 342.56
Sale of wind power 62.23 71.62
Income from lease rental 2,473.01 1,346.05
Deferred revenue from joint development arangement 1,098.68 5,505.4%
28.069.72 75,175.72
Other operating revenue* 2,242.36 1,698.82
30,319.08 76,874.54

* Other operating revenue comprises of income towards cancellation charges, interest on delayed payment
from customers, chegue bounce charges, club usage charges etfc.

Note 35 For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Other income
Business Suppor Service 360.00 360.00
interest income
on fixed deposits 263.53 91.97
on income tax refund - 63.31
on debentures 2696 54.47
onlCD 563.10 377.70
on other deposits 211.89 126.66
Dividend Income - 0.02
Profit on sale of fangible fixed assets 23.12 1.44
Share of profit from Firm - -
Miscellaneous income 472.18 43.82
Fair value gain on mutual fund investment* 15.72 1.64
Sundry Balances Written Back 3.877.15 3.872.41
Project management service 350.00 700.00
6,163.65 5,693.44

* Total net gain on fair value changes includes Rs. 1.03 lakhs (PY Rs. 0.01 lakhs} as net gain on sale of
investments.

Note 34 For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Cost of construction and development expenses

Cost of construction and development expenses 68,435.13 69,091.34

48,435.13 69,091.34

{Refer note 58)

Note 37 For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Purchase of stock in trade

Purchase of stock 501.00 -

501.00 -




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise siaied)

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

Note 38

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

Changes in inventories of construction work-in-progress,
finished goods and stock in tfrade

Opening Slock

Finished goods 33,922.93 $2.620.91

Construction WIP 1,36,521.61 64,699 .43

Tronsferable development rights - 809.20
Closing Stock

Finished goods {23,944.21) (33,922.93)

Construction WIP (2,03,473.60) (1,36,521.41)

Stock in trade [501.00} -

(57,4746.27} {12,315.00)

Note 39 For the year ended For the year ended

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Employee benefits expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus 4,315.07 3.382.62
Contribution to provident & other fund
(Refer note no. 46 employee benefit expenses) ?6.48 59.38
Gratuity Expenses
(Refer note no. 46 employee benefit expenses) 33.34 61.37
Expenses related to compensated absences
{Refer Note 46 employee benefit expenses) 33.20 49.21
Staff welfare expense 112.98 66,47
4,591.07 3,619.05
Less: Transferred to consfruction work In progress {3.315.74) (2.456.90)
1,275.33 1,162.15
Note 40 For the yeor ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Finance costs
Interest cost on financial liabilitly measured at amortised cost
On fixed period loan 6,674.24 3,377 .06
On bank overdraft - 8.83
Dividend on redeemable Preference Shares 231 472
On infer corporate deposits - 17.27
Other interest cost 263.23 271.43
Finance charges 1,161.42 55.3¢9
Total interest expense 8,101.22 3,834.70
Less: Transfemred to consfruction work in progress {4,881.18) {1.4%0.15)
Total finance cost 3,220.04 2,344.55

For the year ended

For ihe year ended
31st March, 2022

890.51
597
74.54
8.34

Note 41 31st March, 2023

Depreciafion and amonrtization expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 459 .34

Ameortisation on right to use 7.31

Depreciation on investment property 953.96

Amortisation of intangible asseis 3.55
' 1,424.16

979.34




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All armounis in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 42 For the year ended For the yvear ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Other expenses
Eleciricity Charges 938.02 102.03
Repdirs and maintenance

Building 52,22 30.95

Others 772.52 381.83
Insurance 60.14 59.95
Rates and taxes 74996 190.11
Appedl fees / Consent fees 0.76 S
Legal and professional fees 388.13 134.19
Payment to auditor {refer note below) 47 .62 85.67
Rent - 30.00
Advertising and sales promoticn 5,093.95 1,254.74
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 313.08 312.00
Donation 595 2.45
Fees & forms 2.86 0.1
Property tax 6.03 11.62
Brokerage Commission 290.47 497.12
Allowances for expected credit losses 261.71 479.43
Expenses incured on completed project 5%.41 -
Sundry balances w/off 93.44 195,02
Fixed assets w/off - 297
Other outsourcing expenses 11.33 18.27
Travelling expenses 31.13 -
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets 0.36 -
Miscellaneous expenses 1,095.53 425.20

10,281.62 4,.213.64




Runwal Developers Privaie Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 43
Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the year atfributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividend and atffributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year,

Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) aitributable for the year to equily shareholders (affer
adiusting for dividend on the preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on cenversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into
equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended

Sr. no. Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

A Profit attributable to the equity shareholders for basic / diluted
earnings 4,233.78 (6,271.55)

B Quistanding number of equity shares

j lc;i(;rl number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the 22.28.90,150 99.98.90,150

ji Total number of equity shares oulstanding at the end of the year 22,28,90,150 22,28,90,150

Total weighted average number of equity shares considered as
jil oulstanding at the end of the year (as per Ind AS 33 "Earnings Per 22,28,90,150 22,28,90,150
Share™)
iv Basic and Diluted eamings per share {in Rs.) 1.90 (3.13)

Motes

* Earning per Equity Share been calculated /restated, as applicable, for all the year(s) presented after considering the new
number of equity shares post sub-division and issue of bonus shares, as explained in Note 22, in keeping with the provisions of
the applicable Ind AS.




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 44
Summarised financial Infermation for associates and joint ventures

The table provides summarised financial information for associaies and joint ventures. The information disclosed
reflects the amount presenied in financial statements of the relevant associates and joint ventures and not the
Group share of those amounts. They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the
equity method, including fair value adjustments need by the entity when using the equity method, including fair
value adjustmeants made at time of acquisition and medification for differences in accounting policies.

{i) R Mall Developers Private Limited ("RMDPL")

The Group has a 49.75% (P.Y. 49.75%) interest in R Mall Develcpers Private Limited ("RMDPL'}, a joint venture involved
in mall management of the R City Mall, Ghatkopar. The Group's interest in RMDPL Limited is accounted for using the
equity methed in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture,
based on its ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation with the camying amount of the investment n
consolidated financial statements are set ocut below:

Summarised balance sheet

Particulars gekal gl
31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022

A. Non-current assets 45,350.24 47,469.73
B. Cumrent assefs

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 18,729.04 2,611.44

(i} Others 8,244.55 5,058.29
Total current assets 26,975.61 B,669.73
I. Total assets {A+B) 72,325.85 54,139.46
C. Non-current liabilities

(i} Financial liabilities 29,434.18 16,773.65

(i) Non financial liatkilities 194.05 214.51

Total non current liakilities 29,628.23 16,988.16
D. Current liabilities

{i} Financial licbitities 2.188.81 17,141.43

{ii] Non financial liakilitiss 1,500.25 788.53
Total current liabilifies 10,689.04 17,92%9.96
II. Total liabilities (C+D) 40,317.29 34,918.12
Net assets (I-11) 32,008.56 21,221.34
Group's interest in net assefs 15,924.28 10,557.64
Summoarised statement of profit and loss of the RMDPPL:

As at As at

Rartisglars 31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022

Revenue from operations 25,098.21 13.452.78
Other income 275,42 623.40

Dapreciation & amorfization expenses 1,452.52 1.574,38
Finance cost 1,727.64 2,571.77
Employee benefif 1,009.40 8640.14
Qther expense 7.870.72 5,199.85
Profit before tax 13,313.55 3,870.02
Tax expense 2,529.62 995.38
Profit for the year (confinving operations) 10,783.93 2,874.64
Other Comprehensive Income/{loss): 3.29 3.36
Total comprehensive income for the year {continuing operations) 10,787.22 2,878.00
Group's share of praofit for fhe vear 5,366.64 1,431.80
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounis in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise sfaled)
(i) R Retail Ventures Private Limifed ("RRVPL") (consolidated)
The Group has a 50% (P.Y. 43.57%) inferast in R Retail Ventures Private Limited ("RRVPL"), a joint veniure involved in
construction of Residential and Commercial properiies. The Group's inferest in RRVPL is accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture,
based on ifs Ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation with the comying amount of the investment in
consolidated financial statements are set out below:

Sumrmarised balance sheet of RRVPL

Particulars Az at Asic
31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022
A. Non-current assets 77.872.79 67,451.77
B. Current assets
(i) Cash and cash gquivalents 7,101.2% 1.956.65
{ii) Others 47,842.91 33,292.65
Total current assets 54,944.20 35,249.30
I, Total assets (A+B) 1,32,816.9% 1,02,701.07
C. Nen-current liabilities
(i) Financial liabilities 29,021.93 80,265.82
{ity Non financial liabilifies 25.05 24.44
Total non current liabilities 29.046.98 80,290.24
L. Cumrent liabilities
{i) Financial liabilities 547439 6,882.79
{ii) Nen financial liabilities 55972.11 23,030.20
Total cumrent liabitities §1,446.50 29.912.99
Il. Total Kabilifies (C+D) 90,493.48 1,10,203.25
Net assets (I-11) 42,323.51 {7,502,18)
Group's interest in net assets * 18,440.35 (3,2468.70)

*The Group's interest in net assets is calculated above considering 43.57%, as it was there during substaintial part of
the year. Refer Note 10.

Summarised statement of profit and loss of the RRVPL:

As at As at
31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022

Other income 88.44 47.10
Emplovee benefit 82813 945.47
Depreciation & amortization expenses 87.41 83.62
Other expense 26,673.10 4,137.42
Finance cost 8.97 20.84
Loss before tax {27,509.17) {5,140.25)
Tax expense {348.42) (749.45)
Loss for the year {confinuing operations) (27,160.75) {4,3%0.80)
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss): 11.55 12.56
Total comprehensive income for the year (continuing operations) {27,149.20) {4,378.24)
Group's share of loss for the year {11,828.91) (1,907.60)

(iii} Wheelabrator Alloy Casiings Limited ("WACL™)

The Group has a 34.26% (P.Y. 34.26%) interest in Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited ["WACL"}, an associate involved
in Real Estate business. The Group's interest in WACL is accounted for using the equity methoed in the consclidated
financial statements. Summarised financial information of the assocliate, based on its Ind AS financial statements,
and reconciliation with the comying amount of the invesiment in consolidated financiat statements are set out
below:




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statemenits for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Summarised balance sheet of WACL as ot 31st March 2023:

As at As af

31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022
A. Non-current assets 23,106.76 885.88
B. Current assets
{i} Cash and cash equivalents 2,018.37 393.87
{ii) Others 72,526.25 97,648.50
Tolal current assets 74,544.462 98,042.37
l. Total assets (A+B) 97,651.38 98,928.25
C. Non-current liabiliies
li} Financial liabilities 7.200.00 26,887.19
[ii} Non financial liabilities 1,033.55 82.12
Total non current liabilities 8,233.55 24,%69.37
D. Current liabilities
{i} Financial fiabilities 29,628.11 10,670.15
(i} Non financial liobilities 44,496.09 51,934.45
Total current liabilities 74,124.20 62,604.60
I, Total liabilities {C+D) 82,357.75 8%,573.91
Net assets (i1} 15,293.63 9,354.34
Group’s interest in net assets 5,239.37 3,204,446

Summuarised statement of profit and loss of the WACL:

As ot As at

31st March, 2023  _31st March, 2022
Revenue from operations 39.734.93 31,806.36
Ctherincome 351.93 209.93
Cost of Constructions 2.075.1¢ 8,890.00
Changes in inventories of Finished goods 10,020.05 8,759.42
Depreciation & amortization expenses 65.80 81.34
Finance Cost 2,945.22 4,330.53
Employee benefif 1.551.97 1,367 .57
Other expenses 8,525.97 7,039.04
Profit before tax 7,.902.75 1,548.39
Tax expenses 1,966.02 456,43
Profit for the year {conlinuing operalions) 5,934.73 1,091.96
Other Comprehensive Incoms/{loss): 2.56 (5.73)
Total comprehensive income for the year (continuing operations) 5,939.2% 1,086.23
Group's share of profii for the year 2,034.80 372.14

(iv) SR Constructions

The Group has a 0.86% {P.Y. 0.86%) interest in SR Consructions a joint venture of an associate (WACL) involved in Real
Estate business. The Group's interest In SR constructions is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture, based onits Ind AS financial stafements-

management accounts, and reconciliation with the camying ameount of the investment in consolidated financial
statements are set out below:

Summarised balance sheet of SR Constructions as af 31st March 2023:

As at As at
31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022

A, Non-current assets
B. Cument assets

(i} Cash and cash equivalents 9.84 8.75
{ii] Others 1,263.19 23,248.02
Toial current assets 1,273.03 23,2548.77
l. Total assets {(A+B} 1,273.03 23,256.77




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amounis in Rs. Lakhs, vnless otherwise siated)
C. Non-current liabilities

(i} Financial figkilities = _
(i) Non financial liabilities - =

Total non current llabilities o =

D. Current liabilities

(i) Financial liakilities 5,700.62 6.00
(if} Non financial liobilities 0.84 0.5
Total current liabilities 5,701.456 4,15
II. Total liabilities (C+D) 5,701.45 6.15
Net assets (I-11) (4.428.43) 23,250,462
Group's interesf in net assels {38.08) 199.96

Summarised profit and loss of SR Constructions as at 31st March 2023:

Other income 15.82 2785
Employee benefit 15.55 23.84
Other expense 1.33 1.13
Profit before lox {1.08) 2,88
Tax expanse - (0.87)
Profit for the year {continuing operalions) (1.08) 2.01

Other Comprehensive Income/{loss): = R

Total comprehensive Income for the year {(continuing operations) (1.06) 2.01

Group's shate of profit for the year (0.01) 0.02




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes fo consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31sf March, 2023

(All amounts In Rs. Lakhs, unless ofherwise sfated)

Reconciliation of camying amount

l. Joint Venfure

R Refall Ventures Pvi Ltd (Consolidated)

R Mall Developers Pvt Ud

Parficulars As af As at As at As af

31sf March 2023 31st March 2022 315t March 2023 315t March 2022
Net assets of joint venture 42,323.51 [7.502.18} 32,008.56 21,227.34
Proporation of ownership inlerest held by the group * 50.00% 43.57% 49.75% 49.75%
Graups interest in net asset 18,440.35 (3.268.70) 15924.28 10,557 .64
Additional investment during the year - 3.00 - -
Carmrying amount of invesiment # 5.210.92 17,041.08 15,924.28 10,557.64

* The Group's interest in net assets is calculated above consideiing 43.57%, as it was there durng substaintial part of the yecr, Refer Note 10,

Il. Associates and joint venture of associafes

Wheelabrator Alloy Casfings Lid SR Conshruction
Particulars As ot As at As ai As af
31si March 2023 31st Morch 2022 31st March 2023 315t March 2022
Net assets of associates 15,293.63 $,354.34 {4,428.43) 23.250.62
Proporation of ownership inferest held by the group 34.26% 34.26% 0.86% 0.86%
Groups interest in net asset 523237 3,204.84 [38.08] 199.94
Carrying amount of investment # 5232.37 3,204.65 - 199.94

# During the previous year Group interest in net asset of SR Constructions was negative, camying amount of Invesiment in amount is considered as

Nit,
Movement of investment using Equity methad
L. Joint Veniure
R Retaill Venlures Pvi Lid R Mall Developers Pvt Lid
Parteulars As at As ot As at As af
31st March 2023 31st March 2022 31st March 2023 315t March 2022
Qpening balance 17.041.08 19,553.23 10,557.44 2,121.59
Further investment during the year - 3.00 - -
Share of profits/{Loss) for the year (11,830.14) {2,515.15] 5.366.64 1,436.05
Closing balance 521092 17.041.08 15.924.28 10,557.44
II. Associates and joint venture of associales
Wheelabrator Alloy Cuastings Ltd SR Consiruciions
Parficulars As al As al As af As at
< 31s March 2023 31st March 2022 31st March 2023 31sf March 2022
Opening balance 3,204.66 2,832.62 226.85 228,85
Share of Prafit / [oss) for the year 2,034.80 372.04 0.01) 0.00
Closing balance 5,23%.37 3,204.65 228.84 228.85
Other Information
Contingent llabilities for joint ventures and assoclates
Asat As af

Descripfion

315t March 2023 315t March 2022

Share of contingent liabiifies ond comporate guarantee incured jointly with other investors of the joint venture and associate arg as follows:

Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Lid - Conlingent Liability 268.08 208.27
Wheelabrator Alloy Caslings Lid - Corporate Guarantee 1,05,153 125,000
R Mall Developers Pvt Ltd - Contingent Licbility 393.35 393.35
Total Amaunt 641.43 401.42




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stafed)

(v) summarised financial statement of subsidiaries

Particulars As af As ol As at As at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 _31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Non -curent assets 821.44 600.21 56,743.90 57.,358.74
Current assets 93,340.52 84,107.16 80,078.67 57,934.53
Non - current liabilities 16,09G.66 12,930.49 36,114.06 27.,491.47
Current liabilities 26,403.04 2505896 50,046.55 37.980.71
Net asset 51,668.26 46,717.72 50,661.98 49,821.09
Aftributable to:
Particulars As at As at As at As at

31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022 _ 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Equity holders of parent 26,350.81 23,826.04 49,420.74 48,600.47
Non controling interest 25,317.45 22,891.48 1,241.22 1,220.62
(vi} Summarised statement of profit and loss of subsidiaries
Particulars As at As at As at As at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 _31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Revenue from operations 8,695.30 32,595.30 2.499.38 1.189.29
Other income 4.954.57 2,571.38 385.10 42293
Total 13,649.87 35,166.468 2,884.48 1,612.22
Cost of construction and development expenses 40,231.27 13.314.41 14,971.3%9 26,748.63
Changes in inventories of f}nlshed goods {including (35,376.19) 10.,639.16 (14,907.72) 126,624.96)
Stock in trade) and work - in - progress
Employee benefit expenses 234.76 22183 193.03 35.99
Finance cost 468.00 43.25 494.68 96.24
Depreciation 48,99 32.44 903.40 426.11
Other expenses 1,773.43 47487 2,723.62 810.01
Tetal 6,980.24 24,725.91 4,378.40 1,492.02
Profit/{loss) before fax 6,669.61 10,440.77 (1.493.92) 120.20
Tax expenses 1,720.73 2,634.96 2,364.96 17,425.06
Profit/{loss) for the year 4.948.88 7.805.81 871.05 (17,304.86)
Share of loss from the joint venture = =
Other comprehensive income 1.65 [4.18) [4.79] {2.02)
Total Comprehensive income for the year 4,950.53 7,801.63 875.84 (17,302.84)
Attributable to:
Particulars As at As af As ai As at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 _ 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Equity holders of parent 2,524.77 1.632.14 854.38 (16,677.02)
Noh controling interest 2.425.76 6,169.49 21.46 (625.82)
(vii) Summarised cash flow Informafion of subsidiaries *
Particulars As at As at As at As at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 _31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Operaling activily {10,979.44} (7.335.26) 1,44%.50 {20,901.44)
Investing activity 3.266.26 {15,148.62) 413.20 {3.174.65)
Financing activity 1,596.78 30.652.41 (1,773.73) 24,778.86
Net increase in cash and cash equivalends (6,114.40) 8,168.53 88.97 702.57

Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited

Runwal Constructions
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, uniess otherwise stoted)
Note 46

Employee benelfils expenses
{A) Defined contribution plans

Contribution to defined contribution plans recognised as an expense for the year are as under:

Parficul For the year ended For the year ended
s 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Employer's contribution to provident fund 94.71 66.85
Employer's confribufion to ESIC 1.56 2.11
Labour welfare fund contribution for workmen 017 0.13

(a) Defined Benefit Plans

(i) Gratuity {(unfunded])

Gratuily is payable to all eligible employees of the Group on refirement, death, permanent disablement and resignation in terms of
the provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, or Group's Scheme whichever is more beneficial. Benefits wouid be paid at the time
of the separation based on the respective Schemes.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
| Change in present value of defined benelit obligation during the year
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 131.38 141.09
2. Interest cost 4676 7.90
3. Current service cost 28.51 34.51
4. Past service cosi
5. Liability transfetred InfAcquisitions 36.41 37.65
4. Liability Transferred out / Divestment (31.31) {52.53)
7. Benefits paid directly by employer (16.13) (26.71)
8. Benefits paid = =
9. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions 1.77 (22.40)
10. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (8.41) 13.29
11. Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments 0.91 (1.43)
12. Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 149.8% 131.37
Il Net asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year (149.89) (131.37}
2. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year = -
3. Amount recegnised in the balance sheet {149.89) (131.37)
4. Net {liability}/ asset- Current (40.74) (30.83)
Net (liakility)/ asset- Non-current (109.15) {100.54)
Il Expenses recognised in the statement of predit and loss tor the year
1. Current service cost 28.51 34.51
2. Interest cost on benefit obligalion {Net) 6.77 7.90
3. Total expenses included in employee benefits expense 3528 42.41
IV Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year
1. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions (8.85) {11.59)
2. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (3.75) 7.61
3. Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments 6.87 (6.57)
4, Return on plan assets excluding interest income - =
5. Recognised in other comprehensive income (13.41) (10.55)
V Maturity profile of defined benefit obllgation
1. Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 40.74 30.84
2. 2nd Fellowing Year 24.30 21.51
3. 3rd Following Year 26.08 19.15
4, 4th Following year 20.87 26.03
3. 5th Following year 18.02 14.31
6. Sum of years éth to 10 years 44,11 37.72

7.5um of 11 years and above 11.46 8.94




VI Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:
1. Increase/{decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation ai the end of ihe year

(i) One percentage point increase in discount rate (3.71} (3.61)
(i} One percentage point decrease in discount rate 396 3.86
(i) One percentage peint increase in rate of salary Increase 3.45 3.47
(i} One percentage point decrease in rate of salary Increase (3.33) (3.34)
(1) One percentage peint increase in employee turnover rate (1.34) (1.66)
(i} One percentage point decrease in employee furmover rate 1.38 1.72

2. Senstivity Analysis Method

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presenied above may not be representalive of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, fhe present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reperling period, which is the sume method as applied in calculating the
projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensifivity analysis from prior years.

VIl The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total
Insurer managed funds NIL NIL

VI Actuarial assumplions

1. Discount rate 7.20% 5.15%

2. Salary escatation 9% 9%

3. Mortality rate during employment Indicn Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

Mortality 2012-14 Mortality 2012-14

(Urban) {Urban)

4, Mortality post retirement rate

5. Rate of employee turnover 29% 30%

Notes :

(i} The actuarial valualion of present value of the defined benefit obligation were camied out al 31st March, 2023. The present value of
the defined benefil obligalion and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit
Credit Method.

{ii) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market vields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the
estimated term of the obligations.

{iii} The salary escalation rate is arived after faking into consideration the seniority, the promotion and other relevant factors, such as,
demand and supply in employment market.

Risks associated with defined benefit plan
Interest rate risk:

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the government securities rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring
higher provision.

Salary risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future saiaries of members. As such, an
increase in fhe satary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Asset liability matching risk:
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. entity has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go basis from own
funds,

Mortality risk:

Since the benefils under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity
risk.

(ii} Compensated absences
The employees of the company are entifled to compensated absences as per the policy of the company.

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31si March, 2022

Defined benefit abligation as af end of th 8.64 99.85




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless oftherwise sfated)

Note 47
Relaofed party disclosure
A List of related parties

M

(n

(iii)

{iv)

)

{vi)

{vii)

{viii}

{ix)

(x)

* Retired from partnership firm from 30th September, 2021
** Retired from parinership firm from 31st March, 2021

Person having Conirol
Mr. Sandeep Runwal

Close family members of person having confrol
Mi. Subhash 8. Runwal (Father)

Mrs. Chanda S Runwal [Mother)

Mrs. Privanka Runwal (Spouse)

Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal {Brother)

Mrs. Snehal Subodh Runwal (Sister in Law)

Mr. Saurabh Sandeep Runwal (Sen)

Subsidiaries companies

Avalor Developers Private Limited

Bhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited

Sanabh Ventures Private Limited (whollyowned subsidiary during the period 13th March,2023 to 30th March,2023)

Subsidiary parinership firm
Runwal Constructions

Assoclate company
Wheelobrator Alloy Castings Limited
Runwal Finance (Dissolved w.e.d, 31.03.2021)

Joint venture
R Mall Developers Private Limited
R Retail Ventures Privaie Limited

Subsidiary of joint venture

Aethon Developers Private Limited
Galleria Retail Privafe Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limited

Others (entities controlled by person mentioned {1} & {ii) having control or joint contral)
Anand Developers

Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Subhash Runwal HUF

Runwal & Associates

Runwal Farms Private Limifed
Runwal Foundation

Rupri Consuttancy Services LLP
Rupri Consuttancy Private Limited
Sandeep Constructions

Value Constructions SRA*

Runwal Wonder Venture™
Saurabh Runwal Family Trust
Sanya Runwal Family Trust

Key management personnel {(KMP):

Runwal Developers Private Limited

Pallavi Matkari, Director

Ravi Sharma, Director (Appointed Wef 24-02-2022 & Resigned Wef 31-03-2023)
Sujata Rae, Director (Appointed Wef 24-02-2022)

Sanjay Doga, Direcior (Resigned on 15-03-2022)

Kishorkurnar Jain, Director [Resigned on 27-10-2021)

Mahesh lyer, Director (Resigned on 16-05-2022)

Sweena Nair, Company Secretary {Appointed wef 01-12-2022)

Relative of KMP
Mrs. Babita Daga (Spouse of Mr, Sanjay Daga)




B) The following fransactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Sr.

No.

1

10

1

12

13

14

Nature of fransaction / relaticnship

Sale/purchase of material and fixed assets
Sale
Horizon Projects Private Lirmnited
R retail Ventures Private Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limited.
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Sales Return
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Purchase

Ariane Crgachem Private Limited
R Reidil Ventfures Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited

R Mall Developers Private Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limifed.

Purchase Return
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Sale of flats
Mrs. Chanda S. Runwal

Sub- letfing Rent Charges
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Rent Paid
Mr.Subhash S.Runwal

Income from project management services
R Retail Ventures Pvi Lid

Invesiment in partnership firm/AOP
Runwal Finance

Advance received against material supply
Histyle Retail Private Limited

Repaymenf of advance
Histyle Retail Private Limited

AMC Charges
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited

Sale of electricity
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Business facility services
R Mail Developers Private Limited
R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Maintenance service given
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Maintenance service & property iax received
Mrs. Chanda $. Runwal

Dividend cccrued
Anand Developers
Mrs. Chanda § Runwal
M/s.Subhash Runwal HUF
Mrs, Privanka Runwal
Runwal Associates
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mr. Subhash S. Runwal
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal
* Amount is less than 500

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

17.61
0.88
0.27

2.66

4,19
594
0.86

2.66

1.00

350.00

242.57

507.17

60.00
300.00

52.37

65.78

0.64

1.25
2.98
7.84
1.21
0.92

2,086.67

35.40
826.00
2,291.48
400.00

400.00

60.00
300.00

19.55
3.59
0.01

0.11
0.01
3.21

1.34



15

16

17

i8

19

20

21

22

23

Dividend Paid
Anand Developers
Runwal Associates
Sandeep Constructions
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal
Mrs. Snehal Runwal *
Saurabh Runwal *
* Amount is less than 500

Redemplion of Preference Shares
Anand Developers
Mrs. Privanka Runwal
Runwal Associates
Sandeep Construction
Mr. Sandeep Runwai
Mr. Subodh Sulbbhash Runwal

Securily deposit given
Given
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Repaid
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Security deposit laken
Received
R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Runwal Foundation

Repaid
R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited

EMD Received
Received
R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Repaid
R Retail Yentures Private Limited

Services Received
Rupri Censultancy Private Limited

Intercorporate deposits received
Taken
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Runwal Farms Private Limited

Repaid
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Runwai Farms Private Limited

intercorporate deposils given
Given
R Retail Venlures Private Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Repaid

Horizon Projects Private Limited

R Refail Ventures Private Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Loan taken
Anand Developers
Runwal & Associates
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP
Sandeep Constructions

0.01
0.01
0.01
1.58
0.06
0.66
0.00
0.00

130,70
4.21
130.70
130.70
1,158.82
113.09

4,374.00

882.50
297.00

882.50
5,923.93

150.00

150.00
508.00

190.00

140.72
179.72
137.49
130.72

24,183.93

15.542.00

882.50
157.35

882.50

500.00

500.00

5%.00

200.00
508.00

200C.00

1,200.00
217.00
376.00

9,165.93
1,200.00
917.00
331.00



24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

3y

40

Loan repaid
Mr. Sondeep Runwal
Subhash Runwal
Mrs. Chanda § Runwail
Anand Developers
Runwal & Associates
Rupri Censultancy Services LLP
Sandeep Constructions
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Runwal Farms Private Limited

Loan given
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP

loan given received
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP

Repayment of Capital on Relirement
H A Visweswara
Sanjay Daga

Capital Infroduced/Withdrawn
Infroduced
Nirmala Murali
Sunil Satvikar
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Withdrawn

Nirmala Murali

Sunil Satvikar

Ariane Orgachem Private Limiied
Runwal Farms Private Limited

Furchase of equity share of R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal
Mr. Sandeep Runwal

Investment in equity shares
R Retail ventures Private Limited

Invesiment in debentures
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Redemption of debeniures
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Inferest on debeniures
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Advertisement Expenses
R Mall Developers Private Limited

CSR expenditure
Runwal Foundation

Salary
Sanjay Daga
Ravi Sharma
Privanka Runwal
Mahesh iyer
Sujata Rao
Sweena Nair

Reimbursement of expenses
Sandeep Runwal

Brokerage charges paid
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited

Professional fees paid
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited

Refund of capital invested in subsidiary
Yalue Constructions SRA

12.77

28.50
21.50
137.49
33.00
4,976.31
7,018.69

780.00
780.00

0.05
0.05

0.05
0.05

0.05
0.05

1,000.00
26.93
2500.00

313.08

35.78
20.00
30.53
39.97

7.32

1.892.21
1,182.33
134.52

2,773.00
41.50

653.00
200.C0
0.50

1.20
1.80

3.00

1,000.00

54.47

297.00

168.07
19.05
70.00

158.63

5.05

16.79
74.91
100.30

3.372.43



1

42

<)

10

1

12

Guaraniee taken
Mr. Sandeep Runwal*
*(refer note 28)

Sharing of infrastructure

Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited

Horizon Projects Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Ruprti Consultancy Private Limited
Rupri Consultancy LLP

Runwai Foundation

(Transaction of non monetary nature)

Amount due to / from relaled parties

Inter corporate deposit
Given
Avalor Developers Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Taken
Runwal Farms Private Limited

Inter corporate guarantee
Given
R Mail Developers Private Limited

Advance from Customer
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Sanya Runwal Family Trust
Mr Subhash S. Runwai

Security deposit
Taken
Runwal Foundation

Given
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Sundry Deposit
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mr. Subhash Runwal

Investmenf in equity shares
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Wheelabrator Alloy Castfings Limited

R Mall Developers Private Limited
R Retail ventures Private Limited

Investment in preference shares
R Retail ventures Privaie Limited

Interest on Invesiment in debentures
R Mall Developers Private Limited
Horizon Projects Pvt Lid

Trade receivables
Horizon Projects Private Limited
R Mall Developers Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Trade payable
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited
R Retait ventures Private Limited
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Brekerage charges payable
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited

Professional fees payable

Rupri Consultancy Private Limited =

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

31.00

59.40
1,513.31
91.74

454.35

15.00
115.00

0.7
1,720.86
463.00
20,313.00

7,000.00

165.98
37.73

7.7
2,200.00

0.50
45.00

508.00

22,000.00

1,513.31
91.74

157.35

10,297.93

0.17
1,720.86
463.00
3.00

20,310.00

492.02
7.000.00

137.463
58.29

5.10
1.25
91.80
2.98

7491

52.00



13 Mainlenance receivables
Subhash Runwal
Chanda Runwal

14 Salary Payable
Sweenda Nair
Mrs. Privanka Runwal
Mr. Mahesh lyer
Ms. Sujata Rao

15 Lease Rent payable
Subhash Runwal
Sandeep Runwal

16 Guarantee taken
Mr. Sandeep Runwal*
*(refer note 28)

17 Dividend payable
Anand Developers
Mrs. Privanka Runwod
Runwal Associates
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mr. Subcdh Subhash Runwal

18 Other Advances
Mr. Subhash Runwal

19 Leoan & Advances
Payable
Anand Developers
Runwal & Associates
Sondeep Constructions

Ariane Crgachem Private Limited

Runwal Farms Private Limited
Sandeep S Runwal

20 Other payable
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal

N Receivable /(Payable) as retired pariner

Runwal Wonder Venture

22 Investment in debentures

R Mall Developers Private Limited

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

Nature of transaction / relafionship
Short-term employee benefits

Post-empioyment pension and medical benefits*

Other long term benefits®
Termination benefits
Share based payments

6.00

132.22
158.22
97.72

114.88

5.04
7.94
204

0.01
0.
0.01
.21
1.34

6.00

4,976.31
7.018.69
12.77

661.45

1.000.00

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

203.59

440.80

* Provision for gratuity and leave encashment benefits are determined on actuarial valuation basis. Hence the same is not
seperately reported here for KMPs.

Total compensation paid to key management personnel
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in am’'s length transactions. This

assessment is undertaken each financiai year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates. Quistanding balances ai the year-end are unsecured and setflement occurs in cash.
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fRunwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to conseolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 49

Segmeni Reporting

The Group identifies the following acfivities as independent segments :
i} Reci estate business

i) Mall

fif) Electricity generation

Particulars Total Real .e shate Elecirlc!fy Mall
business generation

Revenues from external customers

Current year 35,490.86 2%,907.81 61613 496693
Previous year 81.856.23 79.272.07 41417 2.169.9%
Intersegment revenue

Current year - - - -
Previcus year - - - -
Total Revenue

Cumrent vear 35,490.84 29,907 .81 616.13 4,966.93
Previous year 81,856.23 79,272.07 41417 2,16%9.99
Segment results before exceplional items, interest,

tax

and depreciation:

Current year 12,400.44 10,938.30 406.29 1,055.85
Previous year 19,701.48 18,109.66 207.19 1,384.83
Reconciliation to profit/(loss) for the year:

Add:; Finance income

Current year 1.065.48 991.87 21 71,51
Previous year 71411 611.63 - 102.48
Less: Finance costs

Current year 3,220.04 2,018.76 204.85 996.43
Previous yvear 2,344 .55 1,294.83 232,16 817.56
Less: Depreciation and amorisation

Current year 1,424.16 251.49 218.72 953.95
Previous year 979.37 (127.04) 211.3% 895.02
{Add: Share of profil/{loss] of joint ventures and

associates

Current year (4,428.81) E - -
Previous year (712.24) - - -
Profit before exceplional items and tax

Current year 4,392.91 9.65%.92 {15.17) (823.02)
Previous year 15,379.63 17,553.50 {236.38) {225.27)




Runwal Developers Private limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amounis in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Real esiate

Electricity

Padiculars Total . N Mall
business generation

Add: Exceptional items

Curmrent year - - - -

Previous year - - - -

Profit before tax

Curreni year 4,392.91 9,659.92 (15.17) {823.02)

Previous year 16,379.63 17,553.50 {234.34) {225,27)

Less: Tax expense

Current year 152.13

Previous year 23.351.23

Net profit/{loss) for the vear

Current year 4,233.78

Previcus year (6.971.60)

Segment assets

Current year 3.80.024.08 | 3.15292.46 1,906.10 62,825.52

Previous year 3.40,584.48 | 2,67,956.94 4,126.28 68,501.26

Tolal assets

Cument year 3,80,024.08 | 3.15.292.46 1,906.10 62,825.52

Previous year 3.40,584.48 | 2,67.%56.94 4,126.28 68,501.26

Segment assels include:

Equity accounted investments

Current year 26,374.57

Previous year 30,803.55

Segment Habilities

Current year 23576096 | 2.12,438.0%9 1,888.26 21,434.60

Previous year 20057279 | 1.83,181.36 2,123.55 15,247.88

Total liabilities

Cumrent year 2,35,760.96 | 2,12,438.09 1,888.26 21,434.60

Previous year 2,00,572.79 | 1.,83,181.356 2,123.55 15,267.88




"SIDBA § O | Ulyim pasiuBodsl aq
0} PayDadxe 5| SWDS UL SUNO| £2°07Z'09'L "SY 5| ZZOT UDIOW ISLE 'SUID] ZZ'SET'TY’L'SA £20T "UDIOW ISLE 10 SO suoloBiqo soubuLoyed Butuiowss sy} Jo 8oud LUoIoBsUDY au) ()

8C°9PEE ¥E€'90E'9 8jb( J9s8ys souninyg {0 Buipunising aboiaoig palaleg

AW 4 06T SHUN [DIUSPIsal Jo ajos 0} Buluinpad 51500 sbBouasolg

TTOZ 'YOW Is1E €202 'YIIDW ISLE SID[NDIIDY
sy {0 sy

JOUIOISND B YIIM 1D0IUGD 1 (I[N IO UIDEGO Of 560 ay) wol) pasiubonsal sjassy (p)

gos'e 89'860°L S} J9AO POLBISUDI S9D1AISS JO Spooh Wol snusisy

GO69E’ L4 Or'0TT’ 62 S UL UIod D 1D SISWCISNS O} RPRLISISUDY $9DIAUSS IO SPOOB LWIOY SNUSAY

$201A138 10 5pooB Jo lajsupy) jo Bujwiy

TTOT "UDIDW ISLE £T0T 'UMDW ISLE SIDINIUDY
o sy o sy

"$501A195 10 SpooB JO Japsuny 10 B AQ SISUIOISND UM SIDDILOD LUOY Snuaasi Aundwo ay) o uoybBaiBBosip aut 5 molad jno jas
UoRWICIU] anuaaal papbaifBosiq (2}

ZZ0Z UDIDW 1E 10 sD usldo@aap Jo safbiogs snouoa Ul aup stosold 8)0)se |hal
2ng "pale|dwos aIb s1oja) suoyuBlge sounlouad Yans Udiym o} siaeloid ainise [nal BulAuepun suy (S Jo) usym suolbBiigo soupuLoed pIRs sul AJsDs 0} sjoadxe dnol sy

‘suolp|nBal
pUD sMD| 2gpaIdde aul pub SISWOSND UM Palnoexs sluswaalBn sy 10 sWug) 3y} Jad sD sjun [DRUSPISal |U} Ul Si3848p JSUl0 Jo [pInioruys Aup 1o} ejgpll s) AupdweD
ay] JBWOISND SU} O} SHUN YDNS JO [OIUOD S13sUnl) AUDCUIOD S4) UDIUM LD Sl Ul LUIod B4yl GIMm SP0UICD AJIIDSSSISU JoU ADLU S8UCisa|ill 4ons yBnoy) saUo|sa|ill [BND0ILOoD (O
HUSWSASILDD UO JuswiaaiBn syy U pax) SO UOLDIBRISUCD JO [LUSWADRd S3oW Of SISWOoSND Sy} ainbal $ISWOISND YIM PajnNosxs sjuaLusalbio Jo suus) sy 'sjun [oluspisal Jo 8|os
PUD UOLDNISUOD JO) SISWIOISND LDNS YlIM DaJNDaXs sjuaWasiBn o] Jupnsind sauo)sa|iul [DNEDDYUOD UC PasD( SIOWOKND WOl Pejoo]|02 SIUNoWD Jussaidal sSliigo) 1504u0D

8E°LE9TL 89°E0LEL'L pouad Bujpodas syj jo pus ay| |y

000Lé'£9 0&'188'ET Inah syl Buunp anuaaal sp paziuBoosl JUNOWY

LT0LE L 0T VSeT9 ID8A ayj Buunp paAladal SJUNnouY

LLU'LZE 49 8E1E9'TL SI2LUOJSND WOI) SBDUDAPD -~ poitad Buipodar ayy jo Buuwbaqg ayy iy

Aae ieoluoeDd

ZZ0Z 'UDIDW ISLE €202 'UDIOW IS1E SIDNDIPD
o sy o sy

1SMO||0) SD BID $2DUDIDJ SIGD]| 1SDIUOD PUD JESS0 JDDAU0D Ul saBunyD Junajiubis (g)
"QNUSASI SD POSIUBOIS) USaQ SDY SORIICDI JoDIU0D U pasiuBooal | sWio| 014" /9 dNL M08 A SNOIABI]) SUND| 04 L8F'EZ SH JO Junowip sy (o)

SISWIOISNT YJiM SJODIUOT LLIOY SNUAASY - SLL SV ANI
0§ 9ION
{p2ibis 2SIMIBYJO SSSIUN ‘SYNDT "SY UI SJUNOWID Jjy)

£Z0Z 'YIDW {51 papuUs IDaA By} 10} SJUSWSJD)S [DIZUDUY PSIDPICSUCD O} S9JON
pajW] DAL s1ado[aAaq [DMUNY



%980

BICYE

LG ER
%S L 6F

%980

%ITFE

%0005
BGL6F

pipU|

oIpu|

olpu|
plpul
BlpU]

LIpuj
LIpU

{(BuIpioy &AIDS}3} SUOHDNISUOD "y 'S
(Buipioy 2Al}>2Y9) $2|DIDOSSD UD JO SINJUaA julor

papiw sBUNSDD AOJlY JojDIgRIeaUM
SaDIDOSSY

PaLILIT 8JDAlY siadoj@asq Uoyiey

PBYWIT BIoAL ()Y BJAISIH

PaJILUIT 8J0Alld [ID}9Y DUI|IRS

{Bujploy aAl}oa§3) anjuaA el Jo AiDipisqng

BT {DAL SSINJUSA [IDISY o
palIWI DAL s1adojsAaq [DW ¥
ainjuan juior

£70% 'USIDW UIOE Of €207 ‘UDIeW Wie L pouad ay] 1o) AIDIPISNGNS PAUMOA(OUM SLUODSQ PO 8{DANY S3INJUSA YJDUDS I5aA sy} Buun( .

%0056
%00° 1S
%001

TZ0Z UIOW S1E
1P S¥

%0056
%0018
%001

€202 'U2IDW jsiE
1o sv

{to=2a1q) Buipjoy jo abpjuadiag

{PaiDis ISIMIDYIO SSDIUN "SYNDT 'SY Ul SIUNOWD |Iy)

oIpul
BIpu|
DIpU|

sSaUsNq JO a20|d

SUCIDNISUCD) [DMUNY

PEYILILT BIDAL SIIW US[IOM DAY
palill] SinAlld siado|eAs IODAY
« SLDIPISGNS

Ajjua ay} Jo WON

sauDIPISANS g aINjuaa jujol 'SaJD|20SSD U0 LUOYRWIIOHU]

1S S4ON

£Z0Z ‘UDIDW ISLE POPUS IDSA 314 10) 5{USWIBID]S [DIDUDUY PADPIOSUOD O} SBjON

papw] 9jpAlld siedojasag [pmuny



03 Lg
SR

el
= |Djo]

N N SSrLL'TE - -
B - £020C's = = EIMEEIEEREEEED TS
B - 48TFEEL sg|goAnd epi|
- - €L SAIQRIT asna
B - 19°Ceo'8 - - sBuimoliog
usungy
- - |y'E SQUIIGDIT 8503
B " B JASKA £ 04" - - sBumoLog
jusUND-UON
SaIgDY [PISUDbUY °g
LLD 14814 - P'E06°65 : s BFE Bjol
5 - - FFG8E"L g - $JESSD DIDUDUY 1IBULO
B i - 18098 - - SUDO
B - - ¥O' 65T - - sACqD (ji1) UDY} J8Y}C aouDb|Dg JuDg
- - - 9 8L7 0L - = §IUSIDAINDS YSPD PUR USDD
B - = 8¢ /LY | 5 - $9|gDAIRD8] 8P|
B - - 00000, - = SJUSUISDAL|
uaund
- = - 812291 - - $I95SD [DIDUBUY JaYlO
£1°0 CEBYE LSVLE'9T - 67 BFE SJUBWIISBAUL
JUaunI-UopN
§]9SSD [PIDUDUL 'Y
awoau|
£ |9AS] Z |9A27 L 12A9T 1505 pasyIowry aAisusysiduwiod sso| Jo oid
i 1ayjo ybBnouyj anjpa 1oy i
yBNOIY} BNIOA DY £Z0T "YDIDW SLE IO SY
Sn|oA IIDg junown BulAund

‘DIDR JONIOW AGRIDAD U0 Pasnd Ay 81D |oU [USLUNISUL SUIDS a4 Ul SUOHDDSUDLY |33IDW [UILND 8|gDAISSTO wol) sadud Ag payoddns 1sypau aIn
1Dl SUOLAUINSSD LS Paska |SPOLU UoLDNIBA D Buisn und Ul 10 2|0 Ul PEUIULIBIBR SID SN[DA I 'siNdU] S|CEAIRSGOUN DIDP (930 8|GDAISSI0 UO PASDY 10U 81D Jout $ndu) i¢ [8A7]

‘(seoud Wol paausp a1} AllD2lpul 10 (se2ud "8')) A2l JOUNS ‘AIIIGDI 1O S1assD Buy} 10} S|qDAISSHO 1D DU} | [8AB] UM papn|oul seoud pajonb Uy ieuio a1o sindu|ig [9Aa]
SQUIGDY IO 518550 [DDIUSPI IO} SJEXIDUI BAIDD U] {pajsnipoun) seoud pajonb sip sindut :| [9A81
:anbiuy2a) UoUDN|DA AQ SIUSLUNILSUL [DIDUDUY [0 &nja 0] a4} Buiseasip pub Buupuisiep 1o} Ayoimisiy Bulmaio) sy} sasn dnois ayl

“SIUSLLINISU] 358Y) JO SaIUNIDU WUISL-UoUs ayl o enp AlaBIp| sjunouds BulAns Jjey) sppwixoiddn
SUOHMISUL |DIDUDUL JOUI0 PUD S$YUDJ LGOI SUDO| LWL HOYS ‘SOI|ICD] JUSUND 18UL0 ‘sajgnADnd aprlf ‘Sa|CDAIS2a) ULIS) HOYS 19Y[0 PUD apnly Ssodap LHS)-LOUS PUD USD3 O 8NnjoA JIod

“H|DS UOIDPINDI| 10 PSDI0) D Ul DY} J8Y}0 "94DP JUBLISINSKSLU S1)
10 spupdDIpnd JS3IDW L9aMLaq UOIDOSUDI] JUSUND © Ul paBunyoxe aq RIN0D JUSWNISUL SUf UDIYM L0 JUNOwWR 8y} LD papn|ou] 210 S3YIHID] PUD S185s0 [DIDUDUY B} O SSNDA D} 84

2INSOII51q SN|OA B0
T5 ®JON




0r'0£0'8

¢chg Y21oW ISl

io sy

Z1'809'8
£¢0¢ USIOWISIE

o sy

UNOWE BUIALDD |0 2q O} PaISPISUOD 310 USAIB SUDO| 8}110dI0D Jajul J© SN[DA D} '3IN{OU Ul JUSLND 81D 5UDO| §Y

SUDOT

SID|N DI

IMO[BG PAIDIS SO S| UDIUM JO SNIDA JIDJ Sy} 'SUDO| 210I0dI0D I18{U] $3RN|2U] SO PasIHOWD Jo PaINSDSU SUDO| juaunD

502 PASHIOWID |D PAINSDIW 310 YD|YM SSIHJIR]| PUD S}9SSD [DIDUDUY JO 20IDA JDY

‘PUBLISP U0 g|gqrAiDdal 210 BWns eyl S JUNowo BulALDD s)| se[owixoiddn spsodsp AJINDSS IO $aN|DA D} Y]
“SUSLINIESUI 858U 1O SSLUNIDL ULS-LIoYS 8UL O} 2np AlaBIp| sfunowp BulAups 1ey] 8ipwixolddo sjasso/sal)iqol|
JUaLND J8YIo pub sa|gpAind epoy sisodap appiodioD I8iU] 'SB|GRARDS] 8PDI} SHDIPIGAO/SUDO|/SUSOASD LS} POUS ‘SUDO| ‘SJUSIDAINDS YSDD PUD YSOD {oUY} PassassD uswabBoubw ay|
“SIUSLUSINSIDELU 8N|RA IR Z [9AS] BUD [ [9AS] USaMmiad SIajsubl) OU alam 1oy} * ZZ0Z UIoW ISLE PUR £Z0Z ‘U21ow Is|€ Bupus polad Buipodsl sy Buung

ybBnoiyj snipa Iy

8N|DA JID4

junown BulAlnD

- - 20°LOS 48 5 - B0l
B - 6E°950'9 - = SR [RIDUDUY JBWO
N - RN sa|goind spoit
- - 845 18EET - & sBuimounog
juauns
B - zL8le’Ls 3 E sBumeolog
juaun3-uoN
$3YIqOY [DIdUDULS g
LU0 5829 SE'PIh'vL 5 0'c? 1201
) " P&¥EG/ - = $19550 [DIDUDULY 18I0
B B Qr'0e0'e = = SUDOT
- B P& LLEL - H aAogD (111) UBY} J8Yo 8oUD(BY Jubyg
h - 60'SLESL - - SjuUB|DAINDS YSDD pUB YspD
- - $9°GE0E - = $3|QDAISD38. SPIL
- - Qo 000'g - = IVETIVIEE=YAN]
usunD
- TP ese’L = z $}8s50 [DIDUDUY JIBULO
L10 468°C9 8C°£08°08 - PUEY SIUBULSaAU|
JSUND-UON
5}3$5D [DISUDUY 'Y
awosul
aAsuayaidwod $$0| 1o Josd
£ 9A9] ZleAa L 19437 J500 pasipowsy oo | yBnoNy eniBA DY i OISO




ZZ0Z “UZIDW 15 1£ DUD £Z0Z ‘U2IOW 15 1€ papus sinak syl Buunp ppdno BuiBounu 104 sessanoid 1o saioljod ‘seal12a[qo syt Ul spowt atem sebuby> oN

‘pousd Jualnd au Ul BUMOLOT PUD SUDO| BULDSA-15818}U] AUD JO SJUDUSAOD [DIDURLL S4) L) $8LD08.0 OU Uaad SADY
215y "SBUIMOLOY PUD SUDO] [0 A[2IDIPaWWI O} JUDg 8yl Hulied PINOM SJUDUSAOD [RISUDLY 8} Bulesl Ui sayopalg “sjualualinbal einfonls o2 augep {ou SBUIMOULOY PU SUDO|
BuUDSA-1SeIaIUL 81 O] PSUDOR SIUDLSACD IDIAUDUY SBSLU JI DU} SINSUS Of SLID sBUILL Jayo JsBuown ‘JuswsBounw |oldnd §,dNoID 8y} "9AID3]Q0 (IRISAO SIU} 8ASIYID G} JORIO Ll

%l8 Ly UEL'EY ol Buupnag
viLLO'OF'L TLEPT'vIL {ga} Aunba |vjo),
Elére’6e’ | TaViersal Ajnba Jauio
1929 L1612 Ajnbg
L0'529'85 TP'980'eY (v)aep 19N
60°G/TG1 ¥'8/¥'0l (/1 210N) sjUs|DAINDS YSDD PUB YD 1$587
0E006'Es 88195'e/ (8z puD ¥z aloN)sBumoLog
Z20¢ USIOW BIE £20C YOIDW ISLE
10 sy 1D sy SID|NDIPD

SUolRIado panuUyLoDSIP

BUIpn|oxe ‘SjuUaipAnba YSoo pUb Lsp? 55a| sBUIMOLIOG pub suno| BuuDad §sa1aful 1gap 1au uiyiim sspnaul dnold syl 'jgsp jau snid [ppdod j01o] AQ PapIAIP (gap 18U s LDIum

‘oY) Buupsb b Buisn PUADD sIoHUOW dRoIS B "SBIDYS MBU BNss| IO SIBPIoYSIBYSs 0} [04)dD WNjal ‘slspioyaloys 0} JuswAnd puspialp ey} snlpn Aow: dnois ey} *sinjonils [opdoD sy}
1SNIPD JO LIBLLIDU O] “SIUDLOADD [DIDUDUY Uj JO SJUSLISINDAaI 8L} PUD SULIPLOD JituouoDa Ul saBupyD Jo JyBi ul sjusuisnlp se3pul pub a1nidnis joHdoD si seBounL s,dnoug) ay|

‘siaployaInys AIDUIDIO O} SDUSRIAID JO [9AS| SUL SO 1M SD [DHADD US LINLaI BY] SIOHUCW
JUSLLISBDUDW "$58UISNG BU) JO JUSWG0IBASE BN UIDISOS ) PUO 82USPIUDD [83I0W PUR JCLR8ID ‘I0ISeAUl UIDJUIDW O} S 0§ asbd [pjidoa Bucuis b ulpjuibw o} §| Aojjod s,dnoio sy

“aNDA ISPICYBIDUS S} SSIWIXDLW o) ST jusluaBounw opdoo s,.dnoisy auy Jo aaldslqo Aiowiud sy) “usind
ol 10 siap|oy Alnba syl 0] 2|gDINGUID $8AI8581 AN Jeylo (0 PUD WNiWwaid sIoys Ipdo? Alinbs panss) sepn|oul |ojidoo ‘tuswebpunul [oydoo 5, dnoisy sy} Jo asodind ayj 1o
awasbounwy [pydoD
£5 SION
{pojpjs asimIajo SSa[UN ‘SIPIDT "SY U] SJUNOWD JIv)

£207 ‘'UDIDW ISLE PRRUD JoaA 91} 10) SJUSLLISIDIS |D]2UDUY PIJOP|OSUOD O} $3JON
pajwl ajoald siedoj@aad [pmuny



Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes fo conselidated financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amaounts in Rs. Lokhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 54
FInanclal Risk Management Objectives and Palicles

The Group principal financial liabilities comprise borrowlngs, trage and other payables. The main purpose of these financial iiokilities is to finance the Greup operations and o
pravide guarantess to suppor its cperations. The Groug princigal financial assets include loans and advances, trade and other recaivabies, and cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly rom its cperations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Group senior managament oversees the management of these fsks, The Group senior managemesni
ensures that the Company's financial risk activities are govermned by appropriate poficles and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and menaged in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objeciives. The Board of Directors reviews and agress policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.

a} Market risk

Market risk is the sk that the fair volue of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluckuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate sk, curency rsk and other price nisk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instrumenis affected by market risk include depaosits, FVTGCI
invesiments.

The sensiiivity analysis [n the following seclions relate o fhe position as at 315t March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022,

The analysis exclude the impact of mavements in market variables on: the camying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial
assets and licbilifies of foreign operations.

The following assumptlons have been made In caleulating the sensifivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant profif or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liakilifies held at
31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022.

interast rate rsk

Interest rate risk can be either fair valve interest rate risk or cash fiow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes n fair values of fixed interest bearing
invastmanis because of fluctuations in the Interest rates, Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floafing interest bearing investments will fluctuate
because of fluctuations in the Interest rates.

The Company is exposed 1o the cash flow interest rate risk due fo which the fulure cash flows of floating interest bearing investments fluctuate because of fluctuations in the
Inferest rates.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022,
The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the canyving values of gratuity and other postretirement obligalions; provisions; and the non-financial

assels and Tabiliies of foreign operclions.

The foliowing assumptions have been made in calculating the sensifivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss iem is the effect of the assumed changes in respective maorket risks. This is based on the financial ossels and financial liabllities heid af
31st March, 2023 and 31si March, 2022,

Pasticulors [ncrease/decrease In existing Interest rate by Effect on profit before tax

For the yvear ended 31st March, 2023 + 1% {708.08)
Finance cost incured - % 70806
For the vear ended 31st March, 2022 + 1% {648.00)
Finance cost Incurred - 1% 648,00

Exposure to Interest rate risk

In order to apfimize the Compony's posifion with regards to interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive
corporale interest rate risk management by balancing the propertion of fixed rate and floating rate financici instruments in ifs tetal porfolio. Accerding to the Company interest
rate risk exposure is only for fioafing rate borowings. The inleras rate profi le of the Company's interest-bearing fi nancial insiruments as reporfed fo the management

of the Campany is as follows.

Particulars Asal As at
3Tst March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Fixed rate instrument
Hnancial asset

Bank depasits 551842 13.494.05

Other Loans 8.608.12 8,030.4C
{A) 14,126,54 21.524.45
Financial liabililies

Preference shares = 1,672.52

Vehicle Loan 45.65 6234
{B) 46.65 1,734.86
Variable rate instrument
Financial labilifies

Term koan 48,283.90 67 .673.44

Bank overdraft 4,164.67 4,003,14
(<} 72,448.57 71,874.58

Foreign currency risk

There is no foreign cumency assets or liabllity as on 31st March, 2023. Thus there is no foreign cumrency risk as on 31si March, 2023,

b} Cradit risk

Credil risk is the risk that counterparty will not meel iis obligations under a financial instument or customer contrac, leading to @ financial less. The Company is exposed fo
credit risk from its operating octivilies {primarly frade receivables) and from iis financing activifies, including deposits with banks and financial Institutions, foreign exchange
transactions and cther financial instruments.

Exposure to credit risk :
The canying amaunt of financlal assets represents the maximum credit exposure.




Trade receivables

Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derved flom revenue earned from cusiomsars. Credit risk has chways been managed by each
business segment through credit cpprovals, establishing credit limils and continuously monitoring the cradit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms
in the nomal course of business.

Cn accaunt of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the Impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision malrix io compute
ihe expected credit loss allowance for frade receivables and unbiled revenues, The provision matix tokes nto account factors such as default risk of industry, historical
experience for customers efc. The moximum exposure to credif risk al the reporiing date Ts the canylng value of each class of financial assels. The Company does not hold
collateral as secunity. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to frade receivables is low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and operaie
n largety independent markets. {for Detail movement in provision for trade receivables - refer Mote 14)

Finaneial instruments and bank deposiis

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury decartment in accordance with the Company's policy. Invesimenis of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterporties and within credit imifs assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credtt limils are reviewed by the Company's
Board of Direciors on an annuai basis. The limils are sef o minimise the concentralion of risks and therefore mitigate finoncial loss through counterpany's potential Tailure to
make payments,

The Company's maximum exposure to credi risk for the compenents of the balance sheet of 31si March, 2023,

Loans

The loans and advances also includes loans n the nature of advances for project and hence risk on them is minimal. Based on fhe above factors and histerical data. loss on
collection of receivables is net material and hence no provision was made in respect of thase loans.

: As at As at
REHEDITE 31st March, 2023 315t Mareh, 2022
Loans cther than project advances 8,608.12 8,030.40
Expected credit loss it of loons as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022.

Considering the nature of the business, the Company has a policy fo provide loans to Tts group entifiss for undertaking projecis, based on iis primary business mode! of
undertaking preject developments. The loans given to these enfities are repayakble on demiand and there is no past history for any detoult 7 delay / imegularity in repayments
based on demands made. Morsover, all the group entifies fo whom loans have besn advanced, have substantial potential Tn the projects ta repay the loan based on the
valuation of such entfities and their activities are contralled and managed by the Company. Accordingly, in view of sech confrol over operations and underlying security of the
project / assets, these loans are considered adequaiely secured for repayments, except in cases where the independent valuation of underlying projects wamant provision for
impalrment.

c} Liquidity risk

Liquidlity risic is the risk that the Company will net be able to setile or meet its cbligations as they fall due. The company's policy on liquidity misk is to maintain sufficient Bguidity in
ihe form of cash and investment in liquid mutual funds o meet the Company's operating requirements with an appropriaie level of headrocom. In addition, processes and
policies reldted to such risks are overseen by senior management. Managemeni meonitors the Company's net liguidity position through rolling ferecasts on the basis of expecied
cash flows. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sourcas of funding maturing within 12 menths can be rolled over with existing lenders.

Matuilty profile of financlal llabllities
The table below provides delails regarding the remaining confraciuel maturities of financial iakilities at the reporting date based on cenfractual undiscountad payments.

On demeand Less than 1 1to 5 years More than 5 years Total
year
As at 31st March, 2023
Einanelal Babllities
Bomrowings . 8,729.5% 50,054.76 4.780.60 73,564.87
Lease Lickilifies = 1.23 3.48 - 4.71
Trade payables - 10,885.81 2,457.08 = 13,342.8%
Other financial liabilities 369.68 483239 - - 520207
Tolal 36%.68 24 448.94 £2,515.32 4,780.60 72,114.54 |
A5 af 318t Mareh, 2022 On demand Less than 1 1te 5 years More than 5 years Tetal
. yaar
Einancial liabllities
Bomowings = 22,381.99 47,352.23 4,165.88 73,%00.10
Trade payables = 7.202.15 2,342.44 - 9,544 .59
Other financial liabilities - 6.056.39 = = 6,056.39
Total - 35,640.53 49, 694.67 4,155.88 8%,501.08




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, uniess otherwise sfated)

Note 55 - Business Combination

{A) Summary of acquisition

During the previous year, the holding company along with its Subsidiary acquired $5.72% stake in Runwal
Constructions (RC) — a partnership firm from its erstwhile partnars, resuiting RC becoming a subsidiary w.e.l.
1st October 2021. The acquisiticn would bring synergies 1o the Group as RC is in the same line of business as
the Parent Company.

As per Ind AS 103 "Business Combination” the fair valuation has been determined by an indapendent
registered voluer as per details given below:

The assefs and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition as on 15t October, 2021 are as foilows:

Parficulars Fair valve
Property, plant and equipment 48,047.72
CWIP 1,612.96
Non current investment 1,540.70
Total non - current assets 51,201.38

Coument assels

Invgntories 39.757.74
Financial assets

Trade receivables 540.59
Cash & cash equivatents 340.44
Loans 9.785.31
Total current assets 50,424.08
Total assets 1,01,625.4%
Financial liabilities

{1 Borrowings 12,830.75
Tolal non - cuirent liabilities 12,830.75

Current Habilities

Other current liabilities 23,779.84
Total current liabilities 23,779.84
Conlingent liabilities 128.54
Total liabilities 34,73%.13
Net assets 44,8846.33
Calculation of Capital Reserve Amount
Total Consideration (inclusive of contribution of subsidiary Company) 8,292.35
Add: NCI based on Fair Value of net assets 2,774.67
Less: Net assets acauired {as above) 64,886.33
Capital Reserve arising on acquisition 53,819.31

(B} Accounting policy choice of non-controlling interesf:

The group recognises non-confrolling interest in an acquired entity af the present ownership insfruments’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets,

(C) Revenue and profit / (loss) contribution:

Revenue from operations of Rs, 1,163.79 Lakhs and Loss after Tax of (17,304.87) Lakhs has been included in
the Current Year's Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss.

{D) Purchase Consideration — Cash Oulfiow:

Particulars Amount
Outflow of cash fo acguire the stake [including omount pavable before 31% March, 2022)

Cash Consideration 14,815.59
Less: Balance acauired 340.44
Net Outflow of Cash - Invesfing Activities 14,475.15

(E) There are no acquisition refated costs to acquire the stake in this partnership firm.

(F) The revenue and profit before tax of the combinad enfity for the curent reporting period would have
increased by Rs. 398.23 lakhs and Rs. 244.65 lakhs approximately, if the acquisition date for the business
combination occurred during the year iIn Runwal Constructions had been as of the beginning of the annual
reporting period (i.e. 1st April, 2021).




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(Al amounfs in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stafed)
Nole 56

Leases
Asset given under operating lease

The Company has recovered Rs.1,018.60 Lakhs rent from the Customers. Details of rental income recognized during the year in
respect of this is given below:

Particulars opci Lo
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rent income recognized during the year 2,473.01 1,346.05
2,473.01 1,346.05
Assel taken under operating lease
(i} The Company has taken Land on leave and license basis.
Details of rental expense recognized during the vear In respect of this lease is given below:
Pariculars As af e
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period 106.09 107.60
106.09 107.40
(ii) Analysis of Lease liabilify:
As at As at
Movement of lease liabilities March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening lease liabilities = =
Addition during the year /period 5.80 -
Interest Cost 0.61 =
Cash outflow towards payment of lease liabiiities (1.71) -
Deletion during the year on account of termination of lease agreements - =
Closing lease liabilities 4,70 -
(iii) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities (on undiscounted basis)
Parficul As at As at
e March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Less than 1 year 1.71 -
Between 1-5 years 3.98 -
More than 5 years - -
5.6% -
(iv) Lease ligbilities included in statement of financial position
As at As at
Pariiculars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current 1.23 -
Non-curent 348 -
4.71 -
(v} Impact on statement of profit and loss
As ol As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
fnterest on lease liabilities 0.61 -
Depreciation on right of use assets * 1.34 -
Net impact on profit before tax 1.95 -
Deferred tax - Charge/ {credi) (0.49%} -
Net impact on profit affer tax 1.46 -

* Depreciation on ROU during the year pertains to prepaid rent - 5.97 lakhs and for leases 1.34 takhs.




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consoclidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounis in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 57
Significant Accounfing Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumpfions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment fo the carmrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on hisiorical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the financial statements were
prepared. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounfing
estimates Is recognised in the year in which the esiimates are revised and in any future year affected.

Note 58
Construction work in progress includes
Particulars o st

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Approval fees 37.,490.62 25,847.53
Employee benefits 9.315.42 5.819.44
Finance cost 8.811.01 5,3460.48
Land 62,356.64 40,224.05
Materials & labour 48,465.54 36,860.34
Qihers 37.034.37 22,409.77

2,03,473.60 1,36,521.61




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5%
Other infermation

The group does not have any benami properly, where any proceeding has been initfiated or pending against the Group for holding any
benami property.

The Group has avaited various borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of curent assets. Quarterly returns or
statements of current assets filed by the Groug with the banks and financicl institutions are in agreement with books of account.

The Group regisiered all the charges and satisfaction of charges with registrar of companies within statutory period.
The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Group has not reded or invested In crypto currency or virtual curency during the year.

The Group, its joint venture & associate has not advanced or icaned or invested funds fo any other person(s) or entitylies), including
foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall;

a)

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Group , ifs joint venture & associate {ullimate beneficiarias) or

o} provide any guarantes, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

The Group. its joint venture & associate has not received any fund from any person(s) or enfitylies}, including foreign entities [funding party)
wiih the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group, its joint venture & associate shall;

a) directly or indirectly iend or invest in other persons or entifies identified in any manner whatscever by or on behaif of the
funding party (ulfimate beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security cr the like to or on behalf of the ullimate beneficiaries.

The Group doses not have any fransaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other retevant provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1941).

The Holding company and its subsidiaries has not been declared willful defqulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority or other lender, in accerdance with the guidelines on willful defaulter issued by the Raserve Bank of India.

Title deeds are held in the name of the respective companies.

Note 60

During the year, the Company has increased its stake In “Dhruva Wollen Mills Pvi. Lid. [DWMPL)", by virue of which 1t has established
control on DWMPL and hence it has become subsidiary of the Company. This establishment of control falls under the principle of
commeon confrol as specified in Appendix C of Ind AS 103 - “Business Combination™. Hence, the consolidated ind AS financial statements

of the Company for the yeor ended March 31, 2021 has been restated in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 103, from April 1,
2021.

Note 61
(i} There are ne new standards that are notified upto the date of issuance of the Group's financial statements.

a) Newly issued standards
There were no standards notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) during the year ended 31st March, 2023

b} Aamendments in prevailing standards but not effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} nofifies new standard or amendments fo the existing stondards under Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards] Rules as issued from time to time. On 31st March, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, The effective date for adoption of these amendments is annual period beginning on or after O1st April, 2023, The significant
ameandments are as telow.,

(i} Ind AS 1 - Prasentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rathr than their significant accounting pelicies. The
Croup has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant on its financial stafements.

(ii) ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has infroduced a definition of ‘accounting eshmcfes and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting o3, The Group has evaluated the amendment and the impgact of the
amendment is insignificant on its financial statements.




Runwal Develepers Private Limited
Notes to consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
{ii) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narowed the scops of the iniflal recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise o
equal and offsetting femporary differences. The Group has svaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant
on its financial statements

Note 62

(i} Other than disclosed, there are no ofher significant events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as at
the Balance Sheet date,

(it} Previous period figures have been re-grouped ond rearranged whenever necessary to confarm to current years's preparation.

Note 43
Events after Balance sheet date

1 The Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited {the ‘Transferor') with the Company (the ‘Transferee') has
been approved in the Meeting of Board of Directors held on 08th May, 2023. The Appointed date for the Merger is 01st April, 2023. In this
connection, a Jeoint Application by Transferor and Transferee Cempany was made to National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench
{NCLT) on 02nd August, 2023, 15t mofion Crder by Hon'ble NCLT has been received on 24th August, 2023. A Joint Petition has been made
by the Transferor and Transferee Company on 14th September, 2023 with NCLT.

2 On 15t April, 2023 a Share purchase agreement was entered between Avalor Developers Private Limited (subsidiary of the Company) &
Reco Ghatkopar Pte. Ltd. o acquire 20,47,142 no. of share for consideraiion of Rs. 82,200 lakhsresulting inte increase in stake from 49.75 %

to $9.75 % at Runwal Developers Private Limited group level, thus R Mall Developers Privaie Limited becomes subsidary of the Company.

3 Scheme of Amalgamation of Runwal Commercial Assets Private Limited with Wheelobrator Alloy Casting Limited [The Associates
Company) and thek respective shareholders :
The Board of Directors of the Associates Company at their meeting held on 23rd November, 2022 considered and approved @ scheme of
amalgamation {"Scheme"] pursuani to Section 230 fo 232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2023, providing for the
Amalgamation of Runwal Commercial Assets Private Limited ["RCAPL"} with the Associates Company and thelr respective shareholders
vide dated 8th August, 2023. The Asseciates Company had filed ¢ Company Petition before the National Company Law Tribundal, Mumbagi
Bench ["NCLT") which has been admitted and listed for final order,
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